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SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT

This Annual Report on Form 10-K (the "Refjocontains forward-looking statements within theaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Discussions contaigpisuch forward-looking statements may be founiteims 1, 3, 7 and 7A hereof, as well
as within this Report generally. In addition, whesed in this Report, the words "believes," "antbgs," "expects,” "estimates," "plans,"
"intends" and similar expressions are intended¢tify forward-looking statements. All forward-king statements are subject to a number
of risks and uncertainties that could cause acasllts to differ materially from projected resulffiese risks and uncertainties include,
without limitation, the following:

. Ouir failure to successfully manage our outsoureictiyities or failure of our outsourcing partnessperform as anticipated
could adversely affect our results of operationd aur ability to realize the benefits of the in@ed MOCVD order volume;

. The reduction or elimination of foreign governmeunbsidies and economic incentives may adversedgttiie future order re
for our MOCVD equipment;

. Manufacturing interruptions or delays could affeat ability to meet customer demand, while thaufailto estimate customer
demand accurately could result in excess or obsalgentory and/or liabilities to our suppliers fooducts no longer needed;

. We rely on a limited number of suppliers, some bbwm are our sole source for particular components;

. Our backlog is subject to customer cancellatiomodification and such cancellation could resultiécreased sales and
increased provisions for excess and obsolete inwe@ind/or liabilities to our suppliers for prodsicio longer needed:;

. Our sales to HB LED and data storage manufactarerfighly dependent on these manufacturers' Balesnsumer
electronics applications, which can experienceiaggmt volatility due to seasonal and other fastdrhis could materially
adversely impact our future results of operations;

. Negative worldwide economic conditions could regulh decrease in our net sales and an increas ioperating costs, whi
could adversely affect our business and operaénglts;

. We are exposed to the risks of operating a globsiness, including the need to obtain export liesrfer certain of our
shipments and political risks in the countries \perate;

. We are exposed to risks associated with our ergrario the emerging solar industry;

. The timing of our orders, shipments, and revenagegsition may cause our quarterly operating regalftuctuate
significantly;

. We operate in industries characterized by rapidrelogical change;

. We face significant competition;

. We depend on a limited number of customers thatadpén highly concentrated industries;

. The cyclicality of the industries we serve direcRects our business;

. Our sales cycle is long and unpredictable;

. Our inability to attract, retain, and motivate kayployees could have a material adverse effecuobuwsiness;

. The price of our common shares may be volatileandd decline significantly;
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. We are subject to foreign currency exchange ri

. The enforcement and protection of our intellecpraberty rights may be expensive and could divertlimited resources;

. We may be subject to claims of intellectual propérfringement by others;

. Our acquisition strategy subjects us to risks dasett with evaluating and pursuing these opporiesind integrating these
businesses;

. We may be required to take additional impairmertrgas for goodwill and indefinite-lived intangitdssets or definite-lived

intangible and long-lived assets;

. We may not receive the escrowed proceeds fromaleeo our Metrology business;

. Changes in accounting pronouncements or taxaties ar practices may adversely affect our finanaalilts;

. We are subject to the internal control evaluatiang attestation requirements of Section 404 oSdmdanes-Oxley Act;

. We are subject to risks of non-compliance with emwnental, health and safety regulations;

. We have significant operations in locations whiokild be materially and adversely impacted in thentwf a natural disaster

or other significant disruption;

. We have adopted certain measures that may havea&ativer effects which may make an acquisitionwfCompany by
another company more difficult; and

. The matters set forth in this Report generallyludng the risk factors set forth in "ltem 1A. RiBlctors."

Consequently, such forward-looking statetmshould be regarded solely as the Company'srdystans, estimates, and beliefs. The
Company does not undertake any obligation to upalayeforwardlooking statements to reflect future events orwistances after the date
such statements.




ltem 1. Busines:
The Company

Veeco Instruments Inc. (together with iesolidated subsidiaries, "Veeco," the "Company'we") designs, manufactures and markets
equipment to make light emitting diodes ("LEDs'Yles panels, hard-disk drives and other deviceshdle leading technology positions in
our two segments: Light Emitting Diode ("LED") & o and Data Storage.

In our LED & Solar segment, we design arahaofacture metal organic chemical vapor depos{ti#OCVD") systems, molecular bea
epitaxy ("MBE") systems, Copper, Indium, Galliunelénide ("CIGS") deposition systems and thermabdijon sources that we sell to
manufacturers of high brightness LEDs ("HB LED"faolar panels, as well as to research customers.

In our Data Storage segment, we desigmeambfacture ion beam etch, ion beam depositiomaial-like carbon, physical vapor
deposition, chemical vapor deposition, and dicind slicing systems that are primarily used to edhin film magnetic heads ("TFMHs")
that read and write data on hard disk drives.

We support our customers through produeeldpment, manufacturing, and sales and servies gitthe U.S., Korea, Taiwan, China,
Singapore, Japan, Europe and other locations.

Veeco Instruments was organized as a Dete@poration in 1989.
Our Strategy
Our strategy for growth and improved piatfitity focuses on the following key activities:

. Focusing our efforts on those technologies in wiiehhave a leading market share, providing difféated technology
solutions to address customers' next generatiatugtaevelopment roadmaps;

. Leveraging our research and development spendingitd markets that we believe offer high-growtpantunities, such as
our LED & Solar segment;

. Improving our operational efficiency through betepply chain management, best cost manufacturidgther activities to
lower costs and increase profitability, and;

. Developing strategic relationships with worldwigehnology leaders and offering these customers-dniglity, differentiated
products that support their cost of ownership neuents as well as service and applications sujportder to improve their
time-to-market on leading edge devices.

Business Overview and Industry Trends

General Introduction: Our thin film deposition, etch and other teclogies are applicable to the creation of a broagjeaof
microelectronic components, including HB LEDs, sdalls, thin film magnetic heads and compound senductor devices. Our customers
who manufacture these devices continue to invesevn technology equipment in order to advance tiext generation products and deliver
more efficient and cost effective technology san$.

Following the global recession, Veeco eigrered a rapid improvement in business conditiarlate 2009 and continuing into 2010. 1
combination of an improvement in capital spendigigbr global customers as well as our focus on-gigiwth end markets, particularly HB
LED, and successful new product introduction erditihe Company to benefit from accelerated growtAGhO.

The following is a review of our two repairte segments and the multi-year technology trématsmpact each.
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LED & Solar Business Overview and Trendsie are a leading supplier of solutions used¢ate HB LEDs and solar cells. MOCVD
and MBE technologies are used to grow compoundaerdictor materials (such as GaAs (gallium arsgn@eN (gallium nitride), As/P
(arsenic phosphide) and InP (indium phosphidetheftomic scale. Epitaxy is the critical firstpste compound semiconductor wafer
fabrication and is considered to be the highestevadded process, ultimately determining devicetfanality and performance.

We believe that the HB LED market, whileliyal, represents a high-growth opportunity fordu to the expanding applications for HB
LEDs, such as backlighting for large screen flatgdd Vs (LCD—Iliquid crystal displays), laptop compts, automotive applications, and
general illumination. In 2009 and 2010 the LED istily experienced significant growth as LEDs penettdaptop and television backlighting
applications. Strategies Unlimited, an LED industrgearch organization, forecasted in its June 2d6rt that growth in these applications
will continue, resulting in a compound annual griowdte ("CAGR") exceeding 80% from 2009 through£2QIEDs are also starting to
experience increased adoption for general lightivith Strategies Unlimited forecasting a CAGR of48 during that same time period.
Overall, the market for HB LEDs is expected to gifoem $5.4 billion in 2009 to $19.6 billion in 201#r a CAGR of 29.5%.

In order to gain market share and capiadia this growth opportunity, we have accelerat@dR&D investments to introduce several
generations of MOCVD tools, most recently our TiDlEz® K-Series™ and MaxBright™ MOCVD systems. Byraégucing new systems,
we are focused on delivering better uniformity a@peatability, which helps our customers to makellE#®s of consistent quality, ultimately
with the goal to deliver more, high quality LEDsaalbwer manufacturing cost. We intend to contitsgvest heavily in research and
development in order to deliver more advanced MOGdlitions to our customers. A related applicat@rus is in the solar market, since
the same MOCVD tool that is critical to the LED méacturing process can also be used to manufahigheefficiency triple junction solar
cells. The Company currently sells a small numbél©@CVD systems each year for this concentratoars@CPV) application and is also
beginning to sell tools to an emerging growth mafliepower devices.

Veeco has also identified the thin filmasatell market as offering significant growth opjomities. The global energy dilemma has
triggered a significant amount of new researchspehding in solar technologies as an alternatieeggnsolution, since it is nopelluting anc
has the potential to supply the world with high rgyeefficiency at low cost. While many of todaytdas panels are based upon silicon
technologies, thin film CIGS solar cells offer fhetential for lower manufacturing costs, and hdaehighest efficiency of the thin film
technologies. According to an October 2010 repeigased by Greentech Media Research ("GTM"), Cl@8uie manufacturing costs are
projected to be lower than those associated witosiwafer-based modules. CIGS solar panels havadsbased end market applications for
solar farms, commercial and residential rooftopsiding integrated and building applied PV (BIPV/BX) and portable devices.

Since PV manufacturers often build theinaquipment, there is a market opportunity emerfpngquipment suppliers such as Veeco.
In its October 2010 report, GTM forecasted that Elglobal module capacity will have a CAGR of 49%nfir2010 to 2013 with capacity
reaching 3.4GW in 2013. We plan to expand our dépagproduct line to create "best of breed" deposisystems that can deposit materials
on flexible (stainless steel) or rigid (glass) stdies. Today Veeco supplies thermal evaporatiompoments to over 50% of CIGS companies
worldwide and has begun to penetrate CIGS customignour deposition system solutions. We are shigpur FastFlex Web Coating
Systems for the front and back contact and absdalger CIGS deposition. These new systems are tapéprocessing up to 1m web widths
that will enable PV manufacturers to continue ldngitheir cost of ownership. We intend to increaseresearch and development spending
in CIGS technology for both the rigid and flexilslebstrate market since we believe it offers a Samt growth opportunity over the next
several years.




Data Storage Business Overview and Trendg/orldwide storage demand continues to incre@sesn by proliferation of laptop and
netbook PC's, intelligent internet storage, e-neaiternal storage devices, and new consumer afiphsae.g. digital video recorders) now
reaching higher volume. While much has been writigout the competition hard disk drives ("HDDs'§ddrom flash memory, we believe
that HDDs will continue to provide the best valoe ihass storage and will remain at the forefrodaafe capacity storage applications. In
fact, the use of disk drives in many types of comsuapplications has resulted in growth in the neind$ hard drive units shipped, which is
expected to continue. According to data storageare$ firm TrendFocus' February 2011 report, corsietectronic applications of HDDs
are forecasted to grow at a CAGR of 9.4% from 2@12015.

While technology change continues in dédeagie, the industry has gone through a periodaifination, including vertical integration
and consolidation. Veeco is focused on remainiaglaed equipment supplier to the data storage tngasd is well-aligned to the industry's
technology requirements and demand for lower cbstvmership tools. Veeco has restructured and tsfed its Data Storage business around
core technologies where we have a leadership positid utilize a flexible manufacturing strategyre&overy in capital spending by our key
Data Storage customers, combined with the sucdaesifoduction of several new deposition tools tivance areal density technologies,
enabled Veeco to report a strong growth year ir0D2@bing forward, Veeco's product development teasibegun to identify non-hard drive
market applications (such as LED) for our key Cittarage technologies.

Our Products

We have two business segments, LED & SwotdrData Storage. Net sales for these businesses¢gare illustrated in the following
table:

Year ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in millions)
LED & Solar $ 797.¢ $ 205.2 $ 165.¢
% of net sale 85.5% 72.1% 52.71%
Data Storage $ 1352 $ 77.2 $ 149.1
% of net sale 14.5% 27.%% 47.2%
Total net sales $ 9332 $ 282« § 314.¢

See Note 11 to our Consolidated Finandiaie®hents for additional information regarding meportable segments and sales by
geographic location.

LED & Solar

Metal Organic Chemical Vapor Depositiontgyss: We are one of the world's leading supplierM&fCVD technology. MOCVD
production systems are used to make GaN-basededefgeeen and blue HB LEDs) and As/P-based deiedsorange, and yellow HB
LEDs), which are used today in television and lpgiacklighting, general illumination, large aregnsige, specialty illumination and many
other applications. Our As/P MOCVD Systems alsouse to make high-efficiency concentrator soldsce

Molecular Beam Epitaxy SystemsMBE is the process of precisely depositingapélly aligned atomically thin crystal layers, or
epilayers, of elemental materials onto a subsinaéa ultra-high vacuum environment. For many courmbsemiconductors, MBE is the
critical first step of the fabrication process,mbtely determining device functionality and penfiance. We provide a broad
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array of MBE components and systems for researdtpeaduction applications and thermal evaporatmnrees for the CIGS solar industry.

Web and Glass Coaters for Thin Film Solall€ We are a manufacturer of web deposition equigrased to make CIGS solar cells.
We have expanded our product line to include "bébreed" solutions that perform the critical Cl@&position steps on flexible and rigid
(glass) substrates. We believe that our FastFlerdMrastLine™ systems offer high throughput and kxteperformance for thin film solar
cell production, contributing to a lower cost ofrevship for our customers.

Data Storage

lon Beam Deposition ("IBD") Systems:Our NEXUS® IBD systems utilize ion beam tectogyl to deposit precise layers of thin films
and may be included on our cluster system platfioradlow either parallel or sequential etch/deposiprocesses. IBD systems deposit high
purity thin film layers and provide maximum unifatynand repeatability. In addition to IBD systemse provide a broad array of ion beam
sources.

lon Beam Etch ("IBE") Systems:Our NEXUS IBE systems etch precise, complexui@s for use primarily by data storage and
telecommunications device manufacturers in theidabon of discrete and integrated microelectratewices.

Physical Vapor Deposition ("PVD") SystemsOur NEXUS PVD systems offer manufacturers dlyiflexible deposition platform for
developing next-generation data storage application

Diamond-Like Carbon ("DLC") Deposition Sysis:  Our DLC deposition systems deposit protectivatings on advanced TFMHs.

Chemical Vapor Deposition ("CVD") SystemsOur NEXUS CVD systems, introduced to the maiket008, deposit conformal films
for advanced TFMH applications.

Precision Lapping, Slicing, and Dicing &ms: Our Optium® products generally are used in kbaed" applications in a data storage
fab where TFMHSs or "sliders" are fabricated. Thgsiipment includes lapping tools, which enable mechaterial removal within three
nanometers, which is necessary for next generattdiHs. We also manufacture instruments that slimbdice wafers into rowbars and
TFMHs.

Service and Sales

We sell our products and services worldwiideugh various strategically located sales amdicefacilities in the U.S., Europe and Asia
Pacific, and we believe that our customer servigamization is a significant factor in our succéd®. provide service and support on a
warranty, service contract or an individual serviedl basis. We offer enhanced warranty coveragesanvices, including preventative
maintenance plans, on-call and on-site servicespdaad other comprehensive service arrangementygrand application training,
consultation services, and a 24-hour hotline serféc certain products. We believe that offerimgely support creates stronger relationships
with customers and provides us with a significahpetitive advantage. Revenues from the sale & pservice and support represented
approximately 7%, 16% and 21% of our net salesHferyears ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 28)8atively. Parts sales represented
approximately 5%, 9% and 14% of our net salestfos¢ years, respectively, and service and supales sere 2%, 7% and 7%, respectiv
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Customers

We sell our products to many of the wortdagor HB LED, solar and hard drive manufacturersvall as to customers in other industi
research centers, and universities. We rely oraiceprincipal customers for a significant portidroar sales. Sales to LG Innotek Co. Ltd.
Seoul OptoDevice Co. Ltd. each accounted for muaa 110% of Veeco's total net sales in 2010, LG tek€o. Ltd. and Seagate
Technology, Inc. each accounted more than 10% et¥'s total net sales in 2009 and sales to Se@gateology, Inc. accounted for 10% or
more of Veeco's total net sales in 2008. If anpgpal customer discontinues its relationship wighor suffers economic difficulties, our
business, prospects, financial condition and opeyaesults could be materially and adversely a&ec

Research and Development

We believe that continued and timely depedent of new products and enhancements to exiptimgucts are necessary to maintain our
competitive position. We work collaboratively witlur customers to help ensure our technology anduataoadmaps are aligned with
customer requirements. Our research and developmnegitams are organized by product line and neimproved products have been
introduced into each of our product lines in eakthe past three years.

Our research and development expensesappreximately $71.4 million, $43.5 million and $89nillion, or approximately 8%, 15%
and 13% of net sales for the years ended Decenih@030, 2009 and 2008, respectively. These exparmsisted primarily of salaries,
project material and other product developmentemtthncement costs.

Suppliers

We currently outsource certain functionghiod parties, including the manufacture of allabstantially all of our new MOCVD
systems, data storage systems, solar depositibensysind ion sources. We primarily rely on sevauabliers for the manufacturing of these
systems. We plan to maintain internal manufactuciaggbility for these systems at least until sicle tas we have qualified one or more
alternate suppliers to perform this manufacturifige failure of our present suppliers to meet themtractual obligations under our supply
arrangements and our inability to make alternaivangements or resume the manufacture of thesensy®urselves could have a material
adverse effect on our revenues, profitability, cBavs and relationships with our customers.

In addition, certain of the components and-assemblies included in our products are olddimmen a single source or a limited group of
suppliers. Our inability to develop alternative sms, if necessary, could result in a prolongeermption in supply or a significant increase
in the price of one or more components, which caualdersely affect our operating results.

Product Development, Marketing and Operations

Our principal activities, which consistrbduct development, integration, test operationsassembly, are organized by product and
take place at our facilities in Plainview and @iiftPark, New York; Camarillo, California; Ft. Colli, Colorado; Somerset, New Jersey;
St. Paul, Minnesota; and Lowell, Massachusetts.

Our sales, marketing, manufacturing andaesh and development functions are organized dgyat families. We believe that this
organizational structure allows each product famignager to more closely monitor the products foictv he is responsible, resulting in
more efficient sales, marketing, manufacturing eesiarch and development. We emphasize custonpemsgeness, customer service, high-
quality products and an interactive managemengésBy implementing these
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management philosophies, we believe that we hareased our competitiveness and are well-positiémefiliture growth.
Backlog

Our backlog increased to $555.0 millioro&®ecember 31, 2010 from $377.3 million as of Deber 31, 2009. During the year ended
December 31, 2010, we experienced net backlog tadunds of approximately $10.7 million, consistirfigs@2.5 million for order adjustments
($10.2 million is related to our Solar and MBE mesises) offset by $1.8 million of adjustments eglab foreign currency translation.

Our backlog consists of product ordersiibich we received a firm purchase order, a custesnafirmed shipment date within twelve
months and a deposit, where required.

Competition

In each of the markets that we serve, we fabstantial competition from established conqsti some of which have greater financial,
engineering, manufacturing and marketing resoutttas us, as well as from smaller competitors. Iditaah, many of our products face
competition from alternative technologies, somehbich are more established than those used inmgiupts. Significant factors for custon
selection of our tools include system performaaceuracy, repeatability, ease of use, reliabitityst of ownership and technical service and
support. We believe that we are competitive basethe customer selection factors in each marketeree. None of our competitors comg
with us across all of our product lines.

We compete with manufacturers such as gixtAnelva, Applied Materials, Centrotherm, Nipp®anso, Oerlikon and Riber.
Intellectual Property

Our success depends in part on our prapyi¢echnology. Although we attempt to protect iotiellectual property rights through pate
copyrights, trade secrets and other measures, ¢harbe no assurance that we will be able to protactechnology adequately or that
competitors will not be able to develop similariteology independently.

We have patents and exclusive and non-sxeuicenses to patents owned by others covegnigio of our products, which we believe
provide us with a competitive advantage. We hapel&y of seeking patents on inventions concermag products and improvements as
part of our ongoing research, development and naatwfing activities. We believe that there is mayi patent or exclusive or non-exclusive
license to patents owned by others that is criticaur operations, as the success of our busdegssnds primarily on the technical expertise,
innovation, customer satisfaction and experienceuofemployees.

We also rely upon trade secret protectwrofir confidential and propriety information. Tharan be no assurance that others will not
independently develop substantially equivalent gedary information and techniques or otherwisengaicess to our trade secrets or that we
can meaningfully protect our trade secrets. Intimttiwe cannot be certain that we will not be shedhird parties alleging that we have
infringed their patents or other intellectual prapeights. If any third party sues us, our busiesesults of operations or financial condition
could be materially adversely affected.

Employees

As of December 31, 2010, we had 900 em@syef which there were 192 in manufacturing astinig, 109 in sales and marketing,
153 in service, 33 in product support, 274 in eagiing, research and development and 139 in infieméchnology, general administration
and finance. In addition,




we also had 123 temporary employees, which sugportariable cost strategy. The success of ourdutperations depends in large part on
our ability to recruit and retain engineers, techaris and other highly-skilled professionals wheiarconsiderable demand. We feel that we
have adequate programs in place to attract, metiad retain our employees. We plan to monitorstrgipractices to make sure that our
compensation and employee benefits remain comypetilowever, there can be no assurance that wdgguccessful in recruiting or
retaining key personnel. We believe that our refegiwith our employees are good.

Available Information

We file annual, quarterly and current répanformation statements and other informatiothwlie Securities and Exchange Commission
(the "SEC"). The public may obtain information kalmg the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also taiais an Internet site that contains
reports, proxy and information statements, andrdatiffermation regarding issuers that file electoatly with the SEC. The address of that
is www.sec.gov

Internet Address

We maintain a website where additional imfation concerning our business and various upcgmvents can be found. The address of
our website isvww.veeco.comWe provide a link on our website, under InvesteFinancial—SEC Filings, through which investors can
access our filings with the SEC, including our aadmeport on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Foi®aQ, current reports on Form 8-K and
all amendments to those reports. These filingpasted to our website, as soon as reasonably gahldiafter we electronically file such
material with the SEC.

Item 1A. Risk Factors
Risk Factors That May Impact Future Results

In addition to the other information settfoherein, the following risk factors should beefally considered by shareholders of and
potential investors in the Company.

Ouir failure to successfully manage our outsourcingctivities or failure of our outsourcing partners to perform as anticipated could
adversely affect our results of operations and ouability to realize the benefits of the increased MQVD order volume.

To better align our costs with market coiodss, increase the percentage of variable coktive to total costs and to increase
productivity and operational efficiency, we havesmurced certain functions to third parties, inahgadthe manufacture of all or substantially
all of our new MOCVD systems, data storage systeswlay deposition systems and ion sources. Iniaddito supplement our current staffi
and our planned hiring to meet the increased MO@wi2r volume, we rely heavily on our outsourcingtpers and utilize technical staffing
firms and contractors to assist with certain aspetMOCVD system installation at customer sitesoidder to meet the substantial increase in
MOCVD system orders, we are relying heavily on outsourcing partners. Dependence on contract metumiiag and outsourcing may
adversely affect our ability to satisfy the recembng demand for our MOCVD equipment and to bdtfter new products to market. If our
outsourcing partners do not perform successfully results of operations may be adversely affeatetiwe could suffer damage to our
reputation. Although we attempt to select reputgibtyiders, it is possible that one or more of éhpsoviders could fail to perform as we
expect. In addition, the expanded role of thirdyaroviders has required and will continue to liegus to implement changes to our existing
operations and adopt new procedures and processesdining and managing these providers in oralegealize operational efficiencies,
assure quality, and protect our intellectual propédf we do not effectively manage our outsourcatigategy or if third party providers do not
perform as anticipated, we may not




realize the benefits of the increase in MOCVD onddume or gross margin or productivity improvengeand we may experience operatic
difficulties, increased costs, manufacturing andietallation interruptions or delays, inefficieasiin the structure and/or operation of our
supply chain, loss of intellectual property righgsality issues, increased product time-to-markeff@r inefficient allocation of human
resources, any or all of which could materially @ddersely affect our business, financial conditiod results of operations.

The reduction or elimination of foreign governmentsubsidies and economic incentives may adversely edt the future order rate for
our MOCVD equipment.

The Chinese government has provided vaiimzentives to encourage development of the LEMi$try, including subsidizing a
significant portion of the purchase cost of MOCV@ugment. These subsidies have enabled and enaalicagtain customers in this region
to purchase more of our MOCVD equipment than tlestomers might have purchased without these sebsithese subsidies are expected
to decline over time and may end or be reducedraespoint in the future. The reduction or eliminatbf these incentives may result in a
reduction in future orders for our MOCVD equipmanthis region which could materially and adversaffect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

A related risk is that many customers aiegithe Chinese government subsidies, in additiather incentives from the Chinese
government, to build new manufacturing facilities®expand existing manufacturing facilities. Belén the start-up of these facilities, and
other related issues pertaining to customer readjreuld adversely impact the timing of our rexerecognition and have other negative
effects on our financial condition and operatingutes.

Manufacturing interruptions or delays could affect our ability to meet customer demand, while the failre to estimate customer
demand accurately could result in excess or obsoéeinventory and/or liabilities to our suppliers for products no longer needed.

Our business depends on our ability to Bupguipment, services and related products thait e rapidly changing technical and
volume requirements of our customers, which depéngart on the timely delivery of parts, comporgeamnd subassemblies (collectively,
parts) from suppliers. Some key parts may be stiljdong lead-times and/or obtainable only frosiregle supplier or limited group of
suppliers, and some sourcing or subassembly isged\by suppliers located in countries other theminited States. We may experience
significant interruptions of our manufacturing ogésns, delays in our ability to deliver productsservices, increased costs or customer ¢
cancellations as a result of:

. the failure or inability of suppliers to timely detr quality parts;

. volatility in the availability and cost of matersal

. difficulties or delays in obtaining required importexport approvals;

. information technology or infrastructure failures;

. natural disasters (such as earthquakes, floodwons); or

. other causes (such as regional economic downtpamslemics, political instability, terrorism, or s.cf war) could result in

delayed deliveries, manufacturing inefficienciegreased costs or order cancellations.

In addition, our need to rapidly increase lbusiness and manufacturing capacity to meettigigaited increases in demand may be
limited by working capital constraints of our supp and may exacerbate any interruptions in ourufaturing operations and supply chain
and the associated effect on our working capitaédver, if actual demand for our products is défe than expected,
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we may purchase more/fewer parts than necessamguarcosts for canceling, postponing or expeditiatjivery of parts. The volatility of
demand for capital equipment increases capitdhnieal and other risks for companies in the sujgplgin. Any or all of these factors could
materially and adversely affect our business, fifgrcondition and results of operations.

We rely on a limited number of suppliers, some of hom are our sole source for particular components.

We currently outsource certain functionghiod parties, including the manufacture of alkobstantially all of our new MOCVD
systems, data storage systems, solar depositibensysind ion sources. We primarily rely on sevauabliers for the manufacturing of these
systems. We plan to maintain internal manufactuciaggability for these systems at least until sicle tas we have qualified one or more
alternate suppliers to perform this manufacturiftge failure of our present suppliers to meet theirtractual obligations under our supply
arrangements and our inability to make alternaivangements or resume the manufacture of thetensy®urselves could have a material
adverse effect on our revenues, profitability, cBaWs, and relationships with our customers.

In addition, certain of the components and-assemblies included in our products are olddimmen a single source or a limited group of
suppliers. Our inability to develop alternative sms, if necessary, could result in a prolongeermption in supply or a significant increase
in the price of one or more components, which caualdersely affect our operating results.

Our backlog is subject to customer cancellation omodification and such cancellation could result irdecreased sales and increased
provisions for excess and obsolete inventory and/diabilities to our suppliers for products no longe needed.

Customer purchase orders are subject toetiation or rescheduling by the customer, gengraith limited or no penalties. Often, we
have incurred expenses prior to such cancellatitimwt adequate monetary compensation. During dae gnded December 31, 2010, we
experienced net backlog adjustments of approxim&tt0.7 million, consisting of $12.5 million foraer adjustments ($10.2 million is rela
to our Solar and MBE businesses), offset by $118amiof adjustments related to foreign curren@nslation. With our current high backlog,
a downturn in one or more of our served market$dcmsult in a significant increase in cancellasi@amd/or rescheduling.

We record a provision for excess and olisoteventory based on historical and future usagdis and other factors including the
consideration of the amount of backlog we have amdhat any particular point in time. If our backieganceled or modified, our estimate:
future product demand may prove to be inaccuratehich case we may have understated the provisiguired for excess and obsolete
inventory. In the future, if we determine that @wrentory is overvalued, we will be required toagnize such costs in our financial
statements at the time of such determination. titiath, we place orders with our suppliers basedwncustomers' orders to us. If our
customers cancel their orders with us, we may eathlide to cancel our orders with our suppliersrang be required to take a charge for tt
cancelled commitments to our suppliers. Any sudr@bs could be material to our results of operatamd financial condition.

Our sales to HB LED and data storage manufacturerare highly dependent on these manufacturers' salédsr consumer electronics
applications, which can experience significant votdity due to seasonal and other factors, which cdd materially adversely impact our
future results of operations.

The demand for HB LEDs and hard disk drigasighly dependent on sales of consumer eleatspsuch as flat-panel televisions and
computer monitors, computers, digital video recosdeamcorders, MP3/4 players and cell phoness@les to HB LED manufacturers are
also highly dependent on end market adoption of t&dhnology into general illumination applicatioms;luding
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residential, commercial and street lighting markstanufacturers of HB LEDs and hard disk drivesareng our largest customers and have
accounted for a substantial portion of our reveriaethe past several years. Factors that couldente the levels of spending on consumer
electronic products include consumer confidencegesg to credit, volatility in fuel and other eneopsts, conditions in the residential real
estate and mortgage markets, labor and healthoate and other macroeconomic factors affectingwnes spending behavior. These and
other economic factors could have a material a@veffect on the demand for our customers' prodamds in turn, on our customers' demand
for our products and services and on our finaremaldition and results of operations. Furthermdremanufacturers of HB LEDs have
overestimated their potential market share growthmay experience cancellations of orders in bagklostponement of customer deliver
obsolete inventory and/or liabilities to our suppdi for products no longer needed.

In addition, the demand for some of outteoers' products can be even more volatile andaghigable due to the possibility of
competing technologies, such as flash memory adtamative to hard disk drives. Should flash menimcome cost competitive it may
result in a rapid shift in demand from the hardkdisves made by our customers to alternative gtachnologies. Unpredictable
fluctuations in demand for our customers' prodoctsapid shifts in demand from our customers' potsito alternative technologies could
materially adversely impact our future results péxations.

Negative worldwide economic conditions could resulh a decrease in our net sales and an increaseduor operating costs, which could
adversely affect our business and operating results

As a global company with worldwide operapwe are subject to volatility and adverse consages associated with worldwide
economic downturns. In the event of a worldwide dawn, many of our customers may delay or furtleeluce their purchases of our
products and services. If negative conditions eglobal credit markets prevent our customers'secteecredit, product orders in these
channels may decrease which could result in loeeemue. Likewise, if our suppliers face challenigezbtaining credit, in selling their
products or otherwise in operating their businesbey may become unable to continue to offer théenmls we use to manufacture our
products. Our results of operations would be furtidversely affected if we were to experience lothan anticipated order levels,
cancellations of orders in backlog, postponemetusfomer deliveries, or pricing pressure as dtre$a prolonged slowdown.

In addition, negative worldwide economiaditions and market instability make it increasyndifficult for us, our customers and our
suppliers to accurately forecast future productale which could result in obsolete inventory and&bilities to our suppliers for products
no longer needed.

Furthermore, we finance a portion of oles#hrough trade credit. In addition to ongoingdit evaluations of our customers' financial
condition, we seek to mitigate our credit risk liytadning deposits and/or letters of credit on déertd our sales arrangements. We could st
significant losses if a customer whose accountsivable we have not secured fails or is otherwisable to pay us. A significant loss in
collections on our accounts receivable would hamegative impact on our financial results.

We are exposed to the risks of operating a globalisiness, including the need to obtain export licers for certain of our shipments ani
political risks in the countries we operate.

Approximately 90% of our 2010 net sales/6/& our 2009 net sales and 58% of our 2008 netsakre generated from sales outside of
the United States. We expect sales from non-U.8ket&to continue to represent a significant, anssfbly increasing, portion of our sales in
the future. Our
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non-U.S. sales and operations are subject to inslkesent in conducting business abroad, many o€lwhre outside our control, including:

. difficulties in managing a global enterprise, irdihg staffing, managing distributors and repres@ards, and repatriation of
earnings,

. regional economic downturns, varying foreign goweent support, and unstable political environments,

. political and social attitudes, laws, rules, regjalas and policies within countries that favor d@ti@companies over non-

domestic companies, including government-suppaetaits to promote the development and growth oal@ompetitors,

. longer sales cycles and difficulty in collectingcaants receivable,

. multiple, conflicting, and changing governmental$aand regulations, including import/export corgrahd other trade barrie
. the need to provide sufficient levels of technmabport in different locations, and

. different customs and ways of doing business.

Many of these challenges are present im&hihich accounted for approximately 30% of otalt@010 revenues. These conditions in
China and other foreign economies may continueraogr again in the future, which could have a niatedverse effect on our business. In
addition, political instability, terrorism, acts wfr or epidemics in regions where we operate ndagsely affect or disrupt our business and
results of operations.

Furthermore, products which are either nfactured in the United States or based on U.Sntolyy are subject to the United States
Export Administration Regulations ("EAR") when exfeml to and re-exported from international jurisidies, in addition to the local
jurisdiction's export regulations applicable toiindual shipments. Currently, our MOCVD depositisystems and certain of our ot}
products are controlled for export under the EARehses or proper license exceptions may be retjforehe shipment of our products to
certain countries. For example, shipment of our MDGystems to China and certain other countrieegaly requires a U.S. export license.
Obtaining an export license requires cooperatiomfthe customer and customer-facility readiness,cam add time to the order fulfillment
process. While we have generally been very suagieissbbtaining export licenses in a timely manrieere can be no assurance that this will
continue or that an export license can be obtaimedch instance where it is required. If an expioeihse is required but cannot be obtained,
then we will not be permitted to export the prodiacthe customer. The administrative processintgmi@l delay and risk of ultimately not
obtaining an export license pose a particular diaathge to us relative to our non-U.S. competitdte are not required to comply with U.S.
export controls. Non-compliance with the EAR oresthpplicable export regulations could result imide range of penalties including the
denial of export privileges, fines, criminal peiegt and the seizure of commodities. In the evsattany export regulatory body determines
that any of our shipments violate applicable expegulations, we could be fined significant sumd/anour export capabilities could be
restricted, which could have a material adverseaithpn our business.
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We are exposed to risks associated with our entraadnto the emerging solar industry.

An increasing strategic focus for Veectisupply equipment to the solar industry. In dddito the other risk factors described herein,
the solar industry is characterized by other spedgks, including:

. changes in demand for solar photovoltaic ("PV")duas arising from, among other things, the codtarformance of solar
PV technology compared to other energy source$, asioil, coal, wind, hydroelectric and nuclear;

. the adequacy of or changes in government energgigmlincluding the availability and amount of gorment subsidies or
incentives for solar power;

. whether thin film solar technologies, in particuzampper Indium Gallium Selenide ("CIGS") technolpgjil be broadly
adopted as a viable solar technology over varitlisrantensely competitive alternatives; and

. customers' and end-users' access to affordableciedacapital.

If we do not successfully manage the riglssilting from these and other changes occurriigarsolar industry, its business, financial
condition and results of operations could be maligrand adversely affected.

In addition, solar is a relatively new metrkor us and poses the following additional chagles:

. the need to attract, motivate and retain employa#sskills and expertise in this new area;

. new and more diverse customers and suppliers,dmgdusome with limited operating histories, uncertnd/or limited fundin
and/or evolving business models;

. different customer service requirements;
. new and/or different competitors with potentiallpra financial or other resources and industry érpee; and
. third parties' intellectual property rights and aibility to secure necessary intellectual propegkts with respect to our

emerging technologies.

If we do not successfully manage the riglssilting from its entry into the solar market, business, financial condition and results of
operations could be materially and adversely adfict

The timing of our orders, shipments, and revenue m@ognition may cause our quarterly operating resultgo fluctuate significantly.

We derive a substantial portion of our sees in any fiscal period from the sale of a ireddy small number of higlpriced systems. As
result, the timing of recognition of revenue fosiagle transaction could have a material effecbwnsales and operating results for a
particular fiscal period. As is typical in our irgtty, orders, shipments, and customer acceptarisaccur during the last few weeks of a
quarter. As a result, delay of only a week or twa often shift the related booking or sale intorib&t quarter, which could adversely affect
our reported results for the prior quarter. Ourrtprdy results have fluctuated significantly in thast, and we expect this trend to continue. If
our orders, shipments, net sales or operatingteeisué particular quarter do not meet expectations stock price may be adversely affected.
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We operate in industries characterized by rapid teknological change

All of our businesses are subject to rapahnological change. Our ability to remain conmtpagidepends on our ability to enhance
existing products and develop and manufacture meduyets in a timely and cost effective manner andccurately predict technology
transitions. Because new product development comenits must be made well in advance of sales, wé amiisipate the future demand for
products in selecting which development progranfsimol and pursue. Our financial results for 201d #nthe future will depend to a great
extent on the successful introduction of several pppducts, many of which require achieving inciegly stringent technical specifications.
We cannot be certain that we will be successfskilecting, developing, manufacturing and marketiegy products or new technologies or in
enhancing existing products.

We face significant competition.

We face significant competition throughthé world in each of our reportable segments, whiely increase as certain markets in which
we operate continue to expand. Some of our congpetitave greater financial, engineering, manufaguand marketing resources than us.
In addition, we face competition from smaller enieggequipment companies whose strategy is to peoaigortion of the products and
services we offer, using innovative technologydth groducts into specialized markets. New produoirbductions or enhancements by our
competitors could cause a decline in sales ordbssarket acceptance of our existing products.dased competitive pressure could also lead
to intensified price competition resulting in lowargins. Our failure to compete successfully wlithse other companies would seriously
harm our business.

We depend on a limited number of customers that opate in highly concentrated industries.

Our customer base is and has been highlgesdrated. Orders from a relatively limited numbecustomers have accounted for, and
likely will continue to account for, a substanfrtion of our net sales, which may lead custorteedemand pricing and other terms less
favorable to us. Based on net sales, our five &rgastomers accounted for 52%, 52% and 43% ofodalr net sales in 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.

If a principal customer discontinues itatienship with us or suffers economic setbacks,business, financial condition, and operating
results could be materially and adversely affecfat. ability to increase sales in the future wépgnd in part upon our ability to obtain orc
from new customers. We cannot be certain that Vieo@iable to do so. In addition, because a redftismall number of large manufacturers,
many of whom are our customers, dominate the imiggsin which they operate, it may be especialffiatilt for us to replace these custom
if we lose their business. A substantial portiomfers in our backlog are orders from our princgustomers.

In addition, a substantial investment puieed by customers to install and integrate chpij@ipment into a production line. As a result,
once a manufacturer has selected a particular vesnchpital equipment, we believe that the manufactgenerally relies upon that equipm
for the specific production line application andduently will attempt to consolidate its other ¢ap&équipment requirements with the same
vendor. Accordingly, if a customer selects a coribpeés product over ours for technical superiodtyother reasons, we could experience
difficulty selling to that customer for a significperiod of time.

Furthermore, we do not have long-term @aritr with our customers. As a result, our agreesn@ith our customers do not provide any
assurance of future sales and we are exposed tpetitive price pressure on each new order we attéongbtain. Our failure to obtain new
sales orders from new or existing customers woalha negative impact on our results of operations.
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The cyclicality of the industries we serve directhaffects our business.

Our business depends in large part upoedp#al expenditures of manufacturers in the HB|_Eolar and data storage markets. We are
subject to the business cycles of these industhegiming, length, and volatility of which ardfitiult to predict. These industries have
historically been highly cyclical and have expeced significant economic downturns in the last dec@s a capital equipment provider, our
revenues depend in large part on the spendingrpsitté these customers, who often delay expenditoreancel or reschedule orders in
reaction to variations in their businesses or garezonomic conditions. In downturns, we must de &bquickly and effectively align our
costs with prevailing market conditions, as welhastivate and retain key employees. However, bexaywoportion of our costs are fixed,
our ability to reduce expenses quickly in respdnsgvenue shortfalls may be limited. A downturroire or more of these industries could
have a material adverse effect on our businessndial condition and operating results. During @ésiof rapid growth, we must be able to
acquire and/or develop sufficient manufacturingacdly to meet customer demand, and attract, hégralate and retain a sufficient number
of qualified people. We cannot give assurancesahanhet sales and operating results will not besegkly affected if our customers
experience economic downturns or slowdowns in theginesses.

Our sales cycle is long and unpredictable.

Historically, we have experienced long angredictable sales cycles (the period betweerndtial contact with a potential customer ¢
the time when we recognize revenue from that custhrdur sales cycle can range up to twelve moaitihenger. The timing of an order
often depends on the capital expenditure budgéé @four customers, which is completely out of oantrol. In addition, the time it takes us
to build a product to customer specifications (ineild cycle™) typically ranges from one to six niba or longer, followed in certain cases by
a period of customer acceptance during which tis¢oouer evaluates the performance of the systenmaydpotentially reject the system. As
a result of the build cycle and evaluation peridle,period between a customer's initial purch@séstbn and revenue recognition on an o
often varies widely, and variations in length abtpheriod can cause further fluctuations in ourrapeg results. As a result of our lengthy
sales cycle, we may incur significant researchdeklopment expenses and selling and general anihistrative expenses before we
generate the related revenues for these produ@&sn¥ly never generate the anticipated revenuesus@mer cancels or changes plans.
Variations in the length of our sales cycle coukbaause our net sales and, therefore, our cashafhd net income to fluctuate widely from
period to period.

Our inability to attract, retain, and motivate key employees could have a material adverse effect oardusiness.

Our success depends upon our ability tacttretain, and motivate key employees, includiiage in executive, managerial, engineering
and marketing positions, as well as highly skilked] qualified technical personnel and personnehfdement and monitor our financial and
managerial controls and reporting systems. Attnggtietaining, and motivating such qualified persmay be difficult due to challenging
industry conditions, competition for such persorimebther technology companies, consolidationsratatations of operations and workfo
reductions. While we have entered into Employmegte&ments with certain key personnel, our inabibtgattract, retain, and motivate key
personnel could have a material adverse effecuomasiness, financial condition or operating resul

The price of our common shares may be volatile ancbuld decline significantly.

The stock market in general and the mdiketechnology stocks in particular, has experieleaatility that has often been unrelated to
the operating performance of companies. If thesg&k@eta@r industry-based fluctuations continue, tiagling price of our common shares could
decline significantly
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independent of our actual operating performance,stwareholders could lose all or a substantialgfatteir investment. The market price of
our common shares could fluctuate significantlyasponse to several factors, including among others

. general stock market conditions and uncertaintyh sis those occasioned by the global liquidityigrisegative financial news,
and the failure of several large financial instaos;

. receipt of substantial orders or cancellationsofar products;

. actual or anticipated variations in our resultpérations;

. announcements of financial developments or teclyicdbinnovations;

. our failure to meet the performance estimatesw#stment research analysts;

. changes in recommendations and/or financial estisnay investment research analysts;
. strategic transactions, such as acquisitions, tliuess or spin-offs; and

. the occurrence of major catastrophic events.

Significant price and value fluctuationw@accurred with respect to the publicly tradedusigies of the Company and technology
companies generally. The price of our common shiarideely to be volatile in the future. In the pasecurities class action litigation often has
been brought against a company following periodsoddtility in the market price of its securitidssimilar litigation were pursued against
it could result in substantial costs and a divergibmanagement's attention and resources, whighl enaterially and adversely affect our
results of operations, financial condition and idity.

We are subject to foreign currency exchange risks.

We are exposed to foreign currency exchaatgerisks that are inherent in our anticipatddssaales commitments and assets and
liabilities that are denominated in currencies pthan the United States dollar. Although we attetapmitigate our exposure to fluctuations
in currency exchange rates, these hedging acsvitigy not always be available or adequate to editajror even mitigate, the impact of our
exchange rate exposure. Failure to sufficientlygeeor otherwise manage foreign currency risks pigpeuld materially and adversely affi
our revenues and gross margins.

The enforcement and protection of our intellectuaproperty rights may be expensive and could divert ar limited resources.

Our success depends in part upon the gimteaf our intellectual property rights. We relgimparily on patent, copyright, trademark and
trade secret laws, as well as nondisclosure anfidemiality agreements and other methods, to ptatar proprietary information,
technologies and processes. We own various Uni@sSand international patents and have additjperadling patent applications relating to
certain of our products and technologies. The m®0oé seeking patent protection is lengthy and esipe, and we cannot be certain that
pending or future applications will actually resinlissued patents or that issued patents willftefficient scope or strength to provide
meaningful protection or commercial advantage.dditgon, our intellectual property rights may beccimvented, invalidated or rendered
obsolete by the rapid pace of technological chaRgécing unauthorized use of our products andrieldyies is difficult and time consumir
Furthermore, the laws of other countries may |&esvely protect our proprietary rights than Ul8ws. Our outsourcing strategy requires
that we share certain portions of our technologih wur outsourcing partners, which poses additiosks of infringement and trade secret
misappropriation. Infringement of our rights byhird party could result in uncompensated lost miaakel revenue opportunities. We cannot
be certain that the steps we have taken will prethenmisappropriation or unauthorized use of gopgetary information and technologies,
particularly in foreign countries where the lawsynmat protect our proprietary intellectual propetityhts as fully or as readily as United
States laws.
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Further, we cannot be certain that the laws anitipslof any country, including the United Stateih respect to intellectual property
enforcement or licensing will not be changed inaywetrimental to the sale or use of our productechnology.

We may need to litigate to enforce ourllattual property rights, protect our trade secostdetermine the validity and scope of
proprietary rights of others. As a result of angtslitigation, we could lose our ability to enforoee or more patents or incur substantial
unexpected operating costs. Any action we takaeforee our intellectual property rights could besttypand could absorb significant
management time and attention, which, in turn, @mggatively impact our operating results. In additfailure to protect our trademark
rights could impair our brand identity.

We may be subject to claims of intellectual propest infringement by others.

From time to time we have received commationis from other parties asserting the existefigatent or other rights which they belie
cover certain of our products. We also periodicedigeive notice from customers who believe thatweerequired to indemnify them for
damages they may incur related to infringemennhtdanade against these customers by third partiesc@tomary practice is to evaluate
such assertions and to consider the availablenaliges, including whether to seek a license, frapriate. However, we cannot ensure that
licenses can be obtained or, if obtained, will heaoceptable terms or that costly litigation orestadministrative proceedings will not occur.
If we are not able to resolve a claim, negotiasetdlement of the matter, obtain necessary liceaseammmercially reasonable terms, and/or
successfully prosecute or defend our positionbusiness, financial condition, and results of ofi@ena could be materially and adversely
affected.

Our acquisition strategy subjects us to risks assated with evaluating and pursuing these opportunies and integrating these
businesses.

We have considered numerous acquisitioroxppities and completed several significant adgtjaiss in the past. We may consider
acquisitions of, or investments in, other businessehe future. Acquisitions involve numerous sisknany of which are unpredictable and
beyond our control, including:

. difficulties and increased costs in integrating pleesonnel, operations, technologies and prodd@sdguired companies;

. diversion of management's attention while evalgatpursuing, and integrating the business to beieexdy

. potential loss of key employees of acquired comgmrespecially if a relocation or change in resjilitges is involved;

. difficulties in managing geographically dispersgi@tions in a cost-effective manner;

. lack of synergy or inability to realize expectedesgies;

. unknown, underestimated and/or undisclosed commitsnar liabilities;

. increased amortization expense relating to intdagibsets; and

. the potential impairment and write-down of amouwapitalized as intangible assets and goodwill asqfahe acquisition, as a

result of technological advancements or worse-tgrected performance by the acquired company.

Our inability to effectively manage thessks could materially and adversely affect our bass, financial condition, and operating
results.

In addition, if we issue equity securittegpay for an acquisition, the ownership percente#fgrur then-existing shareholders would be
reduced and the value of the shares held by theselmlders could be diluted, which could adveraéfigct the price of our stock and
convertible subordinated
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notes. If we use cash to pay for an acquisitioa péyyment could significantly reduce the cashwatld be available to fund our operation:
other purposes, including making payments on tiwexible subordinated notes. There can be no assearthat financing for future
acquisitions will be available on favorable termsaball.

We may be required to take additional impairment ctarges for goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibleassets or definite-lived
intangible and long-lived assets.

We are required to assess goodwill andfinitie-lived intangible assets annually for impaént, or on an interim basis whenever certain
events occur or circumstances change, such asvaensadchange in business climate or a declinesimterall industry, that would more like
than not reduce the fair value of a reporting beibw its carrying amount. We are also requiretk$d our definite-lived intangible and long-
lived assets, including acquired intangible asabtsproperty, plant and equipment, for recovergtélnd impairment whenever there are
indicators of impairment, such as an adverse chanlgesiness climate.

At December 31, 2010, we had $52.0 milbéigoodwill and $59.2 million of intangible and Ipiived assets, including $42.3 million of
property, plant and equipment. As part of our lé@gn strategy, we may pursue future acquisitionstieér companies or assets which could
potentially increase our goodwill and intangibleldong-lived assets. Adverse changes in businesdittans could materially impact our
estimates of future operations and result in agici#ti impairment charges to these assets. If outlgiticor intangible and long-lived assets
were to become further impaired, our results ofragens could be materially and adversely affected.

We may not receive the escrowed proceeds from thals of our Metrology business.

In connection with the sale of our Metroldgusiness to Bruker Corporation ("Bruker") on (eto7, 2010, we agreed to indemnify
Bruker, subject to certain limitations, for certéasses arising out of breaches of the representtivarranties and covenants that we made ir
the Stock Purchase Agreement and in certain retidedments. To secure these indemnification oligat we agreed to deposit into escrow
$22.9 million of the consideration paid to us byiBer, such funds to remain in escrow for twelve therfollowing the closing. In the event
any qualifying indemnification claims, and afteliéaving the procedures set forth in the escrow agrent, all or a portion of the escrowed
amount may be released and returned to Brukettigfysauch claims. This would result in a reductinorthe purchase price received for the
sale of our Metrology business, which could result material adverse effect on our financial ctodi

Changes in accounting pronouncements or taxation tas or practices may adversely affect our financialesults.

Changes in accounting pronouncements atitaxrules or practices can have a significargafbn our reported results. See "ltem 7.
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financtaddtion and Results of Operationgpplication of Critical Accounting Policies" belo
New accounting pronouncements or taxation rulesvanging interpretations of accounting pronouncets@n taxation practices ha
occurred and may occur in the future. New ruleandes to existing rules, if any, or the questiorifigurrent practices may adversely affect
our reported financial results or change the wayarmuct our business.

We are subject to internal control evaluations andattestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sadmnes-Oxley Act.

Pursuant to Section 404 of the SarbanesyOktt of 2002, we must include in our Annual Repor Form 10-K a report of management
on the effectiveness of our internal control oweamcial reporting. Ongoing compliance with thiguagement is complex, costly and time-
consuming. Although our assessment, testing, aalilation resulted in our conclusion that, as ofémeber 31, 2010, our
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internal controls over financial reporting wereeetive, we cannot predict the outcome of our tgsitinfuture periods. If our internal controls
are ineffective in future periods, or if our manammt does not timely assess the adequacy of stemah controls, we could be subject to
regulatory sanctions, the public's perception af@oampany may decline and our financial resultdhermarket price of our shares could be
adversely affected.

We are subject to risks of non-compliance with envdnmental, health and safety regulations.

We are subject to environmental, healthsafdty regulations in connection with our busingsarations, including but not limited to
regulations related to the development, manufacture use of our products. Failure or inabilitictonply with existing or future
environmental and safety regulations could resudtignificant remediation liabilities, the impositi of fines and/or the suspension or
termination of development, manufacture, or useesfain of our products, each of which could haveagerial adverse effect on our busin
financial condition, and results of operations.

We have significant operations in locations whichauld be materially and adversely impacted in the eant of a natural disaster or
other significant disruption.

Our operations in the U.S., the Asia-Pagifigion and in other areas could be subject toraktlisasters or other significant disruptions,
including earthquakes, fires, hurricanes, floodastenshortages, other extreme weather conditioadjaal epidemics, acts of terrorism, po\
shortages and blackouts, telecommunications faijued other natural and manmade disasters omptimns. In the event of such a natural
disaster or other disruption, we could experieriseugtions or interruptions to our operations @& ¢iperations of our suppliers, distributors,
resellers or customers; destruction of faciliteasl/or loss of life, all of which could materialhcrease our costs and expenses and materially
and adversely affect our business, revenue anddiakcondition.

We have adopted certain measures that may have asntikeover effects which may make an acquisition afur Company by another
company more difficult.

We have adopted, and may in the future adeptain measures that may have the effect aiyited, deferring or preventing a takeove
other change in control of our Company that a hotddeur common stock might not consider in itstheterest. These measures include:

. "blank check" preferred stock;

. classified board of directors;

. shareholder rights plan or "poison pill;" and

. certain certificate of incorporation and bylaws\isons.

Our board of directors has the authoritissue up to 500,000 shares of preferred stockafid the rights (including voting rights),
preferences and privileges of these shares ("thekk" preferred). Such preferred stock may haysi including economic rights, seniol
our common stock. As a result, the issuance opthéerred stock could have a material adverse edfiethe price of our common stock and
could make it more difficult for a third party toguire a majority of our outstanding common stock.

Our board of directors is divided into #idasses with each class serving a staggeredybegderm. The existence of a classified board
will make it more difficult for our shareholders ¢bange the composition (and therefore the poli@ésur board of directors in a relatively
short period of time.

We have adopted a shareholder rights piager which we have granted to our shareholdehdsrigp purchase shares of junior
participating preferred stock. This plan or "poignifi' could discourage a takeover that is not appd by our board of directors but which a
shareholder might consider in its best interestrehy adversely affecting our stock price.
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We have adopted certain certificate of ipooation and bylaws provisions which may have-takeover effects. These include:
(a) requiring certain actions to be taken at a mgetf shareholders rather than by written consgmtrequiring a super-majority of
shareholders to approve certain amendments toydanvb, (c) limiting the maximum number of directoasd (d) providing that directors m
be removed only for "cause." These measures arse tthescribed above may have the effect of delagefgrring or preventing a takeover or
other change in control of Veeco that a holderwaf@ammon stock might consider in its best interest

In addition, we are subject to the provisiof Section 203 of the General Corporation LawhefState of Delaware, which prohibits a
Delaware corporation from engaging in any busimessbination, including mergers and asset sale, avitinterested stockholder (generally,
a 15% or greater stockholder) for a period of thyears after the date of the transaction in whirghgerson became an interested stockholder,
unless the business combination is approved irscpbed manner. The operation of Section 203 raag Anti-takeover effects, which could
delay, defer or prevent a takeover attempt thatléen of our common stock might consider in itstheterest.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

Our corporate headquarters and our prihgimaluct development and marketing, manufactuniegearch and development, training,
sales and service facilities, as well as the apprate size and the segments which utilize sucliitiasi are:

Approximate Size

Owned Facilities Location (sq. ft.) Mortgaged Use

Plainview, NY 80,00( No Data Storage and LED & Solar and Corporate
Headquarter

Somerset, N 80,00( No LED & Solar

St. Paul, MN(1] 125,00( Yes LED & Solar

Tucson, AZ(2) 110,00( No Former Metrology Siti

Approximate Size

Leased Facilities Location (sq. ft.) Lease Expires Use

Camarillo, CA(3) 26,00( 2012 Data Storage and partially held for suble
Fort Collins, CC 26,00( 2011 Data Storag

Clifton Park, NY 18,00( 201¢ LED & Solar

Clifton Park, NY 8,00(C 2011 LED & Solar

Lowell, MA 28,00( 201z LED & Solar

Somerset, N 14,50( 2011 LED & Solar

Somerset, N 9,50( 2012 LED & Solar

Shanghai, Chin 17,40( 201z Customer Training Cent

Woodbury, NY(4) 32,00( 2011 Former Corporate Headquarts

@) Our LED & Solar segment utilizes approximately @ &quare feet of this facility. The balance isilade for expansion.

(2)  We vacated this facility during the fourth quaé2010 in conjunction with the sale of our Metgyosegment to Bruker. We are
currently leasing this office to Bruker in accordarwith a transition services agreement which @xfire on October 6, 2011.
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(3)  We vacated this facility during the second quanfe2009 in conjunction with the outsourcing of méaaiuring for certain Dat
Storage product lines. We have reoccupied a podidhis space and are marketing the remainingesfircsublease.

(4)  We vacated our former Woodbury headquarters duhadirst quarter of 2008 and consolidated our apens into our Plainview
manufacturing facility.

The St. Paul, Minnesota facility is subjeca mortgage, which at December 31, 2010, haalistanding balance of $2.9 million. We
also lease small offices in Santa Clara, Califqor@iaelmsford, Massachusetts and Edina, Minnesotsales and service. Our foreign
subsidiaries lease office space in England, Fra@eemany, Japan, Korea, Malaysia, Singapore, Tinil@hina and Taiwan. We believe our
facilities are adequate to meet our current needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
Environmental

We may, under certain circumstances, bigateld to pay up to $250,000 in connection withithplementation of a comprehensive plan
of environmental remediation at our Plainview, Néark facility. We have been indemnified by the famowner for any liabilities we may
incur in excess of $250,000 with respect to anjhsemediation. No comprehensive plan has beennedjto date. Even without
consideration of such indemnification, we do ndidwe that any material loss or expense is probabi®nnection with any remediation plan
that may be proposed.

We are aware that petroleum hydrocarboracomation has been detected in the soil at tieeasity facility formerly leased by us in
Santa Barbara, California. We have been indemnfie@dny liabilities we may incur which arise fremvironmental contamination at the ¢
Even without consideration of such indemnificatiag, do not believe that any material loss or expamprobable in connection with any
such liabilities.

The former owner of the land and buildingSianta Barbara, California in which our former M&igy operations were located (which
business was sold to Bruker on October 7, 201@)disxlosed that there are hazardous substancgmnpie the ground under the building.
Management believes that the comprehensive indaratidn clause that was part of the purchase contedating to the purchase of such |
provides adequate protection against any envirotaeh&sues that may arise. We have provided Brukir similar indemnification as part of
the sale.

Non-Environmental

We are involved in various other legal medings arising in the normal course of our businé& do not believe that the ultimate
resolution of these matters will have a materialeasle effect on our consolidated financial positi@sults of operations or cash flows.

Item 4. (Removed and Reserved).
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PART Il
ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases &quity Securities

Our common stock is quoted on The NASDAQidtel Market under the symbol "VECO." The 2010 &089 high and low closing bid
prices by quarter are as follows:

2010 2009
High Low High Low
First Quartel $ 4372 $ 304z $ 7.1€ $ 3.9¢
Second Quarte 51.61 31.7¢ 12.9¢ 6.1¢
Third Quartel 45.5; 31.0Z 23.4¢ 11.3¢
Fourth Quarte 49.9; 33.71 34.3¢ 21.9(

On February 22, 2011, the closing bid pfareour common stock on the NASDAQ National Markets $47.04 and we had
144 shareholders of record.

As of December 31, 2010 we had convertiloies of $105.6 million. The notes accrue intea¢gt 125% per annum and mature on
April 15, 2012. The notes meet the criteria foredetining the effect of the assumed conversion uiegreasury stock method of accounting,
since we have the ability and the intent to sélteprincipal amount of the notes in cash. Underténms of the notes, we may pay the
principal amount of converted notes in cash othiaraes of common stock. We intend to pay such ansaardash. Holders may convert the
notes at any time during the period beginning arudey 15, 2012 through the close of business osebend day prior to April 15, 2012 and
earlier upon the occurrence of certain events diolyiour common stock trading at prices equal talmve 130% of the conversion price for
at least 20 trading days during the final 30 trgdiays of the immediately preceding fiscal quar¢ithe end of the fourth quarter of 2010,
our common stock was trading at prices equal mbove 130% of the conversion price for the spetifieriod and, as a result, the convertible
notes are convertible during the first quarter @2 Accordingly, the balance of the convertibléaiscat December 31, 2010 has been
classified as current in our Consolidated Balarfoee® On February 14, 2011, at the option of tHddrp$7.5 million of notes were tendered
for conversion at a price of $45.95 per sharerieteshare settlement. As a result, we paid thesipdhamount of $7.5 million in cash and
issued 111,318 shares of our common stock. Accglgim the first quarter of 2011 we will take aache for the related unamortized debt
discount totaling $0.3 million. We pay interesttbese notes on April 15 and October 15 of each.year

We have not paid dividends on our commonlstThe Board of Directors will determine futurigidend policy based on our
consolidated results of operations, financial cbadj capital requirements and other circumstances.
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Stock Performance Graph
COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*

Among Veeco Instruments Inc., The S&P Smallcap Ipa@x,
The PHLX Semiconductor Index And RDG MidCap Tecluggl Index
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* $100 invested on 12/31/05 in stock or index, intigdeinvestment of dividends.

Fiscal year ending December 31.

Copyright© 2011 S&P, a division of The Ma@r-Hill Companies Inc. All rights reserved.

ASSUMES $100 INVESTED ON DEC. 31, 2005
ASSUMES DIVIDENDS REINVESTED
FISCAL YEAR ENDING DEC. 31

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Veeco Instruments In 100.0C 108.0¢ 96.3¢ 36.5¢ 190.6¢ 247.8¢
S&P Smallcap 60! 100.0¢ 115.1: 114.7¢ 79.11 99.3¢ 125.4%
PHLX Semiconducto 100.0¢ 94.47 102.9¢ 56.1F 91.67 103.1:
RDG MidCap Technolog 100.0C 111.3¢ 110.8! 56.91] 90.5¢ 114.0:
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Treasury Stock

The following table contains the Comparstck repurchases of equity securities in the foguarter of 2010:

Total Number of Approximate Dollar

Shares Value of
Total Number of Purchased as Par  Shares that May Yet
of Publicly Be Purchased
Shares Average Price Announced Under the Program
Period Repurchased Paid Per Share Program(1) (1)
Fiscal month of October 2010
(September 27, 2010—
October 24, 2010)(z 189,21¢ 34.3¢ 1,118,60! 161,901,74

@ On August 24, 2010, we announced that our Boaiirgfctors had authorized the repurchase of up 6 $aillion of
our common stock until August 26, 2011. The progdies not obligate the Company to acquire anyqudati amount
of common stock and may be modified or suspendadytime at the Company's discretion.

(2)  We had no repurchases in the fiscal months of Nwezrand December 201
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ltem 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Dat

The financial data set forth below shoutdréad in conjunction with "Management's Discussind Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations" and with our ConsolidatathRcial Statements and notes thereto included bi@wn this Form 10-K.

Statement of Operations Data

Net sales

Operating income (loss) from
continuing operation

Income (loss) from continuing
operations, net of income tax

Income (loss) from discontinued
operations, net of income tax

Net loss attributable t
noncontrolling interes

Net income (loss) attributable
Veeco

Income (loss) per common share
attributable to Veecc
Basic:
Continuing operation
Discontinued operatior

Income (loss

Diluted :
Continuing operation
Discontinued operatior

Income (loss

Weighted average shares
outstanding
Basic
Diluted

Balance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivalel

Shor-term investment

Restricted cas

Working capital

Goodwill

Total asset

Longterm debt (including curre
installments!

Total equity

1)

Year ended December 31,

2010(1) 2009(2) 2008(3) 2007(4) 2006(5)
(In thousands, except per share data)
$ 933,23: $ 282,41. $ 314,93! $ 252,03 $ 268,88
277,57 (4,737 (46,140  (18,24% (5,767)
260,53. (14,229 (50,839  (23,65Y) (4,620)
101,22 (1,409 (24,589 3,817 18,17¢
— (65) (230) (62¢) (1,35¢)
$ 361,76( $ (15,567 $ (75,19) $ (19,210 $ 14,91
$ 660 $ (04)$ (162 % (079 % (0.11)
2.5€ (0.09) (0.7€) 0.1z 0.6C
$ 916 $ (049 3$ (40 $ (062 $  0.4¢
$ 612 $ (04)$ (162 % (079 % (0.1
2.3¢ (0.09) (0.7¢) 0.1z 0.6C
$ 851 3% (049 3% (240 $ (062 $  0.4¢
39,49¢ 32,62¢ 31,347 31,02( 30,49:
42,51¢ 32,62¢ 31,341 31,02( 30,49:
December 31,
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(In thousands)

245,13: $ 148,500 $ 102,52: $ 116,87 $ 146,88(
394,18( 135,00( — — —
76,11¢ — — — —
640,13¢ 317,31 168,52¢ 112,08 172,44°
52,00: 52,00: 51,74 71,544 71,544
1,148,03: 605,37 429,54 529,33 589,60(
104,02: 101,17¢ 98,52¢ 132,11¢ 203,77-
762,51. 359,05¢ 225,02t 288,14« 281,75:

reporting segment for $229.4 million. AccordingMetrology's
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(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

operating results are accounted for as discontiopedations in determining the consolidated resfltsperations. The sales
transaction closed on October 7, 2010, exceptdseta located in China due to local restrictiomgallproceeds, which included a
working capital adjustment of $1 million, totale®3p.4 million of which $7.2 million relates to thssets in China. As part of our
agreement with Bruker, $22.9 million of proceedheatd in escrow and is restricted from use for pear from the closing date of the
transaction to secure certain specified lossemgraut of breaches of representations, warraatiescovenants we made in the stock
purchase agreement and related documents. Asfghe sale we incurred transaction costs, whiclsisted of investment bank fees
and legal fees, totaling $5.2 million. The Compasgognized a pre-tax gain on disposal of $156.8aniknd a pre-tax deferred gain
of $5.4 million related to the assets in China.

In addition, operating income and income from amuntig operations includes a restructuring credB@® million.

Operating loss and net loss from continuing openatinclude restructuring expenses of $4.8 millamyell as an asset impairment
charge of $0.3 million for property, plant and gguent no longer being utilized in our Data Storaggment and a $1.5 million
inventory write-off associated with Data Storaggaley products.

Operating loss and net loss from continuing openatinclude a $51.4 million asset impairment chafgehich $30.4 million was
related to goodwill and $21.0 million was relatedther long-lived assets, a restructuring chafggatl million consisting of lease-
related commitments, the mutually agreed-upon teation of the employment agreement with our for@E©O and personnel
severance costs and $1.5 million in cost of salkged to the required purchase accounting adjugttoevrite up inventory to fair
value in connection with the purchase of Mill Laegineering. Net loss from continuing operatiorsbakflects a net gain from the
early extinguishment of debt in the amount of $8iBion.

Operating loss and net loss from continuing openatinclude restructuring expenses of $4.8 millamyvell as charges of $1.1 milli
and $4.8 million associated with the write-off @bperty and equipment and inventory, respectiveliated to product lines
discontinued as part of management's cost reduptaon Net loss from continuing operations alséet$ a net gain from the early
extinguishment of debt in the amount of $0.7 millio

Operating income and net loss from continuing die@na are net of a write-off of $1.2 million of process research and development

projects related to the Fluens acquisition. Ne$ fFosm continuing operations also reflects a nét fam the early extinguishment of
debt in the amount of $0.3 million.
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Item 7.

Management's Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operations

Executive Summary

We make equipment to develop and manufadigint emitting diodes ("LEDs"), solar panels, dhalisk drives and other devices. We
have leading technology positions in our two segs1dtED & Solar and Data Storage.

In our LED & Solar segment, we design arahaofacture metal organic chemical vapor depos{ti#OCVD") systems, molecular bea
epitaxy ("MBE") systems, Copper, Indium, Galliunglénide ("CIGS") deposition systems and thermabdijon sources which we sell to
manufacturers of high brightness LEDs ("HB LED"faolar panels, as well as to scientific reseaustotners.

In our Data Storage segment, we desigmaambifacture ion beam etch, ion beam depositiomaiial-like carbon, physical vapor
deposition, chemical vapor deposition, and dicind slicing systems primarily used to create thim finagnetic heads ("TFMHs") that read
and write data on hard disk drives.

We support our customers through produeeldpment, manufacturing, sales and service gitéise U.S., Korea, Taiwan, China,
Singapore, Japan, Europe and other locations.

Summary of Results for 2010

In 2010, Veeco reported the best yearsihistory in terms of revenue and profitabilityledted financial highlights include:

Revenue increased 231% to $933.2 million in 200Mf$282.4 million in 2009. LED & Solar revenuesreased 289% to
$797.9 million from $205.2 in 2009. Data Storageeraies increased 75% to $135.3 million from $77il2an in 2009;

Orders were up 108% to $1,121.6 million in 2010 pamed to $538.3 million in 2009;

Our gross margin increased to 48% for 2010 from 392009. Gross margins in LED & Solar increased 66 from 40% in
2009, and Data Storage gross margins increase@Ptofldm 37% in 2009.

Our selling, general and administrative expenseased to $91.8 million from $62.2 million in 20@®lling general and
administrative expenses were 10% of net sales10,2bmpared with 22% of net sales in 2009;

Our research and development expenses increa$&d # million from $43.5 million in 2009. Reseawrhd development
expenses were 8% of net sales in 2010, comparé&dl® in 2009;

Net income (loss) from continuing operations atitéible to Veeco in 2010 was $260.5 million compdfdt.2) million in
20009;

Net income (loss) from continuing operations atttéble to Veeco per share was $6.13 compared td4%h 2009; and

We generated net cash of $96.6 million during 2@t®cipally due to $45.2 million in proceeds fratock option exercises,
$23.3 million of excess tax benefits relating tmcktoption exercises, and cash provided by opersid $194.2 million,
partially offset by treasury stock repurchases3#.$ million and restricted stock tax withholdimfs$4.6 million and cash
used in investing activities of $121.6 million, whiis net of $225.2 million in net proceeds frora Hale of our Metrology
segment.
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Business Highlights of 2011

Veeco's 2010 results were at record levéth, revenue of $933 million and net income froamtinuing operations of $261 million.
These results were achieved through a combinafierodd-class products, a focus on high-growth neaidpportunities, operational
excellence, our flexible manufacturing strategyd ardeep commitment to satisfying our global cugtiem

. Veeco increased growth and profitability in our LEBIC5olar segment, which is also referred to as'gtegen” equipment
business. In LED we penetrated new customers,fiigntly increased our market share, increased R&@stment, launchec
next-generation MOCVD system and ramped our matwfiaag capacity utilizing a scalable, outsourceddeloln Solar we
continued to improve the process development of@@&S product line.

. Veeco's Data Storage business delivered recortslefgrofitability over the last 5 years as a tesfia turnaround in business
conditions combined with our flexible manufacturstgategy.

Outlook

With starting backlog of $555 million, aadticipating strong first half 2011 bookings, werently forecast that Veeco's 2011 revenues
will be greater than $1 billion. We are optimisgicout the future and believe that we are well posid from a technology, product and
operational standpoint to grow our LED & Solar &ata Storage businesses in 2011 and beyond.

As we look toward the future, we believattthe HB LED industry will continue its multi-yes#OCVD tool investment cycle as HB
LEDs increase their penetration in backlightinglagions and general illumination. We are alsdrsgstrong interest in our thermal
deposition solutions for the manufacturing of Cl&far cells, and believe that Veeco is well posgid to increase our business in this
market. In addition, overall business conditionsim Data Storage segment appear to be continaimggrove and with a strong starting-year
backlog, we are forecasting revenue growth inthisiness in 2011.

Our outlook discussion above constituteswhrd-looking statements" within the meaning oft®an 27A of the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities BgehAct of 1934, as amended. Our expectations degpfuture results are subject to ri
and uncertainties. Our actual results may diffetemally from those anticipated.

You should not place undue reliance onfanyard-looking statements, which speak only athefdates they are made.
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Results of Operations
Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

The following table shows our Consolidagtdtements of Operations, percentages of salesangarisons between 2010 and 2009
(dollars in 000s):

Dollar and
Year ended December 31, Percentage
Change
2010 2009 Year to Year
Net sales $ 933,23: 100.% $ 282,41: 100.(% $ 650,81¢ 230.5%
Cost of sale: 489,40t 52. 171,17 60.€ 318,22¢ 185.¢
Gross profit 443,82! 47.€ 111,23! 39.4 332,59( 299.(
Operating expenses (incom
Selling, general and
administrative 91,77: 9.8 62,15 22.C 29,62¢ 477
Research and developmt 71,39 7.€ 43,48: 15.4 27,907 64.2
Amortization 4,87¢ 0.t 5,16¢ 1.8 (292) (5.7)
Restructuring (179 — 4,83 1.7 (5,016 *
Asset impairmen — — 304 0.1 (304 (100.0
Other, ne (1,619 (0.2 24 0.C (1,63¢) *
Total operating expens 166,25( 17.¢ 115,96° 41.1 50,28: 43.4
Operating income (los! 277,57¢ 29.7 (4,732 1.7 282,30° *
Interest expense, n 6,572 0.7 6,85( 2.4 (27¢) 4.7
Income (loss) from continuir
operations before income
taxes 271,00: 29.C (11,587 4.7 282,58! *
Income tax provisiol 10,47: 11 2,641 0.¢ 7,82t 295.¢
Income (loss) from continuir
operations 260,53: 27.¢ (14,229 (5.0 274,76( *
Discontinued operation:
Income (loss) from
discontinued operations
before income taxes
(includes gain on dispos
of $156,290 in 201C 155,45! 16.7 (2,707 (1.0) 158,15¢ *
Income tax provision
(benefit) 54,22¢ 5.8 (1,300 (0.5) 55,52¢ *
Income (loss) from
discontinued operatior 101,22¢ 10.¢ (1,409 (0.5 102,63. *
Net income (loss 361,76( 38.¢ (15,637 (5.5 377,39: *
Net loss attributable t
noncontrolling interes — — (65) 0.1 65 (100.0
Net income (loss) attributab
to Veeca $ 361,76! 38.8% $ (15,56)) 5.5%$ 377,32 *
* Not Meaningful
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Net Sales and Orde

Net sales of $933.2 million for the yeaded December 31, 2010, were up 230.5% compare@dd®. X he following is an analysis of
sales and orders by segment and by region (dai&@80s):

Sales Orders
Dollar and Dollar and
Year ended Percentage Year ended Percentage Book to Bill
December 31, Change December 31, Change Ratio
2010 2009 Year to Year 2010 2009 Year to Year 2010 2009
Segment
Analysis
LED &
Solar  $797,90: $205,15: $592,75. 288.¢%$ 968,23: $440,78: $527,44¢ 119.7% 1.21 2.1t
Data

Storage 135,32° 77,25¢ 58,06¢ 75.z 153,40¢ 97,497 55,90¢ 57.& 1.1¢ 1.2¢
Total $933,23: $282,41: $650,81¢ 230.5%%$1,121,63: $538,28: $583,35" 108.446 1.2C 1.91

Regional

Analysis

Americas $ 94,98:$ 60,73($ 34,25¢ 56.2% 107,12($ 78,19¢$ 28,93: 37.(% 1.1% 1.2¢
Europe,

Middle

East an

Africa

("EMEA 92,11 50,08¢ 42,02¢ 83.C 83,78: 47,18t 36,59¢ 77.€ 0.91 0.9/

Korea 301,02¢ 99,13: 201,89: 203.7 207,33 236,11 (28,777 (12.2) 0.6¢ 2.3¢
China 266,81: 31,11¢ 235,69¢ 757.k 537,74( 90,72¢ 447,01t 492.7 2.0z 2.92
Taiwan 101,13( 13,88: 87,24¢ 628.F 112,01¢ 34,64. 77,37¢ 223.¢ 1.11 2.5C
Other

Asia

Pacific 77,16¢ 27,46¢ 49,69¢ 180.¢ 73,63: 51,41¢ 22,21/ 43.z 0.9t 1.87
Asia

Pacific 746,13: 171,59: 574,54( 334.¢ 930,72¢ 412,89¢ 517,82 125« 1.2t 2.41
Total $933,23: $282,41: $650,81¢ 230.59%%1,121,63! $538,28: $583,35° 108.46 1.2C 1.91

By segment, LED & Solar sales increased2®8n 2010 due to increases in shipments of owmesesystems as compared to 2009 (334
system shipments in 2010 versus 72 system shiprireB809 in our MOCVD business) as a result ofraanéase in demand for HB LED
backlighting applications and general illuminatirata Storage sales also increased 75.2%, primasifyresult of an increase in capital
spending by data storage customers for capacityearishology buys. LED & Solar sales represente8%of total sales for the year ended
December 31, 2010, up from 72.6% in the prior yBata Storage sales accounted for 14.5% of nes,sddsvn from 27.4% in the prior year.
By region, net sales increased by 334.8% in Asafieaprimarily due to MOCVD sales to HB LED custers. In addition, sales in the
Americas and EMEA also increased 56.4% and 83.8%fpectively. We believe that there will continud&year-to-year variations in the
geographic distribution of sales.

Orders in 2010 increased 108.4% compar@®@®, primarily attributable to a 119.7% increaskED & Solar orders that were
principally driven by HB LED manufacturers incraggiproduction for television and laptop backlightepplications. Data Storage orders
increased 57.3% from the continued increase ircostomer's capital spending for capacity and telcigydouys.

Our book-to-bill ratio for 2010, which iglculated by dividing orders received in a givendiperiod by revenue recognized in the same
time period, was 1.20 to 1 compared to 1.91 to2009. Our backlog as of December 31, 2010 was.$588lion, compared to
$377.3 million as of December 31, 2009. Duringytkar ended December 31, 2010, we experienced okiblgaadjustments of approximatt
$10.7 million, consisting of $12.5 million for ondadjustments ($10.2 million is related to our $alad MBE businesses), offset by
$1.8 million of adjustments related to foreign emty translation. For certain sales arrangementequre a deposit for a portion of the st
price before shipment. As of December 31, 201020@9 we had deposits and advanced billings of 128llion and $59.8 million,
respectively.
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Gross Profit

Gross profit was $443.8 million or 47.6% 2910 compared to $111.2 million or 39.4% in 2008D & Solar gross margins increased
to 47.4% from 40.4% in the prior year, primarilyedio increases in volume (262 additional systemprsbints and 185 additional final
acceptances received compared to prior year iM@E€VD business) and higher average selling pricegled with lower manufacturing
costs. Data Storage gross margins increased t&e48dn 36.6% in the prior year due to increasedsablume and a favorable product mix.
During 2009, Data Storage gross margins were a@gatively impacted by a charge to cost of saleklds million for the write off of
inventory associated with discontinued legacy pobdines.

Operating Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expsngereased by $29.6 million or 47.7%, from thepyiear primarily to support the business
ramp in our LED & Solar segment. Selling, general administrative expenses were 9.8% of net sal2810, compared with 22.0% of net
sales in the prior year.

Research and development expense incr&23el million or 64.2% from the prior year, primgrilue to continued product developm
in areas of high-growth for end market opportusiiieour LED & Solar segment. As a percentage bbakes, research and development
expense decreased to 7.6% from 15.4% in the pear.y

Amortization expense decreased $0.3 millioB.7% from the prior year. This decrease is tyaine to certain intangibles being fully
amortized at the end of 2009.

Restructuring credit of $0.2 million foretlyear ended December 31, 2010, was attributatdeb@ange in estimate in our Data Storage
segment. Restructuring expense of $4.8 milliorttieryear ended December 31, 2009, consisted phinudersonnel severance costs of
$3.4 million associated with the reduction of apgmately 164 employees in our workforce. Additidgaive took a $1.4 million charge
during the second quarter of 2009 for costs astatiaith vacating a leased facility in Camarill@lirnia and the related relocation of 27
employees.

During 2009, the Company recorded a $0l8amiasset impairment charge. The charge wasroperty, plant and equipment no longer
being utilized in our Data Storage segment.

Interest Expense, n

Interest expense, net for 2010 was $6.6anjlcomprised of $4.7 million in cash interestd&8.5 million in non-cash interest primarily
relating to our convertible debt, partially offést $1.6 million in interest income earned on owstcand short-term investment balances.
Interest expense, net for 2009 was $6.9 milliomeased of $4.9 million in cash interest and $2i8iom in non-cash interest, partially offset
by $0.8 million in interest income. The non-casteiast expense is related to accounting rulesdlogtires a portion of convertible debt to be
allocated to equity in 2010 and 2009 and accreifaebt discounts and amortization of debt premiuvetated to our short-term investments
in 2010.

Income Taxe

The income tax provision attributable tatiouing operations for the year ended Decembe2B10 was $10.5 million compared to
$2.6 million or 22.9% of income before taxes in gn®r year. The 2010 provision for income taxeduded $8.0 million relating to our
foreign operations and $2.5 million relating to domestic operations. The 2009 provision for incaaxes included $1.6 million relating to
our foreign operations and $1.0 million relatingoter domestic operations. Our effective tax ratevger than the statutory rate as a result of
the utilization of our domestic net
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operating loss and tax credit carry forwards. Hn¢icipated that our effective tax rate for 201ill approach the U.S. statutory rate
Discontinued Operation

Discontinued operations represent the tesidilthe operations of our disposed Metrology segmvhich was sold to Bruker on
October 7, 2010, reported as discontinued opemtibine 2010 results reflect an operational lossreafixes of $0.8 million and a gain on
disposal of $156.3 million before taxes.

Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

The following table shows our Consolidagtdtements of Operations, percentages of sales;amparisons between 2009 and 2008
(dollars in 000s):

Dollar and
Year ended December 31, Percentage
Change
2009 2008 Year to Year
Net sales $ 282,41: 100.% $ 314,93 100.(% $ (32,529 (10.9%
Cost of sale: 171,17 60.€ 191,66« 60.¢ (20,487 (10.7)
Gross profit 111,23! 39.4 123,27: 39.1 (12,03¢) (9.8
Operating expenses (incom
Selling, general and
administrative 62,15 22.C 60,54 19.2 1,60¢ 2.7
Research and developmt 43,48: 15.4 39,60¢ 12.¢ 3,87¢ 9.8
Amortization 5,16¢ 1.8 8,86¢ 2.8 (3,696 (41.79)
Restructuring 4,83 1.7 9,42¢ 3.C (4,587 (48.7)
Asset impairmen 304 0.1 51,38 16.2 (51,087 (99.9)
Other, ne 24 — (419 (0.2 43¢ *
Total operating expens 115,96 41.1 169,41 53.¢ (53,449 (31.5)
Operating los: (4,7372) 1.7 (46,140 (14.9) 41,40¢ (89.7)
Interest expense, n 6,85( 24 6,72¢ 2.1 121 1.8
Gain on extinguishment of
debt — — (3,75¢) (1.2 3,75¢  (100.0
Loss from continuing
operations before income
taxes (11,587) 4.7 (49,11) (15.6¢) 37,52¢ (76.9)
Income tax provisiol 2,647 0.9 1,722 0.t 92t 53.7
Loss from continuing
operations (14,229 (5.0 (50,839 (16.]) 36,60: (72.0)
Discontinued operation:
Loss from discontinued
operations, before
income taxe! (2,709 (2.0) (24,419 (7.9 21,71¢ (88.9
Income tax (benefit)
provision (1,300 (0.5 17C 0.1 (1,470 *
Loss from discontinued
operations (1,409 (0.5) (24,589 (7.9 23,18¢ (94.9)
Net loss (15,637 (5.5) (75,427 (23.9) 59,78¢ (79.9
Net loss attributable t
noncontrolling interes (65) — (230) (0.2) 165 (71.9)

Net loss attributable to Veer $ (15,56") 5.5%$ (75,19) (23.9%$ 59,62 (79.9%

* Not Meaningful
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Net Sales and Orde

Net sales of $282.4 million for the yeaded December 31, 2009, were down 10.3% compar2@s. The following is an analysis of
sales and orders by segment and by region (dati&@80s):

Sales Orders
Year ended Dollar and Percentage Year ended Dollar and Percentage = Book to Bill
December 31, Change December 31, Change Ratio
2009 2008 Year to Year 2009 2008 Year to Year 2009 2008
Segment
Analysis
LED & Solar $ 205,15! $ 165,81: $ 39,34: 23.7% $ 440,78: $ 160,16. $ 280,62. 175.2% 2.1 0.97
Data Storagt 77,25¢ 149,12 (71,869 (48.2) 97,497 138,65: (41,15¢) (29.7) 1.2¢ 0.9%
Total $ 282,41 $ 314,93 $ (32,52) (10.9)%$% 538,28: $ 298,81 $ 239,46t 80.1% 1.91 0.9%
Regional
Analysis
Americas $ 60,73( $ 130,57 $ (69,849 (53.5%% 78,19¢ $ 108,17: $ (29,97¢) (27.9% 1.2¢ 0.8
EMEA 50,08¢ 57,567 (7,479 (13.0 47,18¢ 51,73: (4,545) (8.8 0.94¢ 0.9C
Korea 99,13 8,887 90,24¢ 1,015t 236,11 15,86¢ 220,25( 1,388.¢ 236 1.7¢
China 31,11« 19,57¢ 11,53¢ 58.¢ 90,724 32,20: 58,52: 181.7 2.9z 1.6t
Taiwan 13,88: 39,12/ (25,247) (64.5) 34,64: 30,99¢ 3,64:% 11.€ 2.5C 0.7¢
Other Asia
Pacific 27,46¢ 59,20¢ (31,749 (53.6) 51,41¢ 59,847 (8,42¢) (141 1.87 1.01
Asia Pacific 171,59 126,79! 44,79¢ 35.2 412,89¢ 138,91. 273,98 197.2 241 1.1C
Total $ 282,41 $ 314,93! $ (32,529 (10.9)%$% 538,28: $ 298,81 $ 239,46t 80.1% 1.91 0.9%

By segment, LED & Solar sales increased%3due to an increase in end user demand for HB h&dtklighting applications, higher
average selling prices and strong customer acceptaiiVeeco's newest generation systems. Offsdttisgncrease, Data Storage sales were
down 48.2%, primarily as a result of a slowdowrcapital spending by data storage customers. LEDl&rSales represented 72.6% of total
sales for the year ended December 31, 2009, up 32696 in the prior year. Data Storage sales adeduior 27.4% of net sales, down from
47.4% in the prior year. By region, net sales iase&l by 35.3% in Asia Pacific, primarily due to MZITsales to HB LED customers, while
sales in the Americas and EMEA declined 53.5% a18%, respectively.

Orders in 2009 increased 80.1% compar@®@8, primarily attributable to a 175.2% increaseED & Solar orders that were
principally driven by HB LED manufacturers incraagiproduction for television and laptop backlightapplications and demand for CIGS
deposition systems and components. Data Storagesodéclined 29.7% from the continued slow dowauncustomers capital spending.

Our book-to-bill ratio for 2009 was 1.91%t@ompared to 0.95 to 1 in 2008. Our backlog @3axfember 31, 2009 was $377.3 million,
compared to $125.6 million as of December 31, 2008ing the year ended December 31, 2009, we expeed net backlog adjustments of
approximately $4.1 million, consisting of $3.2 riwh for order cancellations, primarily in the fitglf of the year, and $0.9 million of
adjustments related to foreign currency translattar certain sales arrangements we require a ddpoa portion of the sales price before
shipment. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008 we kadsgits and advanced billings of $59.8 million &i6.1 million, respectively.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased to $111.2 milliorB88c4% in 2009 compared to $123.3 million or 39.ih%008. Despite the overall $32.5 milli
decrease in sales, gross margin remained flat goifirdue to the favorable impact of significansteeductions from a reduced workforce,
lower facilities costs associated with closing andsolidating facilities and the outsourcing oftasr Data Storage product manufacturing to
Asia. LED & Solar gross margins increased from 38i8 the prior year to 40.4%,
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primarily due to the impact of our lower fixed casitucture and a 23.7% increase in sales volumestisas favorable pricing and higher
margins on new MOCVD products. Data Storage graagims decreased from 40.2% in the prior year t6%6mainly due to decreased s:
volume partially offset by reduced costs due to@yense reduction plans compared to the prior. ¥¥#ta Storage gross margins were also
negatively impacted by a charge to cost of sale&kld million during 2009 for the write off of inmtory associated with discontinued legacy
product lines.

Operating Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expsrnsereased by $1.6 million or 2.7%, from the psiear primarily due to the ramp-up in our
MOCVD business in the second half of 2009. Sellgeneral and administrative expenses were 22.08étafales in 2009, compared with
19.2% of net sales in the prior year.

Research and development expense incr&3sgadnillion or 9.8% from the prior year, primarilipe to investments in areas that we
believe are higher-growth end market opportunifesticularly in our LED & Solar segment. As a pErtage of net sales, research and
development expense increased to 15.4% from 12h@¥eiprior year.

Amortization expense decreased $3.7 millioA1.7% from the prior year. This decrease isnlgadue to certain intangibles in LED &
Solar being fully amortized at the end of 2008 &4 &s the write-off of purchased technology ind@8&torage in connection with the asset
impairment charges recorded during the fourth quant 2008.

Restructuring expense of $4.8 million foe tyear ended December 31, 2009, consisted prinadrgersonnel severance costs of
$3.4 million associated with the reduction of apgmately 164 employees in our workforce. Additidgalve took a $1.4 million charge
during 2009 for costs associated with vacatingaadd facility in Camarillo, California, during teecond quarter and the related relocation of
27 employees.

During the second quarter of 2009, the Camyprecorded a $0.3 million asset impairment charbe charge was for property, plant and
equipment no longer being utilized in our Data &ger reporting unit. During 2008, the Company reedra $51.4 million asset impairment
charge, of which $51.1 million was recorded dutimg fourth quarter and $0.3 million was recordedrdythe first quarter. The fourth quar
charge consisted of $30.4 million related to godid®19.6 million related to intangible assets &1id1 million in property, plant and
equipment. The first quarter charge consisted d $llion associated with property and equipmesaradoned as part of the consolidation of
our corporate headquarters into our Plainview itgcil

Interest Expense, n

Interest expense, net for 2009 was $6.8anjlcomprised of $4.9 million in cash interestl&§®.8 million in non-cash interest relating to
our convertible debt, partially offset by $0.8 naill in interest income earned on our cash and gbort investment balances. Interest
expense, net for 2008 was $6.7 million, comprise®6o4 million in cash interest and $2.9 millionrion-cash interest, partially offset by
$2.6 million in interest income. The non-cash ietrexpense in both years is related to accountieg that requires a portion of convertible
debt to be allocated to equity. The decrease & #illlion in cash interest expense from the prieaywas primarily due to the repayment of
$25.3 million of our convertible notes in the fduguarter of 2008. Interest income decreased bg i$illion due principally to the lower
interest rate yields on cash balances investesh@@®09 compared to the prior year.
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Gain on Extinguishment of Debt

During the fourth quarter of 2008, we madle repurchases of $12.2 million in aggregate pp@lcamount of our convertible
subordinated notes for $7.2 million in cash, ofeth$7.1 million related to principal and $0.1 nahirelated to accrued interest, reducing the
amount outstanding from $117.8 million to $105.@ion. As a result of these repurchases, we reabedeet gain from the extinguishment of
debt of approximately $3.8 million. There were epurchases during 2009.

Income Taxe

The income tax provision attributable toitiouing operations for the year ended DecembeRB29 was $2.6 million compared to
$1.7 million in the prior year. The 2009 provisifam income taxes included $1.6 million relatingotar foreign operations and $1.0 million
relating to our domestic operations. Due to sigaifit domestic net operating loss carry forwardschvare fully reserved by a valuation
allowance, our domestic operations are not expéoct@ttur significant federal income taxes untitlsiime as the net operating losses are
utilized.

Discontinued Operation

Discontinued operations represent the tesiilthe operations of our disposed Metrology semmwhich was sold to Bruker on
October 7, 2010.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, our principal capital requinents have included the funding of acquisitionpjtedexpenditures and the repayment of debt.
We traditionally have generated cash from operatamd debt and stock issuances. Our ability torgémesufficient cash flows from
operations is dependent on the continued demanalfoproducts and services.

Cash and cash equivalents as of Decemh&@03D was $245.1 million. This amount representserease of $96.6 million from
December 31, 2009. We also had short-term invedtraetd restricted cash of $394.2 million and $6illion, respectively, as of
December 31, 2010. A summary of the current yesin daw activity is as follows in thousand3:

Year ended
December 31,
2010 2009
Net income (loss $ 361,76( $ (15,63)
Net cash provided by operati
activities $ 194,21 $ 59,03¢
Net cash used in investing activiti (121,62)) (154,76
Net cash provided by financir
activities 25,50¢ 141,86¢
Effect of exchange rates on cash a
cash equivalent (1,46¢€) (163)
Net increase in cash and c:
equivalents 96,63: 45,97¢
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of yea 148,50( 102,52:
Cash and cash equivalents at end «
year $ 24513. $ 148,50(

Cash provided by operations during the yealed December 31, 2010 was $194.2 million conapiax&59.0 million during the year
ended December 31, 2009. The $194.2 million cashiged by operations in 2010 included adjustmemté $361.8 million of net income
for non-cash items, which reduced the cash provigedet income by $168.3 million. The adjustmerssisted of $12.9 million of
depreciation and amortization, $9.6 million of ncash equity-based compensation expense, $3.1 mdfiamortization of debt discount,
$(25.1) million of deferred income taxes, $(23.3)ion of excess tax benefits from stock option exses, $(156.3) million of gain on
disposal of our
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Metrology segment and $10.0 million of discontinugxtrations. Net cash provided by operations wesr&bly impacted by a net

$0.7 million of changes in operating assets arullliges, which included an $83.2 million increaseaccounts receivable, a $49.5 million
increase in inventories, due to the significantéase in orders in our LED & Solar segment compsreaD09, a $23.3 million increase in
supplier deposits and a $5.5 million increase staintinued operations, partially offset by an $88illion increase in accrued expenses,
principally resulting from customer deposits asated primarily with the significant increase in erslin our LED & Solar segment and a
$78.9 million increase in income taxes payable hGasvided by operations during the year ended Béee 31, 2009 was $59.0 million and
included adjustments to the $15.6 million net ifassnon-cash items, which primarily consisted o8®Lmillion of depreciation and
amortization, $7.5 million of non-cash stock-basethpensation expense, $2.8 million of amortizatibdebt discount, a $1.5 million non-
cash inventory write-off and $8.8 million of dis¢mmued operations. Net cash provided by operatio2®09 was favorably impacted by a net
$40.1 million of changes in operating assets aauilities.

Cash used in investing activities of $12tibion during the year ended December 31, 20&8uited primarily from $506.1 million of
purchases of short-term investments, $10.7 milliboapital expenditures, $76.1 million of transfersestricted cash and $0.5 million of
discontinued operations, partially offset by prateef $33.0 million from the sale of shaerm investments, $225.2 million net proceeds 1
the disposal of our Metrology segment and $213l8amifrom the maturity of CDAR's. Cash used iné@sting activities of $154.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2009, resulted priyrfanin $135.0 million of purchases of short-termagatments, $7.5 million of capital
expenditures, $0.9 million of discontinued openasio$9.8 million of earn-out payments to the formeners of businesses acquired and
$2.4 million for certain acquisitions, partiallyfeét by $0.8 million of proceeds from the sale afgerty, plant and equipment.

Cash provided by financing activities o6 million during the year ended December 31, 2@b@sisted primarily of $45.2 million of
cash proceeds from stock option exercises and $2iliB8n excess tax benefits from stock optionsreiges, partially offset by $4.6 million
restricted stock tax withholdings, $38.1 millionmfrchases of treasury stock and $0.2 million payenents of longerm debt. Cash provide
by financing activities of $141.9 million duringeltyear ended December 31, 2009, consisted prinarit30.1 million in cash proceeds
from the issuance of common stock through a secgmileblic offering and $12.6 million from stock agt exercises partially offset by
$0.6 million of restricted stock tax withholdingsca$0.2 million of repayments of long-term debt.

As of December 31, 2010 we had notes ob®Lillion principal amount outstanding. The naaesrue interest at 4.125% per annum
and mature on April 15, 2012. The notes meet theria for determining the effect of the assumenvarsion using the treasury stock method
of accounting, since we have the ability and therinto settle the principal amount of the notesash. Under the terms of the notes, we may
pay the principal amount of converted notes in @cash shares of common stock. We intend to pay suoounts in cash.

The notes are initially convertible into. 8877 shares of common stock per $1,000 principalumt of notes (equivalent to a conversion
price of $27.23 per share or a premium of 38% tiverclosing market price for our common stock omil&f6, 2007). On or after April 20,
2011, we may redeem the notes, in whole or in farcash at 100% of the principal amount of theerdo be redeemed and the conversion
premium in shares of our common stock plus accameblunpaid interest to, but not including, the reptton date. Holders may convert the
notes at any time during the period beginning ondsy 15, 2012 through the close of business osehend day prior to April 15, 2012 and
earlier upon the occurrence of certain events dinlyour common stock trading at prices equal talmve 130% of the conversion price for
at least 20 trading days during the final 30 trgdiays of the immediately preceding fiscal quar¢ithe end of the fourth quarter of 2010,
our common stock was trading at prices equal @bove 130% of the conversion price for the speatifieriod and, as a result, the convertible
notes are convertible during the first quarter @2 If the
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convertible notes are converted, we have the glaitil intent to pay the principal balance of né¢eslered for conversion in cash. We will re-
perform this test each quarter up to and includivegfourth quarter of 2011. Accordingly, the bakawot the convertible notes at December 31,
2010 has been classified as current in our CorstelitiBalance Sheet. On February 14, 2011, at ttienopf the holder, $7.5 million of notes
were tendered for conversion at a price of $45&%5hare in a net share settlement. As a resulpaickthe principal amount of $7.5 million

in cash and issued 111,318 shares of our commok.shacordingly, in the first quarter of 2011 wellviake a charge for the related
unamortized debt discount totaling $0.3 million. Y&y interest on these notes on April 15 and Octdbef each year. The notes are
unsecured and are effectively subordinated tofallo senior and secured indebtedness and toddbtedness and other liabilities of our
subsidiaries.

As of December 31, 2010, we had $76.1 amlbf restricted cash consisting of $22.9 millibattrelates to the proceeds received from
the sale of our Metrology segment. This cash id irebscrow and is restricted from use for one yran the closing date of the transactiol
secure any losses arising out of breaches of repie$sons, warranties and covenants we made isttio& purchase agreement and related
documents. Additionally, we also had restrictechaamnsisting of $53.2 million which serves as deltal for bank guarantees that provide
financial assurance that the Company will fulféirain customer obligations. This cash is heldustady by the issuing bank, and is restricted
as to withdrawal or use while the related bank gnt@es are outstanding.

As of December 31, 2010, our contractuahaabligations and commitments are as followsHousands):

Payments due by period

Less than More than
Contractual Cash Obligations and Commitments Total 1 year 1-3years  3-5years 5 years
Long-term debt(1 $ 10845 $ 10580 ¢ 51€¢ $ 604 $ 1,53¢
Interest on debt(1 6,97¢ 4,57¢ 1,83: 29¢ 27C
Operating leases(: 9,46¢ 3,91¢ 4,08: 1,23¢ 23C
Letters of credit and bank guarantee: 136,31! 136,31! — — —
Purchase commitments( 200,29¢ 200,29¢ — — —

$ 461,50 $ 450,90 $ 6,432 $ 2,13t $ 2,03«

Q) Long-term debt obligations consist of repaymerwf convertible subordinated notes and relatedésteas well as
mortgage and interest payments for our St. Paul,fatity.

2 In accordance with relevant accounting guidanceage®unt for our office leases as operating leadthsexpiration
dates ranging from 2010 through 2017. There argduninimum annual rental payments required urfietdases.
Leasehold improvements made at the beginning dfidng a lease are amortized over the shortereofémaining lease
term or the estimated useful lives of the assets.

3) Issued by a bank on our behalf as needed. We hadslef credit outstanding of $0.2 million and bayjuarantees
outstanding of $135.8 million, of which, $83.2 n@th can be drawn against lines of credit in ouefgn subsidiaries ar
$52.6 million that is collateralized against caséttis restricted from use.

4) Purchase commitments are primarily for inventorgdus manufacturing our products. It has been oactjze not to
enter into purchase commitments extending beyoredyear.
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We believe that existing cash balancesstodt-term investments together with cash generfaded operations will be sufficient to meet
our projected working capital and other cash flequirements for the next twelve months, as wethiascontractual obligations, detailed in
the above table. We believe we will be able to noeetobligation to repay the $105.6 million suboated notes that mature on April 15, 2
with available cash and short-term investment# oecessary, through a combination of conversioihe notes outstanding, cash generated
from operations and other means.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet amanats that have, or are reasonably likely to haweyrent or future material effect on our
financial condition, changes in financial conditioavenue or expenses, results of operationsdiiyyicapital expenditures or capital
resources other than operating leases, lettenedit@nd bank guarantees, and purchase commitrdisetssed in the preceding "Contractual
Cash Obligations and Commitments" table.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

General: Our discussion and analysis of our financialdition and results of operations are based uporCounsolidated Financial
Statements, which have been prepared in accorddtitaccounting principles generally accepted m thmited States. The preparation of
these financial statements requires us to makeatsts and judgments that affect the reported amairassets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses. Management continually monitors and etesuts estimates and judgments, including thels¢ed to bad debts, inventories,
intangible and other long-lived assets, incomedawarranty obligations, restructuring costs, amdtiogent liabilities, including potential
litigation. Management bases its estimates andweags on historical experience and on various ddetors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the resulibioh form the basis for making judgments aboutdieying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sourcesud results may differ from these estimates unlifézrent assumptions or conditions. We
consider certain accounting policies related t@nexe recognition, short-term investments, the t&loaf inventories, the impairment of
goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assetsg impairment of long-lived assets, fair value measients, warranty costs, income taxes and
equity-based compensation to be critical policigs tb the estimation processes involved in each.

Revenue Recognition: We recognize revenue based on current accaugtiidance provided by the Securities and Exchange
Commission ("SEC") and the Financial Accountingngtds Board ("FASB"). Our revenue transactionfuihe sales of products under
multiple-element arrangements. Revenue under greaagements is allocated to each element baseatditgpestimated fair market value.

We consider a broad array of facts anduoinstances when evaluating each of our sales amserge in determining when to recognize
revenue, including specific terms of the purchaskeg contractual obligations to the customer cmplexity of the customer's post-delivery
acceptance provisions, customer creditworthinedgtaminstallation process. Management also corssitie party responsible for installati
whether there are process specification requiresnghich need to be demonstrated before final sifhara payment, whether Veeco can
replicate the field testing conditions and procedtin our factory and our past experience with destrating and installing a particular
system. Sales arrangements are reviewed on a gasa&s® basis; however, the Company's revenue riimrgprotocol for established
systems is as described below.

System revenue is generally recognized @ghgpment or delivery provided title and risk o$sohas passed to the customer, evidence of
an arrangement exists, prices are contractualgdfir determinable, collectability is reasonablsuaed and there are no material uncertail
regarding customer acceptance. Revenue from iastallservices is recognized at the time acceptance
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received from the customer. If the arrangement doésneet all the above criteria, the entire amaditihe sales arrangement is deferred until
the criteria have been met or all elements hava bebvered to the customer or been completed.

For those transactions on which we recagristems revenue, either at the time of shipmea¢lovery, our sales and contractual
arrangements with customers do not contain pravssfor right of return or forfeiture, refund or ethpurchase price concessions. In the rare
instances where such provisions are included, tragany defers all revenue until customer acceptanaehieved. In cases where products
are sold with a retention of 10% to 20%, whichyjsi¢ally payable by the customer when installatmd field acceptance provisions are
completed, the customer has the right to withhlolsl payment until such provisions have been aclkiewe defer the greater of the retention
amount or the fair value of the installation onteyss that we recognize revenue at the time of shipror delivery.

For new products, new applications of éxgsproducts or for products with substantive costoacceptance provisions where
performance cannot be fully assessed prior to mgetjreed upon specifications at the customerrsitenue is deferred as deferred profit in
the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets dgddaognized upon completion of installation aedeipt of final customer acceptance.

Our systems are principally sold to manufeers in the HB-LED, the data storage and soldustries. Sales arrangements for these
systems generally include customer acceptanceiarliased upon Veeco and/or customer specificatimsr to shipment a customer source
inspection of the system is performed in our facilir test data is sent to the customer documeititiagthe system is functioning within
agreed upon specifications. Such source inspeotitest data replicates the acceptance testingviidie performed at the customer's site
prior to final acceptance of the system. Custoreeeptance provisions include reassembly and iasitadl of the system at the customer site,
which includes performing functional or mechanitest procedures (i.e. hardware checks, leak tesiamgflow monitoring and quality cont
checks of the basic features of the product.) Aalditlly, a material demonstration process may bfopmed to validate the functionality of
the product. Upon meeting the agreed upon spetiditathe customer approves final acceptance oftbeuct.

Veeco generally is required to install thesoducts and demonstrate compliance with accept@sts at the customer's facility. Such
installations typically are not considered compdex the installation process is not deemed essémtiae functionality of the equipment
because it does not involve significant changabkedeatures or capabilities of the equipment wolve building complex interfaces or
connections. We have a demonstrated history of tating such installations in a timely, consistergmmer and can reliably estimate the ¢
of such. In such cases, the test environment afagilities prior to shipment replicates the cusésim environment. While there are others in
the industry with sufficient knowledge about thetallation process for our systems as a practiedlan most customers engage the Com,
to perform the installation services.

In Japan, where our contractual terms witstomers generally specify risk of loss and tidasfers upon customer acceptance, revenue
is recognized and the customer is billed upon ptadiwritten customer acceptance.

Revenue related to maintenance and seceicgacts is recognized ratably over the applicablgract term. Component and spare part
revenue is recognized at the time of shipment bvely in accordance with the terms of the applieatales arrangement.

Short-Term Investments: We determine the appropriate balance shedifitation of our investments at the time of pusdand
evaluate the classification at each balance statet As part of our cash management program, wetaiaia portfolio of marketable
securities which are classified as available-fde-sBhese securities include FDIC insured corpdoateds, treasury bills, commercial
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paper and CDARS with maturities of greater thaeé¢tmonths when purchased in principal amountswatn aggregated with interest to
accrue over the term, will not exceed FDIC lim@ecurities classified as available-fale are carried at fair market value, with thesafized
gains and losses, net of tax, included in the detextion of comprehensive income (loss) and regadrieequity. Net realized gains and losses
are included in net income (loss) attributable &ek0.

Inventory Valuation: Inventories are stated at the lower of cosh@ppally first-in, first-out method) or market. Magement evaluates
the need to record adjustments for impairment eéiory on a quarterly basis. Our policy is to asgbe valuation of all inventories,
including raw materials, work-in-process, finistgambds, and spare parts and other service inver@golete or slow-moving inventory,
based upon historical usage, or inventory in exoéssanagement's estimated usage for the next Ii2h'saequirements is written-down to
its estimated market value, if less than its dosterent in the estimates of market value are mamagt's estimates related to our future
manufacturing schedules, customer demand, techicalagnd/or market obsolescence, possible altarmases, and ultimate realization of
excess inventory.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangibles&s$ Impairment: The Company does not amortize goodwill or igtale assets with
indefinite useful lives, but instead tests the beds in these asset accounts for impairment dtdeasially at the reporting unit level. Our
policy is to perform this annual impairment testhie fourth quarter of each fiscal year or moreiently if impairment indicators arise.
Impairment indicators include, among other condsiccash flow deficits, a historical or anticipatiEtline in revenue or operating profit,
adverse legal or regulatory developments, and amahtlecrease in the fair value of some or athefassets.

Pursuant to relevant accounting pronouncesnge are required to determine if it is apprdpria use the operating segment as defined
under accounting guidance as the reporting uroherlevel below the operating segment, dependingtather certain criteria are met. We
have identified two reporting units that are regdito be reviewed for impairment. The reportingsiaire LED & Solar and Data Storage. In
identifying the reporting units management congdehe economic characteristics of operating setgneaduding the products and services
provided, production processes, types or classeastbmer and product distribution.

We perform this impairment test by firshgmaring the fair value of our reporting units teittrespective carrying amount. When
determining the estimated fair value of a reporting, we utilize a discounted future cash flow @ggh since reported quoted market prices
are not available for our reporting units. Devefapthe estimate of the discounted future cash fexuires significant judgment and
projections of future financial performance. Thg kssumptions used in developing the discountaddutash flows are the projection of
future revenues and expenses, working capital reaqugints, residual growth rates and the weightechgeecost of capital. In developing our
financial projections, we consider historical datarrent internal estimates and market growth tsefdhanges to any of these assumptions
could materially change the fair value of the réipgrunit. We reconcile the aggregate fair valuewf reporting units to the Company's
adjusted market capitalization as a supportingutafion. The adjusted market capitalization is gkdted by multiplying the average share
price of our common stock for the last ten tradilags prior to the measurement date by the numbeuntstanding common shares and adding
a control premium.

If the carrying value of the reporting snétxceed the fair value we would then comparertiptied fair value of our goodwill to the
carrying amount in order to determine the amourihefimpairment, if any.

Definite-Lived Intangible and Long-Livedsa&ts: Intangible assets consist of purchased techgplkustomer-related intangible assets,
patents, trademarks, covenants not-to-competayadtiicenses and deferred financing costs. Puech&xhnology consists of the core
proprietary manufacturing

41




technologies associated with the products andinfferobtained through acquisition and are initiaélgorded at fair value. Customer-related
intangible assets, patents, trademarks and cow&natito-compete are initially recorded at fairmeahnd software licenses and deferred
financing costs are initially recorded at costatgible assets with definitive useful lives are dimed using the straighine method over the
estimated useful lives for periods ranging fromeng to 17 years.

Property, plant and equipment are recoedaxst. Depreciation is provided over the estighatgeful lives of the related assets using the
straight-line method for financial statement pugmsAmortization of leasehold improvements is coraguwsing the straighine method ove
the shorter of the remaining lease term or theneg&d useful lives of the improvements.

Long-lived assets, such as property, pmt, equipment and intangible assets with defiustful lives, are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the carrying amount of an asset may notteverable. Impairment indicators
include, among other conditions, cash flow defjatéistorical or anticipated decline in revenueperating profit, adverse legal or regulat
developments and a material decrease in the fhiewad some or all of the assets. Assets are gbapthe lowest level for which there are
identifiable cash flows that are largely indepertdsrthe cash flows generated by other asset grdepsoverability of assets to be held and
used is measured by a comparison of the carryirguatof an asset to the estimated undiscountedefutash flow expected to be generated
by the asset. If the carrying amount of an assegeds its estimated future cash flows, an impaitrolearge is recognized by the amount by
which the carrying amount of the asset exceedfaihgalue of the asset.

Fair Value Measurements: Accounting guidance for our non-financial assetd non-financial liabilities requires that wedaiibse the
type of inputs we use to value our assets anditiabj based on three categories of inputs anddfin such. Level 1 inputs are quoted,
unadjusted prices in active markets for identicgkss or liabilities that the company has the tghili access at the measurement date. Level 2
inputs are inputs other than quoted prices inclusighin Level 1 that are observable for the assdiadility, either directly or indirectly, such
as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilitlesvel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for thetassliability. Unobservable inputs are used to
measure fair value to the extent that observalgetiare not available, thereby allowing for situas in which there is little, if any, market
activity for the asset or liability at the measuesdate. These requirements apply to our longilassets, goodwill and intangible assets. We
use Level 3 inputs to value all of such assetsthadnethodology we use to value such assets hahaoged since December 31, 2009. The
Company primarily applies the market approach éourring fair value measurements.

Warranty Costs: We estimate the costs that may be incurredruh@ewarranty we provide and record a liabilitythe amount of such
costs at the time the related revenue is recogniz&timated warranty costs are determined by amajyapecific product and historical
configuration statistics and regional warranty sapposts. Our warranty obligation is affected bgduct failure rates, material usage, and
labor costs incurred in correcting product failudeising the warranty period. Unforeseen componaihires or exceptional component
performance can also result in changes to warreodis. If actual warranty costs differ substantifibm our estimates, revisions to the
estimated warranty liability would be required.

Income Taxes: As part of the process of preparing our Conlstéid Financial Statements, we are required toatgiour income taxes
in each of the jurisdictions in which we operathisIprocess involves estimating the actual curt@nexpense, together with assessing
temporary differences resulting from differing tmaant of items for tax and accounting purposesselaifferences result in deferred tax
assets and liabilities, which are included withim €onsolidated Balance Sheets. The carrying vafloeir deferred tax assets is adjusted by a
partial valuation allowance to recognize the extenwhich the future tax benefits will be recogmizn a more likely than not basis. Our net
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deferred tax assets consist primarily of net opggdbss and tax credit carry forwards, and timilifferences between the book and tax
treatment of inventory, acquired intangible asaet$ other asset valuations. Realization of thetdeferred tax assets is dependent upon our
ability to generate future taxable income.

We record valuation allowances in ordereiuce our deferred tax assets to the amount eegoexbe realized. In assessing the adeq
of recorded valuation allowances, we consider &tsaof factors, including the scheduled reverdalaferred tax liabilities, future taxable
income, and prudent and feasible tax planningesiras. Under the relevant accounting guidancepfastuch as current and previous
operating losses are given significantly greateightethan the outlook for future profitability iretermining the deferred tax asset carrying
value.

Relevant accounting guidance addressedetegmination of how tax benefits claimed or expddb be claimed on a tax return shoul
recorded in the financial statements. Under sudtiagnece, we must recognize the tax benefit fromrazertain tax position only if it is more
likely than not that the tax position will be suetad on examination by the taxing authorities, bas®the technical merits of the position.
tax benefits recognized in the financial statem&oi® such uncertain tax positions are measureeddas the largest benefit that has a gre
than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upoltimate resolution.

Equity-based Compensation:Equity-based compensation cost is measurdtearant date, based on the fair value of the aaadds
recognized as expense over the employee requisities period. In order to determine the fair vabfistock options on the date of grant, we
apply the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Irérerin the model are assumptions related to risg-iinterest rate, dividend yield, expected
stock-price volatility and option life.

The risk-free rate assumed in valuing thioos is based on the U.S. Treasury yield cuneffiect at the time of grant for the expected
term of the option. The dividend yield assumptishased on the Company's historical and futureaapen of dividend payouts. While the
risk-free interest rate and dividend yield are kagsjective assumptions, typically based on faaddath derived from public sources, the
expected stock-price volatility and option life asgptions require a level of judgment which makentheitical accounting estimates.

We use an expected stock-price volatilggiamption that is a combination of both historiaahtility, calculated based on the daily
closing prices of our common stock over a periogabtp the expected term of the option and implieldtility, utilizing market data of
actively traded options on our common stock, whiddh obtained from public data sources. We belieaethe historical volatility of the price
of our common stock over the expected term of fhten is a strong indicator of the expected futwwkatility and that implied volatility takes
into consideration market expectations of how faitwwlatility will differ from historical volatility Accordingly, we believe a combination of
both historical and implied volatility provides thest estimate of the future volatility of the metrrice of our common stock.

The expected term, representing the peridioe that options granted are expected to bstanding, is estimated using a lattice-based
model incorporating historical post vest exercisd amployee termination behavior.

We estimate forfeitures using our histdreogoerience, which is adjusted over the requsiterice period based on the extent to which
actual forfeitures differ or are expected to diffeom such estimates. Because of the significemdunt of judgment used in these calculati
it is reasonably likely that circumstances may eahg estimate to change.

With regard to the weighted-average oplilgnassumption, we consider the exercise behadipast grants and model the pattern of
aggregate exercises.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncement

Business Combinations: In December 2010, the FASB issued amended go@deelated to Business Combinations. The amendment
affect any public entity that enters into businessbinations that are material on an individusghggregate basis. The amendments specify
that if a public entity presents comparative finahstatements, the entity should disclose revemgeearnings of the combined entity as
though the business combination(s) that occurreshgldhe current year had occurred as of the baginof the comparable prior annual
reporting period only. The amendments also exphadupplemental pro forma disclosures to includeszription of the nature and amount
of material, nonrecurring pro forma adjustmentgdiy attributable to the business combinationuded in the reported pro forma revenue
and earnings. The amendments are effective pragplctor business combinations for which the asgion date is on or after the beginning
of the first annual reporting period beginning arafier December 15, 2010. Early adoption is pdeditThe Company will assess the impact
of these amendments on its consolidated finantagéments if and when an acquisition occurs.

Intangibles—Goodwill and Other: In December 2010, the FASB issued amended go@deelated to Intangibles—Goodwill and Other.
The amendments modify Step 1 of the goodwill impeint test for reporting units with zero or negatieerying amounts. For those reporting
units, an entity is required to perform Step 2haf goodwill impairment test if it is more likelyah not that a goodwill impairment exists. In
determining whether it is more likely than not tgabdwill impairment exists, an entity should calesiwhether there are any adverse
qualitative factors indicating that impairment nmeyst. The qualitative factors are consistent whih existing guidance and examples, which
require that goodwill of a reporting unit be testedimpairment between annual tests if an eventicor circumstances change that would
more likely than not reduce the fair value of aoripg unit below its carrying amount. For publiatides, the amendments are effective for
fiscal years, and interim periods within those geleginning after December 15, 2010. Early adagiaot permitted. The Company does
not believe that this guidance will have a matangact on its consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent Events:The FASB has issued amended guidance for subsegvents. The amendment removes the requirdorem
SEC filer to disclose a date through which subsetgeeents have been evaluated in both issued ais®definancial statements. Revised
financial statements include financial statemeetssed as a result of either correction of an esraetrospective application of U.S. GAAP.
The FASB also clarified that if the financial staents have been revised, then an entity that ism&EC filer should disclose both the date
that the financial statements were issued or adaile be issued and the date the revised finastagééments were issued or available to be
issued. The FASB believes these amendments renateatial conflicts with the SEC's literature. Aflthe amendments were effective upon
issuance (February 24, 2010). The adoption ofghidance did not have a material impact on the Goys consolidated financial
statements.

Fair Value Measurements: In January 2010, the FASB issued amended go@dfom Fair Value Measurements and Disclosuress Thi
update requires some new disclosures and claefisting disclosure requirements about fair val@asurement. The FASB's objective is to
improve these disclosures and, thus, increaseahsgarency in financial reporting. Specificallyistupdate requires that a reporting entity
disclose separately the amounts of significantsfiens in and out of Level 1 and Level 2 fair vatneasurements and describe the reasons for
the transfers; and in the reconciliation for featue measurements using significant unobservaplésna reporting entity should present
separately information about purchases, salesame®s, and settlements. In addition, this updatdfiels the requirements of existing
disclosures. For purposes of reporting fair valmasurement for each class of assets and liabiliiesporting entity needs to use judgmer
determining the appropriate classes of assetsianitltles; and a reporting entity should providediosures about the
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valuation techniques and inputs used to measuredhie for both recurring and nonrecurring failtveameasurements. This update was
adopted on January 1, 2010, except for the dismdssabout purchases, sales, issuances, and settseiméhe roll forward of activity in
Level 3 fair value measurements. The adoption isfgbidance did not have a material impact on thegany's consolidated financial
statements. Those disclosures are effective foaffigears beginning after December 15, 2010, anahferim periods within those fiscal yee
Early application is permitted. The Company doestrtieve that this guidance will have a matemapact on its consolidated financial
statements.

Revenue Recognition: In October 2009, the FASB issued amended guilaglated to multiple-element arrangements wiecfuires
an entity to allocate arrangement consideratidhetnception of an arrangement to all of its deflables based on their relative selling prices.
This update eliminates the use of the residual atedi allocation and requires the relative-sellprige method in all circumstances. All
entities must adopt the guidance no later tham#gnning of their first fiscal year beginning onafter June 15, 2010. Entities may elect to
adopt the guidance through either prospective egiitin for revenue arrangements entered into oemadly modified, after the effective date
or through retrospective application to all reveam@ngements for all periods presented. The Coyngaes not believe that this guidance
will have a material impact on its consolidatedafinial statements.

In October 2009, the FASB issued amendédbguee that is expected to significantly affect hentities account for revenue
arrangements that contain both hardware and saftelaments. As a result, many tangible productsréitaon software will be accounted |
under the revised multiple-element arrangementsma® recognition guidance, rather than the softwearenue recognition guidance. The
revised guidance must be adopted by all entitiesten than fiscal years beginning on or after JUse2010. An entity must select the same
transition method and same period for the adogifdroth this guidance and the revisions to the ipleelement arrangements guidance
noted above. The Company does not believe thagthdance will have a material impact on its coiusded financial statements.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Market Risk

The principal market risks (such as thk oEloss arising from adverse changes in markesrand prices) to which we are exposed are:

. rates on debt,
. rates on short-term and long-term investment plogpand
. exchange rates, generating translation and transagdins and losses.

Interest Rate

We centrally manage our debt and investrpertfolios considering investment opportunities aisk, tax consequences and overall
financing strategies. Our investment portfolio irdgs fixed-income securities with a fair value ppeximately $394.2 million at
December 31, 2010. These securities are subjétteiest rate risk and will decline in value iféngst rates increase. Based on our investmen
portfolio at December 31, 2010, an immediate 10fishpoint increase in interest rates may resutsignificant decrease in the fair value of
the portfolio. While an increase in interest ratesy reduce the fair value of the investment padfale will not realize the losses in the
consolidated statement of operations unless theichchl fixed-income securities are sold prior ézovery or the loss is determined to be
other-than-temporary. Our debt portfolio considtixed rate and fixed maturity instruments therefany changes in interest rates will not
have an impact on net interest expense.
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Foreign Operation:

Operating in international markets involeaposure to movements in currency exchange natésh are volatile at times. The economic
impact of currency exchange rate movements on Visecomplex because such changes are often likedriability in real growth,
inflation, interest rates, governmental actions athetr factors. These changes, if material, coalgse us to adjust our financing and operating
strategies. Consequently, isolating the effecthainges in currency does not incorporate these ottpartant economic factors.

Our net sales to foreign customers reptesiegpproximately 90%, 79% and 59% of our totalsaéds in 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. We expect that net sales to foreiggiamers will continue to represent a large pesggnbf our total net sales. Our net sales
denominated in foreign currencies represented appedely 2%, 6% and 5% of total net sales in 2009 and 2008, respectively. The
aggregate foreign currency exchange gain (los)ded in determining consolidated results of operstwas approximately $1.3 million,
$(0.7) million and $(0.1) million in 2010, 2009 a&@08, respectively. Included in the aggregateioreurrency exchange gain (loss) were
gains (losses) relating to forward contracts ofi$qillion, $0.2 million and ($0.4) million in 201@009 and 2008, respectively. These
amounts were recognized and included in other esgpéncome), net. As of December 31, 2010, appratéin $0.3 million of gains related
to forward contracts were included in prepaid exesrand other current assets and these amountsueequently received in January 2!
As of December 31, 2009, approximately $0.2 milladrgains related to forward contracts were inctlteprepaid expenses and other cui
assets and these amounts were subsequently reaeidaduary 2010. Monthly forward contracts forational amount of $18.5 million for
the month of January 2011 were entered into in Bées 2010. We are exposed to financial market riskduding changes in foreign
currency exchange rates. To mitigate these risks)se derivative financial instruments. We do rsat derivative financial instruments for
speculative or trading purposes. We enter into higribrward contracts to reduce the effect of flattng foreign currencies on short-term
foreign currency-denominated intercompany traneastand other known currency exposures. The averatiEnal amount of such contracts
outstanding was approximately $6.2 million for ffear ended December 31, 2010. The changes in cyreecchange rates that have the
largest impact on translating our internationalrafing profit (loss) are the Japanese Yen, thesdBriPound and the Euro. We believe that
based upon our hedging program, a 10% changeeéigfoexchange rates would have an immaterial impat¢he consolidated results of
operations. We believe that this quantitative meakas inherent limitations because, as discuss#gtifirst paragraph of this section, it does
not take into account any governmental actiondhanges in either customer purchasing patternsrfirancing and operating strategies.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary &ia

Our Consolidated Financial Statementsiated in the Index to Consolidated Financial Staeis and Financial Statement Schedule
filed as part of this Form 10-K.

Quarterly Results of Operations

The following table presents selected uitaddinancial data for each quarter of fiscal 2@b@ 2009. Consistent with prior years, we
report interim quarters, other than fourth quarteihgch always end on December 31, on anERk basis ending on the last Sunday within
period. The interim quarter ends are determingbeabeginning of each year based on the 13-weekegaaThe 2010 interim quarter ends
were March 28, June 27 and September 26. The 20&8m quarter ends were March 29, June 28 ance8uyr 27. For ease of reference,
we report these interim quarter ends as March@ig 30 and September 30 in our interim condensesbdidated financial statements.
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Although unaudited, this information hagihg@repared on a basis consistent with our auditetbolidated Financial Statements and, in
the opinion of our management, reflects all adj@stts (consisting only of normal recurring adjusttegthat we consider necessary for a fair
presentation of this information in accordance waiticounting principles generally accepted in théddinStates. Such quarterly results are not
necessarily indicative of future results of opemasi and should be read in conjunction with ourt@ddConsolidated Financial Statements and
the notes thereto.

Fiscal 2010 Fiscal 2009
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Year
(in thousands, except per share data)

Net sales $ 134,75( $ 221,38¢ $ 277,09: $ 299,99¢ $ 933,23: $ 39,107 $ 49,47: $ 74,68t $ 119,14: $ 282,41
Gross profit 56,74( 98,80: 135,48. 152,80 443,82! 10,90¢ 16,24¢ 30,547 53,53: 111,23!
Income (loss)

from

continuing

operations,

net of

income

taxes 22,82¢ 49,93: 91,10¢ 96,67: 260,53 (17,66) (12,57 31 15,97¢ (14,229
Income (loss)

from

discontinue

operations,

net of

income

taxes 3,22( 2,46: (4,94) 100,48¢ 101,22¢ (3,289 (2,12¢) 1,23¢ 2,767 (1,409
Net loss

attributable

to

noncontroll

interest — — — — — (42) (23) — — (65)
Net income

(loss)

attributable

toVeeco $ 26,04¢$ 52,39: $ 86,16: $ 197,16( $ 361,76( $ (20,909 $ (14,68)% 1,27C( $ 18,74t $ (15,56))

Income (loss)
per
common
share
attributable
to Veeco:
Basic:
Continuing
operations $ 0.5¢ $ 1.2¢ $ 2.2¢ $ 24t $ 6.6 $ (0.56% (0.40% — % 0.4t $ (0.49
Discontinuec
operations 0.0¢ 0.0€ (0.12) 2.5 2.5€ (0.10 (0.07) 0.04 0.0€ (0.09)

Income (loss $ 0.67 $ 132 $ 2.1€ $ 5.0C $ 9.1€ $ (0.66$ (0.479)$ 0.04 % 052 ¢  (0.4%)

Diluted :
Continuing

operations $ 0.54 $ 115 $ 2.1€ $ 23C $ 6.1:$ (0.56% (0.40% — % 04z % (0.49
Discontinuec

operations 0.0¢ 0.0t (0.12) 2.4C 2.3¢ (0.10 (0.07) 0.04 0.0€ (0.09)

Income (loss $ 0.6z $ 12($ 204$ 47($ 851% (060$ (04)$ 004% 05($ (0.4

Weighted

average

shares

outstanding
Basic 38,78¢ 39,76 39,94¢ 39,45 39,49¢ 31,51¢ 31,497  31,60¢ 35,62: 32,62¢
Diluted 42,26¢ 43,50¢ 42,25¢ 41,97: 42,51« 31,51t 31,497 32,37t 37,742 32,62¢

On August 15, 2010, we signed a definiigeeement to sell our Metrology business to Brakenprising our entire Metrology reporti
segment for $229.4 million. Accordingly, Metrologyperating results are accounted for as discogdiimperations in determining the
consolidated results of operations. The salesaim closed on October 7, 2010, except for assetded in China due to local restrictions.
Total proceeds, which included a working capitguatient of $1 million, totaled $230.4 million otweh $7.2 million relates to the assets in
China. As part of our agreement with Bruker, $28iBion of proceeds is held in escrow and is res¢d from use for one year from the
closing date of the transaction to secure cerfaétified losses arising out of breaches of reptasens, warranties and covenants we mau
the stock purchase agreement and related documengert of the sale we incurred transaction cagléch consisted of investment bank f
and legal fees, totaling $5.2 million. During tleaifth quarter of 2010, we recognized a pre-tax gaidisposal of $156.3 million and a pre-
tax deferred gain of $5.4 million related to theets in China.

During the first quarter of 2010, we recizga a restructuring credit of $0.2 million asstethwith a change in estimate.
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During the first quarter of 2009, we recizgd a restructuring charge of $2.3 million, priftyafor personnel severance. During the
second quarter of 2009, we recognized an additi@satucturing charge of approximately $1.7 millnmarily for lease-related and
personnel severance costs and an asset impairiemgtecof $0.3 million for property and equipmentonger being utilized in our Data
Storage segment. During the third quarter of 20@9recognized an additional restructuring chargg0o8 million, primarily for personnel
severance costs. During the fourth quarter of 2@@9recognized an additional restructuring charfgk0dl million related to personnel
severance costs.

A variety of factors influence the levelafr net sales in a particular quarter includingremic conditions in the HB LED, solar, data
storage and semiconductor industries, the timingjgifificant orders, shipment delays, specificdearequests by customers, the introduction
of new products by us and our competitors, producéind quality problems, changes in material calissyption in sources of supply,
seasonal patterns of capital spending by custorardspther factors, many of which are beyond outroh In addition, we derive a
substantial portion of our revenues from the séjgraducts which have an average selling pricextess of $2,000,000. As a result, the
timing of recognition of revenue from a single saantion could have a significant impact on oursadés and operating results in any given
quarter.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accotants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

ltem 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our senior management is responsible fiabéishing and maintaining a system of disclosunetiols and procedures (as defined in
Rule 13a-14 and 15d-14 under the Securities Exahawtjof 1934 (the "Exchange Act")) designed tougaghat information required to be
disclosed by us in the reports that we file or sitlumder the Exchange Act is recorded, processednsarized, and reported, within the time
periods specified in the Securities and Exchangar@ission's rules and forms. Disclosure controlsgnodedures include, without limitatic
controls, and procedures designed to ensure tlaxtmation required to be disclosed by an issu¢hé@reports that it files or submits under
Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated tstheer's management, including its principal ekeewfficer or officers and principal
financial officer or officers, or persons performisimilar functions, as appropriate to allow timdBcisions regarding required disclosure.

We have evaluated the effectiveness ofldsign and operation of our disclosure controls@modedures under the supervision of and
with the participation of management, including tiéef executive officer and chief financial officas of the end of the period covered by
this report. Based on that evaluation, our chiefcetive officer and our chief financial officer adaded that our disclosure controls and
procedures are effective to ensure that informatgpuired to be disclosed by us in reports thafileer submit under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported withitime periods specified in Securities and ErgeaCommission rules and forms an
accumulated and communicated to our managemehigding our principal executive officer and prindifimaancial officer, or persons
performing similar functions, as appropriate t@wailtimely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Subsequent to that evaluation there haee be significant changes in our disclosure costoolprocedures or other factors that could
significantly affect these controls or procedurterasuch evaluation.
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Design and Evaluation of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Pursuant to Section 404 of the SarbanesyOktt of 2002, we have included a report of managa's assessment of the design and
effectiveness of its internal controls as parthig Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended@nber 31, 2010. Our independent
registered public accounting firm also attestedata reported on, the effectiveness of internatrobover financial reporting. Management's
report and the independent registered public adaayfirm's attestation report are included in Qansolidated Financial Statements for the
year ended December 31, 2010 under the captiotleeintManagement's Report on Internal Control Givieancial Reporting” and "Report
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm darhlml Control Over Financial Reporting."

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no significant changesiimrdernal controls or other factors during thecél year ended December 31, 2010 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenally affect, our internal control over finantraporting.

Iltem 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART 1lI

Portions of the information required by tRdrof Form 10K are incorporated by reference from Veeco's Pi&tatement to be filed wil
the SEC in connection with Veeco's 2011 Annual lmgedf Stockholders (the "Proxy Statement”).

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corprate Governance

The information required by Item 10 of Fot®K is incorporated by reference to our Proxy&tent under the headings "Corporate
Governance," "Executive Officers" and "Section }&aporting Compliance."

We have adopted a Code of Ethics for Sedfficers (the "Code") which applies to our chigkeutive officer, principal financial office
principal accounting officer, and persons perforgnéimilar functions. A copy of the Code can be fdwm our website (www.veeco.com). '
intend to disclose on our website the nature offatyre amendments to and waivers of the Codedbalt to the chief executive officer,
principal financial officer, principal accountindficer or persons performing similar functions. Wave also adopted a Code of Business
Conduct which applies to all of our employees,udahg those listed above, as well as to our dirsct copy of the Code of Business
Conduct can be found on our website (www.veeco.cdimy website address above is intended to beaative, textual reference only. None
of the material on this website is part of thisaep

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 of Fob®+K is incorporated by reference to our Proxyte3tent under the heading "Executive
Compensation.”

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficibOwners and Management and Related Stockholder M&trs

The information required by Item 12 of Fot®+K is incorporated by reference to our ProxyteStent under the heading "Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managathend "Equity Compensation Plan Information."

The following table gives information abautr common stock that may be issued under outyeqgampensation plans as of
December 31, 2010. See Note 8 to the Consolidateth€ial Statements included herein for informatiegarding the material features of
these plans.

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under

Number of securities to Weighted average equity compensation
be issued upon exercise of exercise price of plans (excluding
outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected in
warrants, and rights warrants, and rights column (a))

(@ (b) ©

Equity compensation plans

approved by security

holders 2,560,35- $ 19.62 2,623,771
Equity compensation plans

not approved by security

holders 9,27(1)% 43.1¢ —

Total 2,569,62 2,623,771

(1) Stock options assumed in connection with the adtprisof Applied Epi, Inc. on September 17, 2001.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships, Related Transaains and Director Independence

The information required by Item 13 of Fot®K is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statenu@der the headings "Independe
of the Board of Directors" and "Certain Relatiopshand Related Transactions."

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 of Fot®K is incorporated by reference to our Proxy&tent under the heading "Proposal 2—
Ratification of the Appointment of Ernst & Young BL"
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PART IV
ltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedes

(@) The Registrant's financial statements together avisleparate table of contents are annexed hetegdfirfancial statement schedule is
listed in the separate table of contents annexestde

(b)  Exhibits

Unless otherwise indicated, each of thiofdhg exhibits has been previously filed with tBecurities and Exchange Commission by the
Company under File No. 0-16244.

Number Exhibit Incorporated by Reference to the Following Documerst
2.1 Stock Purchase Agreement dated August 1uarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
2010 among Veeco Instruments Inc. (Vee quarter ended September 30, 2010,

Veeco Metrology Inc. and Bruker Exhibit 2.1
Corporation
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the

Incorporation of Veeco dated December 1, quarter ended June 30, 1997, Exhibit 3.1
1994, as amended June 2, 1997 and July 25,
1997.

3.2 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
of Veeco dated May 29, 199 ended December 31, 2000, Exhibit

3.2 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
of Veeco dated May 5, 200 quarter ended June 30, 2000, Exhibit

3.4 Certificate of Designation, Preferences, andQuarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
Rights of Series A Junior Participating quarter ended March 31, 2001, Exhibit 3.1
Preferred Stock of Veec

3. Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
of Veeco dated May 16, 2002 quarter ended September 30, 2009,
Exhibit 3.1

3.€ Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation Filed herewith
of Veeco dated May 14, 20:

3.7 Fourth Amended and Restated Bylaws of Current Report on Form 8-K filed
Veeco, effective October 23, 20 October 27, 2008, Exhibit 3

3.& Amendment No. 1 to the Fourth Amended Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 26,
and Restated Bylaws of Veeco effective 2010, Exhibit 3.1
May 20, 201(
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Number Exhibit Incorporated by Reference to the Following Documerst
4.1 Rights Agreement, dated as of March 13, Registration Statement on Form 8-A dated
2001, between Veeco and American Stock March 15, 2001, Exhibit 1
Transfer and Trust Company, as Rights
Agent, including the form of the Certificate
of Designation, Preferences, and Rights
setting forth the terms of the Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock, par value
$0.01 per share, as Exhibit A, the form of
Rights Certificates as Exhibit B and the
Summary of Rights to Purchase Preferred
Stock as Exhibit C




4.2 Amendment to Rights Agreement, dated asCurrent Report on Form 8-K, filed
of September 6, 2001, between Veeco and September 21, 2001, Exhibit 4.1
American Stock Transfer and Trust
Company, as rights age!
4.2 Amendment No 2 to Rights Agreement, Current Report on Form 8-K, filed July 12,
dated as of July 11, 2002, between Veeco 2002, Exhibit 4.1
and American Stock Transfer and Trust
Company, as rights age!
4.4 Indenture, dated April 16, 2007, between Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 To
Veeco and U.S. Bank National Trust Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File
No. 33:-128004) filed April 16, 2007,
Exhibit 4.1
4.5 First Supplemental Indenture, dated April Current Report on Form 8-K, filed April 20,
2007, by and between Veeco and U.S. BankR007, Exhibit 4.1
Trust National Association, as Trust

10.1 Loan Agreement dated as of December 15,Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
1999 between Applied Epi, Inc. and Jacksoquarter ended September 30, 2001,
National Life Insurance Compan Exhibit 10.2

10.z Amendment to Loan Documents effective aQuarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
of September 17, 2001 between Applied quarter ended June 30, 2002, Exhibit 10.2
Epi, Inc. and Jackson National Life
Insurance Company (executed in June 2(

10.2 Promissory Note dated as of December 15,Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
1999 issued by Applied Epi, Inc. to Jacksonquarter ended September 30, 2001,
National Life Insurance Compan Exhibit 10.3

10.£" Form of Indemnification Agreement enteredCurrent Report on Form 8-K filed on
into between Veeco and each of its director®ctober 23, 2006, Exhibit 10.1
and executive officer:

10.5" Veeco Amended and Restated 1992 Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File
Employees' Stock Option Pla No. 3:-93958), Exhibit 10.2!

10.€" Amendment dated May 15, 1997 to Veeco Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File
Amended and Restated 1992 Employees' No. 33:-35009) filed September 5, 1997,
Stock Option Plar Exhibit 10.1
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Number Exhibit Incorporated by Reference to the Following Documerst
10.7* Amendment dated July 25, 1997 to Veeco Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File

10.¢

10.¢

10.1¢*

Amended and Restated 1992 Employees' No. 33:-35009) filed September 5, 1997,
Stock Option Plar Exhibit 10.2

Amendment dated May 29, 1998 to Veeco Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File
Amended and Restated 1992 Employees' No. 33:-79469) filed May 27, 1999,
Stock Option Plar Exhibit 10.1

Amendment dated May 14, 1999 to Veeco Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File
Amended and Restated 1992 Employees' No. 33:-79469) filed May 27, 1999,
Stock Option Plar Exhibit 10.2

Veeco Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
Incentive Plan, effective July 20, 20( quarter ended June 30, 2006, Exhibit 1



10.17* Amendment No. 1 effective April 18, 2007 Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the

(ratified by the Board August 7, 2007) to  quarter ended June 30, 2007, Exhibit 10.1
Veeco Amended and Restated 2000 Stock
Incentive Plan

10.12 Amendment No. 2 dated January 22, 2009 #nnual Report on Form 10-K for the year
Veeco Amended and Restated 2000 Stock ended December 31, 2008, Exhibit 10.41
Incentive Plan

10.17* Form of Restricted Stock Agreement Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
pursuant to the Veeco 2000 Stock Incentivequarter ended September 30, 2005,
Plan, effective November 20l Exhibit 10.3

10.14° Form of Notice of Restricted Stock Award Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
and related terms and conditions pursuant tquarter ended September 30, 2006,
the Veeco 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, Exhibit 10.3
effective June 200

10.15" Veeco 2010 Stock Incentive Plan, effective Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File
May 14, 2010 Number 33-166852) filed May 14, 2010,

Exhibit 10.1

10.1€" Form of 2010 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File

Option Agreement Number 33-166852) filed May 14, 2010,
Exhibit 10.2

10.17* Form of 2010 Stock Incentive Plan Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File

Restricted Stock Agreement Number 33-166852) filed May 14, 2010,
Exhibit 10.3

10.1€° Veeco Performance-Based Restricted StoclkQuarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
2010 guarter ended June 30, 2010, Exhibit 1

10.1¢" Veeco 2010 Management Bonus Plan date@uarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
January 22, 201 quarter ended March 31, 2010, Exhibit 1

10.2C° Veeco 2010 Special Profit Sharing Plan  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
dated February 15, 20: quarter ended March 31, 2010, Exhibit 1
10.27° Senior Executive Change in Control Policy Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
effective as of September 12, 2008 quarter ended September 30, 2008,
Exhibit 10.3
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10.22 Amendment No. 1 dated December 23, 2008nnual Report on Form 10-K for the year

10.27

10.2¢°

10.25

10.2¢*

(effective September 12, 2008) to Veeco ended December 31, 2008, Exhibit 10.37
Senior Executive Change in Control Pol

Service Agreement effective July 24, 2008 Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
between Veeco and Edward H. Bre quarter ended June 30, 2008, Exhibit 1

Employment Agreement effective as of Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
July 1, 2007 between Veeco and John R. quarter ended June 30, 2007, Exhibit 10.3
Peelel

Amendment effective December 31, 2008 té&Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
Employment Agreement between Veeco anended December 31, 2008, Exhibit 10.38
John R. Peele

Second Amendment effective June 11, 201Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the



to Employment Agreement between Veeco quarter ended June 30, 2010, Exhibit 10.1
and John R. Peel

10.27" Employment Agreement dated December Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
2009 (effective January 18, 2010) between quarter ended March 31, 2010, Exhibit 10.1
Veeco and David D. Gla:

10.2¢" Letter Agreement dated January 21, 2004 Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
between Veeco and John P. Kiern ended December 31, 2003, Exhibit 10

10.2¢° Form of Amendment effective June 9, 2006Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
to Letter Agreements between Veeco and quarter ended June 30, 2006, Exhibit 10.3
each of John P. Kiernan and Robert P. O

10.3C" Form of Amendment effective December  Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
2008 to Letter Agreements between Veeco ended December 31, 2008, Exhibit 10.40
and each of John P. Kiernan, Mark R. Mu
and Robert P. Oatt

10.37° Letter agreement effective as of June 19, Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
2009 between Veeco and John P. Kier quarter ended June 30, 2009, Exhibit 1

10.32" Letter Agreement dated October 31, 2005 Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
between Veeco and Robert P. Oates quarter ended September 30, 2005,
Exhibit 10.1

10.37 Amendment dated September 12, 2008 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
Employment Agreement between Veeco anguarter ended September 30, 2008,
Robert P. Oate Exhibit 10.2

10.34° Employment Agreement dated as of April 1Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
2003 between Veeco and John F. Rein quarter ended June 30, 2003, Exhibit 1

10.35° Amendment effective June 9, 2006 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
Employment Agreement between Veeco anguarter ended June 30, 2006, Exhibit 10.2
John F. Rein, Ji

10.3¢€" Amendment dated as of September 12, 2008uarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
to Employment Agreement between Veeco quarter ended September 30, 2008,
and John F. Rein, < Exhibit 10.1
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Number Exhibit Incorporated by Reference to the Following Documerst

10.37* Amendment effective December 31, 2008 tcAnnual Report on Form 10-K for the year
Employment Agreement between Veeco anended December 31, 2008, Exhibit 10.39
John F. Rein, Ji

10.3¢" Letter Agreement dated January 11, 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
between Veeco and Mark R. Mun ended December 31, 2007, Exhibit 10

10.3¢" Letter Agreement dated September 23, 201Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the

between Veeco and Mark R. Munch quarter ended September 30, 2010,
Exhibit 10.1
21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registral Filed herewitr
23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLF Filed herewitr

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Filed herewith
pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 1BHa)
of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1€



31.z Certification of Chief Financial Officer Filed herewith
pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 1b#a)
of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1€

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Filed herewith
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200z

32.z Certification of Chief Financial Officer Filed herewith
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

Indicates a management contract or compensatonygplarrangement, as required by Item 15(a) (Haom 1(¢-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934amended, the Registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the usideled, thereunto duly authorized, on February2@3.1.

VEECO INSTRUMENTS INC

By: /s/ JOHN R. PEELER

John R. Peeler
Chief Executive Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the SeesrExchange Act of 1934, as amended, this rearbleen signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the Registrant and in theataes indicated, on February 23, 2011.

Signature

/sl EDWARD H. BRAUN

Edward H. Braur

/sl RICHARD A. D'AMORE

Richard A. D'Amore

/s/ JOEL A. ELFTMANN

Joel A. Elftmanr

/sl THOMAS GUTIERREZ

Thomas Gutierre

/sl GORDON HUNTER

Gordon Hunte

/sl ROGER D. MCDANIEL

Roger D. McDanie

/s/ JOHN R. PEELER

John R. Peele

/sl PETER J. SIMONE

Peter J. Simon

/s DAVID D. GLASS

David D. Glass

/s JOHN P. KIERNAN

John P. Kiernal

Title

Director and Chairman

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director and Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)

Director

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(principal financial officer)

Senior Vice President, Finance and Corporate
Controller
(principal accounting officer
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Management's Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsibles$tablishing and maintaining adequate internatrobover financial reporting as defined
in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Seasittxchange Act of 1934. The Company's internarobaver financial reporting is
designed to provide reasonable assurance regatdingliability of financial reporting and the perption of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with accounting principeregally accepted in the United States of AmefIGAQAP"). The Company's internal
control over financial reporting includes thoseigieks and procedures that:

. pertain to the maintenance of records that, inaasle detail, accurately and fairly reflect trensactions and dispositions of
the assets of the Company;

. provide reasonable assurance that transactionse@seded as necessary to permit preparation ofifiahstatements in
accordance with GAAP, and that receipts and experedi of the Company are being made only in acomelsith
authorizations of management and directors of ih@@any; and

. provide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, esaisposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material affetiie financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not prevendetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

As required by Section 404 of the SarbaDekey Act of 2002, management assessed the eféawas of the Company's internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 20hOnkking this assessment, management used theacsiét forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis§ié@SO") ininternal Control-Integrated Framework

Based on our assessment and those critesiaagement believes that the Company maintairfedtie® internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2010.

The effectiveness of the Company's intecoakrol over financial reporting as of December Z110 has been audited by Ernst &
Young LLP, an independent registered public acdagrfirm, as stated in their report which appeardar the heading "Report of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm darhlml Control Over Financial Reporting."

Veeco Instruments Inc.
Plainview, NY
February 23, 2011

/s/ JOHN R. PEELER

John R. Peeler

Chief Executive Officer
Veeco Instruments Inc.
February 23, 201

/s DAVID D. GLASS

David D. Glass

Executive Vice President a
Chief Financial Officer
Veeco Instruments Inc.
February 23, 201
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Veeco Biruments Inc.

We have audited Veeco Instruments Inc.Qulgsidiaries (the "Company") internal control ofieancial reporting as of December 31,
2010, based on criteria established in Internalt@bna-Integrated Framework issued by the CommitteBponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). The Comgjsamanagement is responsible for maintaining &ffeénternal control over
financial reporting, and for its assessment ofaffiectiveness of internal control over financigboeting included in the accompanying
Management's Report on Internal Control Over Fir@riReporting. Our responsibility is to expressogimion on the Company's internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance withstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogietr8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etasting and evaluating the design and operatifegéfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre®& considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finanagigborting is a process designed to provide reddersssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over fic& reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (8jige reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the compang&ets that could have a material effect on thenfirz statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not prevendetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintainedalimaterial respects, effective internal contreéiofinancial reporting as of December 31,
2010, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatdoard (United States), the 2010
consolidated financial statements of the Compamlyaam report dated February 23, 2011 expressedamalified opinion thereon.

/s ERNST & YOUNG LLP

New York, New York
February 23, 2011
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm on Financial Statements
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Veeclmstruments Inc.

We have audited the accompanying conselilbilance sheets of Veeco Instruments Inc. andi@abes (the "Company") as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related cdasedl statements of operations, equity, comprehenstome (loss) and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended Dece®ih@010. Our audits also included the finansiatement schedule in the accompanying
Index. These financial statements are the respdibsilif the Company's management. Our responsyhii to express an opinion on these
financial statements and schedule based on outsaudi

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €lgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disads in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the consolidated finanatdtements referred to above present fairly, imallerial respects, the consolidated financial
position of the Company at December 31, 2010 af®®28nd the consolidated results of their operatamd their cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 20b@nformity with U.S. generally accepted accoongtprinciples. Also, in our opinion, the
related financial statement schedule, when conaitlier relation to the basic financial statemerkeiaas a whole, presents fairly in all
material respects the information set forth therein

We also have audited, in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatdsoard (United States), the
Company's internal control over financial reportasyof December 31, 2010, based on criteria estadaliin Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imgtions of the Treadway Commission and our tegeted February 23, 2011,
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

New York, New York
February 23, 2011
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Veeco Instruments Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Dollars in thousands)

December 31,

Assets
Current asset:

2010

2009

Cash and cash equivale $ 245,13 $ 148,50(
Shor-term investment 394,18 135,00(
Restricted cas 76,11¢ —
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtfabamnts of $512 in
2010 and $438 in 20(C 150,52¢ 67,54¢
Inventories 108,48 55,80
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 34,32¢ 6,41¢
Assets of discontinued segment held for : — 40,05¢
Deferred income taxe 13,80: 3,10¢
Total current asse 1,022,57. 456,43!
Property, plant and equipment at cost, 42,32( 44,70°
Goodwill 52,00: 52,00:
Deferred income taxe 9,40: —
Intangible assets, n 16,89: 21,77(
Other asset 4,84z 42¢
Assets of discontinued segment held for — 30,02¢
Total asset $1,148,03- $ 605,37.
Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 3222( $ 24,91(
Accrued expenses and other current liabili 183,01( 99,82
Deferred profil 4,10¢ 2,52(
Income taxes payab 56,36¢ 82¢
Liabilities of discontinued segment held for s 5,35¢ 10,82
Current portion of lon-term debr 101,36 212
Total current liabilities 382,43 139,11¢
Deferred income taxe — 5,03¢
Long-term debt 2,65¢ 100,96«
Other liabilities 434 1,192
Equity:
Preferred stock, 500,000 shares authorized; neshssued and
outstanding — —
Common stock; $.01 par value; authorized 120,0@db@res;
40,337,950 and 39,003,114 shares issued and aditsgjan 2010
and 2009, respective 40¢ 382
Additional paic¢in-capital 656,96¢ 575,86(
Retained earnings (accumulated defi 137,43t (224,32,
Accumulated other comprehensive incc 5,79¢ 7,141
Less: treasury stock, at cost; 1,118,600 shar2810 (38,099 —
Total equity 762,51: 359,05¢
Total liabilities and equit $1,148,03 $ 605,37:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Veeco Instruments Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(In thousands, except per share data)

Year ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Net sales $ 933,23: $ 282,41 $ 314,93
Cost of sale: 489,40t 171,17 191,66«
Gross profit 443,82! 111,23! 123,27:
Operating expenses (incom
Selling, general and administrati 91,77, 62,15: 60,54
Research and developm 71,39( 43,48: 39,60¢
Amortization 4,87¢ 5,16¢ 8,86¢
Restructuring (179 4,83 9,42¢
Asset impairmen — 304 51,38’
Other, ne (1,619 24 (414
Total operating expens 166,25( 115,96 169,41:
Operating income (lost 277,57" (4,732 (46,140
Interest expens 8,201 7,732 9,31i
Interest incom (1,629 (882) (2,589
Gain on extinguishment of de — — (3,759
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme
taxes 271,00: (11,587) (49,11))
Income tax provisiol 10,47: 2,641 1,722
Income (loss) from continuing operatic 260,53: (14,229 (50,839
Discontinued operation
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, befoceme
taxes (includes gain on disposal of $156,290 ir02 155,45! (2,709 (24,419
Income tax provision (benefi 54,22¢ (2,300 17C
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic 101,22¢ (1,409 (24,58¢)
Net income (loss 361,76( (15,63 (75,427
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling inter — (65) (230
Net income (loss) attributable to Vee $ 361,76( $ (15,567 $ (75,19)
Income (loss) per common share attributable to ¥e
Basic:
Continuing operation $ 6.6 $ (044 $ (1.6
Discontinued operatior 2.5€ (0.09 (0.7¢)
Income (loss $ 9.1¢ $§ (048 $ (2.40
Diluted:
Continuing operation $ 6.1 $ (049 $ (1.6
Discontinued operatior 2.3¢ (0.09 (0.7¢)
Income (loss $ 851 $ (048 $ (240
Weighted average shares outstand
Basic 39,49¢ 32,62¢ 31,34%
Diluted 42,51« 32,62¢ 31,34%

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Veeco Instruments Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (ks)

(In thousands)

Year ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Net income (loss $ 361,76( $ (15,639 $ (75,42)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of
Foreign currency translatic (1,329 (58) 1,84t
Unrealized gain on availal-for-sale securitie 97 — —
Minimum pension liability (120 32 37
Comprehensive income (los 360,41! (15,65¢) (73,539
Comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrollimgriest — (65) (230)
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Ve $ 360,41! $ (15,599 $ (73,309

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Balance at
January 1,
2008

Exercise of
stock
options

Equity-based
compensati
expense-
continuing
operations

Equity-based
compensati
expense-
discontinue
operations

Issuance,
vesting and
cancellatior
of restrictec
stock

Translation
adjustment:

Defined
benefit
pension
plan

Net loss

Balance at
December :
2008

Exercise of
stock
options

Equity-based
compensati
expense-
continuing
operations

Equity-based
compensati
expense-
discontinue
operations

Issuance,
vesting and
cancellatior
of restrictec
stock

Issuance of
common
stock

Translation
adjustment:

Defined
benefit
pension
plan

Purchase of
remaining
80.1% of
noncontrolli
interest

Net loss

Balance at
December :
2009

Exercise of
stock
options

Veeco Instruments Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Equity

(Dollars in thousands)

Retained Equity Attributable to
Additional Earnings Accumulated
Common Stock _ Treasury (Accumulated Other Noncontrolling
Paid-in Comprehensive

Shares Amount  Stock Capital Deficit) Income Veeco Interest Total
31,82389 $ 31z $ — $ 416,111 $ (133,56¢) $ 5,28t $288,14: $ 1,01¢ $289,15¢
67,08( 1 — 68C — — 681 — 681
— — — 9,66¢ — — 9,66¢ — 9,66¢
— — — 85€ — — 85€ — 85€
296,62 3 — (1,019 — —  (1,01¢ —  (1,01¢
— — — — — 1,84t 1,84¢ — 1,84t
— — — — — 37 37 — 37
— — — — (75,197 —  (75,19) (230) (75,422
32,187,59 31€ — 426,30( (208,75) 7,167 225,02t 784 225,81(
755,22¢ 8 — 12,57¢ — — 12,58¢ — 12,58¢
_ — — 7,547 — — 7,541 — 7,547
— — — 99C — — 99C — 99C
310,28t — — (607) — — (607) — (607)
5,750,00! 58 — 130,02¢ — — 130,08t — 130,08t
— — — — — (58) (58) — (58)
— — — — — 32 32 — 32
— — — (97€) — — (976) (7190 (1,699
— — — — (15,567 — (15,569 (65) (15,630
39,003,111 382 — 575,86( (224,32 7,141 359,05¢ — 359,05¢
2,499,59. 25 — 45,13¢ — —  45,16¢ —  45,16¢



Equity-based
compensati
expense-
continuing
operations

Equity-based
compensati
expense-
discontinue
operations

Issuance,
vesting and
cancellatior
of restrictec
stock

Treasury
stock

Excess tax
benefits
from stock
option
exercises

Translation
adjustment:

Defined
benefit
pension
plan

Unrealized
gain on
short-term
investmentt

Net income

Balance at
December :
2010

— — — 9,64¢
— — — 7,67:
(46,155 2 = (4,629)
(1,118,60) — (38,099 —
_ _ — 23217

361,76(

— 9,64¢

— 7,672

— (4,619

— (38,09

—  23,27!

(1,329 (1,329

(120 (120

97 97
— 361,76(

9,64¢

7,672

(4,619

(38,099

23,27:

(1,329

(120)

97
361,76(

40,337,95 $ 40¢ $ (38,099 % 656,96¢ $

137,43t

5,79¢ $762,51. $

$762,51.

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Veeco Instruments Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands)

Year ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Operating activities
Net income (loss $361,76( $ (15,637 $(75,42)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to reshcprovided
by operating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic 12,85¢ 13,86¢ 17,68¢
Amortization of debt discour 3,05¢ 2,84¢ 2,917
Non-cash equit-based compensatic 9,64¢ 7,547 9,66¢
Non-cash asset impairme — 304 51,38’
Non-cash inventory wril-off — 1,52¢ —
Non-cash restructurin (179 — (10%)
Net gain on early extinguishment of di — — (3,75¢)
Deferred income taxe (25,14) (419 1,56¢
Gain on disposal of segment (see Not (156,29() — —
Excess tax benefits from stock option exerc (23,277 — —
Other, ne 1,03¢ 44 (87)
Non-cash items from discontinued operati 10,02t 8,80¢ 33,07(
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl (83,16() (28,379 12,72
Inventories (49,53%) 10,32: 3,68:
Supplier deposit (23,296 117 (222)
Accounts payabl 7,29¢ 3,067 (6,110
Accrued expenses, deferred profit and other current
liabilities 85,50( 51,58: (4,457)
Income taxes payab 78,89« 1,482 (2,93))
Other, ne (9,49)) (2,909 2,28
Discontinued operatior (5,495 4,86( 1,18¢
Net cash provided by operating activit 194,21. 59,03¢ 43,19
Investing activities
Capital expenditure (20,729 (7,460 (11,126
Payments for net assets of businesses acc — (2,419 (10,98)
Payments of ea-outs for businesses acquit — (9,839 —
Transfers to restricted ca (76,11%) — —
Proceeds from the maturity of CDAF 213,64 — —
Proceeds from sales of sk-term investment 32,97 — —
Payments for purchases of sl-term investment (506,109 (135,000 —
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and eneiy 3 834 10¢
Proceeds from disposal of segment, net of trarmabties (see
Note 3) 225,18t — —
Discontinued operatior (492 (887 (1,680
Net cash used in investing activit| (121,627 (154,76) (23,689
Financing activities
Proceeds from stock option exerci: 45,16 12,58¢ 681
Proceeds from issuance of common sl — 130,08 —
Restricted stock tax withholding (4,619 (607) (1,019
Excess tax benefits from stock option exerc 23,27 — —
Purchases of treasury stc (38,099 — —
Repayments of lor-term debt (213 (196) (32,659
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 25,50  141,86¢ (32,99)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbaénts (1,46¢€) (163) (867)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 96,63: 45,97¢ (14,359
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 148,50 102,52: 116,87!
Cash and cash equivalents at end of ' $245,13: $148,50( $102,52:
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informatior
Interest paic $ 4,727 $ 493t $ 6,53(
Income taxes pai 9,92¢ 1,80¢ 3,21t



Non-cash investing and financing activitie:

Accrual of payment for net assets of businessesiiat $ — $ 1,000 $ —
Accrual of contingent earn-out payment to formearsholders

of acquired compan — — 9,64¢
Transfers from property, plant and equipment temtary 3,91: 1,15¢ 404
Transfers from inventory to property, plant andipment 85C 23 38t

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Veeco Instruments Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2010
1. Description of Business and Significant Accmting Policies
Busines:

Veeco Instruments Inc. (together with iesolidated subsidiaries, "Veeco," the "Company'we") designs, manufactures and markets
equipment to develop and manufacture light emittimgles ("LEDs"), solar panels, hard-disk drived ather devices. We have leading
technology positions in our two segments: Light fmg Diode ("LED") & Solar and Data Storage.

In our LED & Solar segment, we design arahaofacture metal organic chemical vapor depos{ti#OCVD") systems, molecular bea
epitaxy ("MBE") systems, Copper, Indium, Galliunelénide ("CIGS") deposition systems and thermabdijon sources that we sell to
manufacturers of high brightness LEDs ("HB LED"faolar panels, as well as to scientific reseaustotners.

In our Data Storage segment, we desigmaambifacture ion beam etch, ion beam depositiomaiial-like carbon, physical vapor
deposition, chemical vapor deposition, and dicingd slicing systems that we primarily used to crélite film magnetic heads ("TFMHs")
that read and write data on hard disk drives.

We support our customers through produeeldpment, manufacturing, sales and service gitéise U.S., Korea, Taiwan, China,
Singapore, Japan, Europe and other locations.

Basis of Presentatio

We report interim quarters, other than fowguarters which always end on December 31, @raekek basis ending on the last Sunday
within such period. The interim quarter ends artegheined at the beginning of each year based oh3h&eek quarters. The 2010 interim
guarter ends were March 28, June 27 and Septerb&h2 2009 interim quarter ends were March 29 Rghand September 27. For ease of
reference, we report these interim quarter endidaash 31, June 30 and September 30 in our intednidlensed consolidated financial
statements.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiztttae reported amounts of assets and lialsliied disclosure of contingent assets
liabilities at the date of the financial statemesntsl the reported amounts of revenues and expduosag the reporting period. Significant
estimates made by management include allowanadofdstful accounts, inventory obsolescence, purchaseunting allocations,
recoverability and useful lives of property, pland equipment and identifiable intangible assetpverability of goodwill, recoverability of
deferred tax assets, liabilities for product watyaaccruals for contingencies and equity-basedngenys, including forfeitures and liabilities
for tax uncertainties. Actual results could diffesm those estimates.

Principles of Consolidatiol

The accompanying Consolidated Financidie®tants include the accounts of Veeco and its digigs. Intercompany items and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
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Veeco Instruments Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
December 31, 2010
Revenue Recognitic

We recognize revenue based on current atioguguidance provided by the Securities and ErgeaCommission ("SEC") and the
Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB"). @ewrenue transactions include sales of productsrundéiple-element arrangements.
Revenue under these arrangements is allocate@hoedament based upon its estimated fair markeeval

We consider a broad array of facts anduoirstances when evaluating each of our sales amargs in determining when to recognize
revenue, including specific terms of the purchaskeig contractual obligations to the customer cmplexity of the customer's post-delivery
acceptance provisions, customer creditworthinedgtaminstallation process. Management also corsitie party responsible for installati
whether there are process specification requiresnghich need to be demonstrated before final sibaral payment, whether Veeco can
replicate the field testing conditions and procedtin our factory and our past experience with destrating and installing a particular
system. Sales arrangements are reviewed on a gasa&s® basis; however, the Company's revenue riimagprotocol for established
systems is as described below.

System revenue is generally recognized ghgpment or delivery provided title and risk o§sohas passed to the customer, evidence of
an arrangement exists, prices are contractualgdfir determinable, collectability is reasonablyuaed and there are no material uncertail
regarding customer acceptance. Revenue from iastadlservices is recognized at the time acceptaneeeived from the customer. If the
arrangement does not meet all the above critérgaettire amount of the sales arrangement is @efemtil the criteria have been met or all
elements have been delivered to the customer or dmapleted.

For those transactions on which we recagristems revenue, either at the time of shipmea¢lovery, our sales and contractual
arrangements with customers do not contain pravssfor right of return or forfeiture, refund or ettpurchase price concessions. In the rare
instances where such provisions are included, tragany defers all revenue until customer acceptanaehieved. In cases where products
are sold with a retention of 10% to 20%, whichyjsi¢ally payable by the customer when installatod field acceptance provisions are
completed, the customer has the right to withhiisl payment until such provisions have been achiewée defer the greater of the retention
amount or the fair value of the installation onteyss that we recognize revenue at the time of shipror delivery.

For new products, new applications of éxgsproducts or for products with substantive costoacceptance provisions where
performance cannot be fully assessed prior to mgetjreed upon specifications at the customerrsitenue is deferred as deferred profit in
the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets dgddaognized upon completion of installation aedeipt of final customer acceptance.

Our systems are principally sold to manufeers in the HB-LED, the data storage and soldustries. Sales arrangements for these
systems generally include customer acceptanceiarliased upon Veeco and/or customer specificatimsr to shipment a customer source
inspection of the system is performed in our facilir test data is sent to the customer documeitiiagthe system is functioning within
agreed upon specifications. Such source inspeotitest data replicates the acceptance testingviidie performed at the customer's site
prior to final acceptance of the system. Custoreeeptance provisions include reassembly and iasitadl of the system at the customer site,
which includes performing functional or mechanitest procedures (i.e. hardware checks, leak testing
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Veeco Instruments Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)

December 31, 2010

gas flow monitoring and quality control checks lné basic features of the product.) Additionallynaterial demonstration process may be
performed to validate the functionality of the puotl Upon meeting the agreed upon specificatioastistomer approves final acceptance of
the product.

Veeco generally is required to install thesoducts and demonstrate compliance with accept@sts at the customer's facility. Such
installations typically are not considered compexl the installation process is not deemed essémtiae functionality of the equipment
because it does not involve significant changdbédeatures or capabilities of the equipment wolive building complex interfaces or
connections. We have a demonstrated history of tating such installations in a timely, consisteramer and can reliably estimate the ¢
of such. In such cases, the test environment aflagilities prior to shipment replicates the cusésis environment. While there are others in
the industry with sufficient knowledge about thetailation process for our systems as a practiedian most customers engage the Com,
to perform the installation services.

In Japan, where our contractual terms witstomers generally specify risk of loss and tidesfers upon customer acceptance, revenue
is recognized and the customer is billed upon ptadiwritten customer acceptance.

Revenue related to maintenance and secoicgacts is recognized ratably over the applicablgract term. Component and spare part
revenue is recognized at the time of shipment tively in accordance with the terms of the applleadales arrangement.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cashigidly liquid investments with maturities of thre@nths or less when purchased. Such items
may include cash in operating bank accounts, liquichey market accounts, treasury bills, commegp@aler, Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation ("FDIC") insured corporate bonds andifieates of deposit placed through an accounistegservice ("CDARS") with
maturities of three months or less when purchaSBARRS, commercial paper and treasury bills clasdifis cash equivalents are carried at
cost, which approximates fair market value.

Short-Term Investments

We determine the appropriate balance stiassification of our investments at the time ofghase and evaluate the classification at -
balance sheet date. As part of our cash managgregram, we maintain a portfolio of marketable sii@s which are classified as available-
for-sale. These securities include FDIC insuregbomate bonds, treasury bills, commercial paperGDARS with maturities of greater than
three months when purchased in principal amounts then aggregated with interest to accrue oveteim, will not exceed FDIC limits.
Securities classified as available-for-sale aréeduat fair market value, with the unrealized gaamd losses, net of tax, included in the
determination of comprehensive income (loss) apdnted in equity. Net realized gains and lossesramtaded in net income (loss)
attributable to Veeco.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments, which potentiallpfct us to concentrations of credit risk, congrharily of accounts receivable, short-term
investments and cash and cash equivalents. Werpediogoing credit evaluations of our customers aitere appropriate, require that lett
of credit be provided on certain foreign salesrageaments. We maintain allowances for potentialittegses and make
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Veeco Instruments Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)

December 31, 2010

investments with strong, higher credit quality ssuand continuously monitor the amount of crexitosure to any one issuer.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of ¢pshcipally first-in, first-out method) or marké¥lanagement evaluates the need to record
adjustments for impairment of inventory on a qudytbasis. Our policy is to assess the valuatioalbihventories, including raw materials,
work in process, finished goods, and spare padsémer service inventory. Obsolete or slow-movimgentory, based upon historical usage
or inventory in excess of management's estimatageufor the next 12 months' requirements is writtewn to its estimated market value, if
less than its cost. Inherent in the estimates oketaralue are management's estimates relatedr iutowe manufacturing schedules, customer
demand, technological and/or market obsolescemssilge alternative uses and ultimate realizatioexoess inventory.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangibles

We account for goodwill and intangible asseith indefinite useful lives in accordance witlevant accounting guidance related to
goodwill and other intangible assets, which stétas goodwill and intangible assets with indefiniseful lives should not be amortized, but
instead tested for impairment at least annualthateporting unit level. Our policy is to perfothis annual impairment test in the fourth
quarter of each fiscal year or more frequentlyripairment indicators arise. Impairment indicataidude, among other conditions, cash flow
deficits, a historical or anticipated decline inerue or operating profit, adverse legal or regmatievelopments and a material decrease in
the fair value of some or all of the assets.

Pursuant to the aforementioned guidancameequired to determine if it is appropriate $e the operating segment, as defined under
guidance for segment reporting, as the reportingy anone level below the operating segment, ddpenon whether certain criteria are met.
We have identified two reporting units that areuieed to be reviewed for impairment. The reportimits are Data Storage and LED & Solar.
In identifying the reporting units management cdaséd the economic characteristics of operatingisags including the products and
services provided, production processes, typetagses of customer and product distribution.

We perform this impairment test by firshgmaring the fair value of our reporting units teittrespective carrying amount. When
determining the estimated fair value of a reporting, we utilize a discounted future cash flow @ggh since reported quoted market prices
are not available for our reporting units. Devehapthe estimate of the discounted future cash fexquires significant judgment and
projections of future financial performance. Theg kssumptions used in developing the discounteddutash flows are the projection of
future revenues and expenses, working capital reongints, residual growth rates and the weightethgeecost of capital. In developing our
financial projections, we consider historical datarrent internal estimates and market growth tsefidhanges to any of these assumptions
could materially change the fair value of the réipgrunit. We reconcile the aggregate fair valuewf reporting units to our adjusted market
capitalization as a supporting calculation. Thausidid market capitalization is calculated by miytig the average share price of our
common stock for the last ten trading days pridh®omeasurement date by the number of outstamdimgnon shares and adding a control
premium.
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Veeco Instruments Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
December 31, 2010

If the carrying value of the reporting snétxceed the fair value we would then comparertipdied fair value of our goodwill to the
carrying amount in order to determine the amounhefimpairment, if any.

Definite-Lived Intangible and Long-Lived Assets

Intangible assets consist of purchasedh@olyy, customer-related intangible assets, pataaidemarks, covenants not-to-compete,
software licenses and deferred financing costscHawed technology consists of the core proprietemyufacturing technologies associated
with the products and offerings obtained throughuégition and are initially recorded at fair val@@ustomer-related intangible assets, patents,
trademarks and covenants not-to-compete are Igitetorded at fair value and software licensesdefdrred financing costs are initially
recorded at cost. Intangible assets with definitigeful lives are amortized using the straight-timethod over their estimated useful lives for
periods ranging from 2 years to 17 years.

Property, plant and equipment are recoedexst. Depreciation is provided over the estighatgeful lives of the related assets using the
straight-line method for financial statement puggsAmortization of leasehold improvements is coraguwsing the straighine method ove
the shorter of the remaining lease term or theneg&d useful lives of the improvements.

Long-lived assets, such as property, pmt, equipment and intangible assets with defiustful lives, are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the carrying amount of an asset may notteverable. Impairment indicators
include, among other conditions, cash flow defjatsistorical or anticipated decline in revenueperating profit, adverse legal or regulat
developments and a material decrease in the faieva some or all of the assets. Assets are guapthe lowest level for which there are
identifiable cash flows that are largely indepertdsrthe cash flows generated by other asset grdepsoverability of assets to be held and
used is measured by a comparison of the carryirmpatof an asset to the estimated undiscountedefutash flow expected to be generated
by the asset. If the carrying amount of an assegeds its estimated future cash flows, an impaitrolearge is recognized by the amount by
which the carrying amount of the asset exceedfaihgalue of the asset.

Cost Method of Accounting for Investments

Investee companies not accounted for utideconsolidation or the equity method of accountire accounted for under the cost method
of accounting. Under this method, the Company'sesbfithe earnings or losses of such investee compés not included in the Consolida
Balance Sheet or Statement of Operations. Howéwegirment charges are recognized in the Conselii§tatement of Operations. If
circumstances suggest that the value of the ingesimpany has subsequently recovered, such recizveoy recorded.

Fair Value of Financial Instrumen

We believe the carrying amounts of ourtiicial instruments, including cash and cash equitsjeccounts receivable, accounts payable
accrued expenses, reflected in the consolidatedidial statements approximate fair value due tw #ert-term maturities. The fair value of
our debt, including current maturities, is estindatising a discounted cash flow analysis, baseti@edstimated current incremental borrow
rates for similar types of securities or based anket value for our publicly traded debt (see Nfte
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Veeco Instruments Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
December 31, 2010
Derivative Financial Instrument

We use derivative financial instrumentsnioimize the impact of foreign exchange rate chargreearnings and cash flows. In the
normal course of business, our operations are expimsfluctuations in foreign exchange rates. bleotto reduce the effect of fluctuating
foreign currencies on short-term foreign curreneypaminated intercompany transactions and other krfoveign currency exposures, we
enter into monthly forward contracts. We do not desgvative financial instruments for trading oesplative purposes. Our forward contracts
are not expected to subject us to material riskstdiexchange rate movements because gains aed lmsshese contracts are intended to
offset exchange gains and losses on the underhgagts and liabilities. The forward contracts aaeked-to-market through earnings. We
conduct our derivative transactions with highlyedafinancial institutions in an effort to mitigeaay material credit risk.

The aggregate foreign currency exchange @ass) included in determining consolidated ressaf operations was approximately
$1.3 million, $(0.7) million and $(0.1) million i2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Included inaipgregate foreign currency exchange gain
(loss) were gains (losses) relating to forward @mts of $0.1 million, $0.2 million and ($0.4) nwih in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
These amounts were recognized and are includetth@r, et in the accompanying Consolidated StatésrafrOperations.

As of December 31, 2010, approximately $0ilion of gains related to forward contracts wereluded in prepaid expenses and other
current assets and were subsequently receivedirada2011. As of December 31, 2009, approxima®élg million of gains related to
forward contracts were included in prepaid expeas@sother current assets and were subsequendiveedn January 2010. Monthly
forward contracts with a notional amount of $18iliom, entered into in December 2010 for Janua®$ P, will be settled in January 2011.

The weighted average notional amount oivdéve contracts outstanding during the year erfdedember 31, 2010 was approximately
$6.2 million.

Translation of Foreign Currencies

Certain of our international subsidiarigeate primarily using local functional currenciEereign currency denominated assets and
liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars at lexege rates in effect at the balance sheet dalenaome and expense accounts and cash flow
items are translated at average monthly excharge darring the respective periods. Net exchangesgailosses resulting from the
translation of foreign financial statements anddfiect of exchange rates on intercompany trans@sdf a long-term investment nature are
recorded as a separate component of equity in adeted other comprehensive income. Any foreignengy gains or losses related to
transactions are included in operating results.

Environmental Compliance and Remediai

Environmental compliance costs include angaonaintenance, monitoring and similar costs. Stadis are expensed as incurred.
Environmental remediation costs are accrued wheit@mental assessments and/or remedial effortprafgable and the cost can be
reasonably estimated.
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December 31, 2010
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incc

Our accumulated other comprehensive incon$.8 million and $7.1 million at December 31120and 2009, respectively, consists
primarily of foreign currency translation adjustren

Research and Development Cc

Research and development costs are ch&wgeghense as incurred and include expenses falehelopment of new technology and the
transition of technology into new products or seegi

Warranty Costs

We estimate the costs that may be incwinelbr the warranty we provide for our products awmbrd a liability in the amount of such
costs at the time the related revenue is recogniz&timated warranty costs are determined by amajyapecific product and historical
configuration statistics and regional warranty sapposts. Our warranty obligation is affected bgduct failure rates, material usage, and
labor costs incurred in correcting product failudesing the warranty period. Unforeseen componaihires or exceptional component
performance can also result in changes to warreodis. If actual warranty costs differ substantifibm our estimates, revisions to the
estimated warranty liability would be required.

Income Taxe

As part of the process of preparing our $&tidated Financial Statements, we are requiregstionate our income taxes in each of the
jurisdictions in which we operate. This processimes estimating the actual current tax expenggther with assessing tempor:
differences resulting from differing treatment t&fms for tax and accounting purposes. These diféeeresult in deferred tax assets and
liabilities, which are included within our Consdditd Balance Sheets. The carrying value of ourdmfeéax assets is adjusted by a patrtial
valuation allowance to recognize the extent to Wi future tax benefits will be recognized on@enlikely than not basis. Our net deferred
tax assets consist primarily of net operating lsd tax credit carry forwards, and timing differesbetween the book and tax treatment of
inventory, acquired intangible assets and otheztagduations. Realization of these net deferrgditsets is dependent upon our ability to
generate future taxable income.

We record valuation allowances in ordereiuce our deferred tax assets to the amount eegoexbe realized. In assessing the adeq
of recorded valuation allowances, we consider &tsaof factors, including the scheduled reverdalaferred tax liabilities, future taxable
income, and prudent and feasible tax planningeggias. Under the relevant accounting guidancegfasiuch as current and previous
operating losses are given significantly greateightethan the outlook for future profitability iretermining the deferred tax asset carrying
value.

Relevant accounting guidance addressedetegmination of how tax benefits claimed or expddb be claimed on a tax return shoul
recorded in the financial statements. Under sudtiaguece, we must recognize the tax benefit fromraoettain tax position only if it is more
likely than not that the tax position will be sustd on examination by the taxing authorities, Hase the technical merits of the position.
tax benefits recognized in the financial statem&oi® such uncertain tax positions are measureddas the largest benefit that has a gre
than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upoltimate resolution.
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Advertising Expens

The cost of advertising is expensed abefitst showing of each advertisement. We incuied million, $0.7 million and $1.3 million
in advertising expenses during 2010, 2009 and 2@3®ectively.

Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs are costsatatncurred to move, package and prepare our ptedor shipment and then to move the
products to the customer's designated locationsd bests are generally comprised of payments td-fairty shippers. Shipping and handling
costs are included in cost of sales in our Conatéid Statements of Operations.

Equity-Based Compensation

Equity-based compensation cost is measatrtite grant date, based on the fair value of Weaédand is recognized as expense over the
employee requisite service period. In order to mheitee the fair value of stock options on the ddtgrant, we apply the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model. Inherent in the model are assumpgti@tated to risk-free interest rate, dividenddjexpected stock-price volatility and
expected option term.

The risk-free rate assumed in valuing thioos is based on the U.S. Treasury yield cuneffiect at the time of grant for the expected
term of the option. The dividend yield assumptistased on our historical and future expectatiativaflend payouts. While the risk-free
interest rate and dividend yield are less subjedissumptions, typically based on factual dataséldrirom public sources, the expected stock-
price volatility and expected option term assumpdicequire a level of judgment which make themaaitaccounting estimates.

We use an expected stock-price volatilggiamption that is a combination of both historiaahtility, calculated based on the daily
closing prices of our common stock over a periodabtp the expected term of the option and implieldtility, utilizing market data of
actively traded options on our common stock, whitdh obtained from public data sources. We belieaethe historical volatility of the price
of our common stock over the expected term of {ht@n is a strong indicator of the expected futuskatility and that implied volatility takes
into consideration market expectations of how faitwwlatility will differ from historical volatility Accordingly, we believe a combination of
both historical and implied volatility provides thest estimate of the future volatility of the metrkrice of our common stock.

The expected option term, representingotiréod of time that options granted are expectdaktoutstanding, is estimated using a lattice-
based model incorporating historical post vest@serand employee termination behavior.

We estimate forfeitures using historicgbenience, which is adjusted over the requisiteiserperiod based on the extent to which actual
forfeitures differ, or are expected to differ, frauch estimates. Because of the significant amofyotdgment used in these calculations, it is
reasonably likely that circumstances may causeshienate to change.

With regard to the expected option termuagstion, we consider the exercise behavior of gestts and model the pattern of aggregate
exercises.
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Recent Accounting Pronounceme

Business Combinations: In December 2010, the FASB issued amended go&deelated to Business Combinations. The amendment
affect any public entity that enters into businessbinations that are material on an individuaghggregate basis. The amendments specify
that if a public entity presents comparative finahstatements, the entity should disclose revemgeearnings of the combined entity as
though the business combination(s) that occurrehgdhe current year had occurred as of the baéginof the comparable prior annual
reporting period only. The amendments also expaeadtpplemental pro forma disclosures to includeszription of the nature and amount
of material, nonrecurring pro forma adjustmentgdiy attributable to the business combinationuded in the reported pro forma revenue
and earnings. The amendments are effective pragplctor business combinations for which the asgign date is on or after the beginning
of the first annual reporting period beginning eorafier December 15, 2010. Early adoption is paeditThe Company will assess the impact
of these amendments on its consolidated finantagéments if and when an acquisition occurs.

Intangibles—Goodwill and Other: In December 2010, the FASB issued amended go@deelated to Intangibles—Goodwill and Other.
The amendments modify Step 1 of the goodwill imeint test for reporting units with zero or negatieerying amounts. For those reporting
units, an entity is required to perform Step 2h&f goodwill impairment test if it is more likelyah not that a goodwill impairment exists. In
determining whether it is more likely than not thagoodwill impairment exists, an entity should sider whether there are any adverse
gualitative factors indicating that an impairmeraynexist. The qualitative factors are consistetih wie existing guidance and examples,
which require that goodwill of a reporting unit tested for impairment between annual tests if amewccurs or circumstances change that
would more likely than not reduce the fair valueaatporting unit below its carrying amount. Fobliuentities, the amendments are effec
for fiscal years, and interim periods within thg®sars, beginning after December 15, 2010. Earlytoio is not permitted. The Company
does not believe that this guidance will have aemi@timpact on its consolidated financial statetaen

Subsequent Events:The FASB has issued amended guidance for subsegvents. The amendment removes the requirdorem
SEC filer to disclose a date through which subsetjeeents have been evaluated in both issued ammbdefinancial statements. Revised
financial statements include financial statemeetssed as a result of either correction of an esraetrospective application of U.S. GAAP.
The FASB also clarified that if the financial staents have been revised, then an entity that ism&EC filer should disclose both the date
that the financial statements were issued or avail be issued and the date the revised finartaéédments were issued or available to be
issued. The FASB believes these amendments renateatial conflicts with the SEC's literature. Aflthe amendments were effective upon
issuance (February 24, 2010). The adoption ofghidance did not have a material impact on the Goys consolidated financial
statements.

Fair Value Measurements: In January 2010, the FASB issued amended go@fom Fair Value Measurements and Disclosuress Thi
update requires some new disclosures and clagfisting disclosure requirements about fair valasurement. The FASB's objective is to
improve these disclosures and, thus, increaseahsgarency in financial reporting. Specificallyistupdate requires that a reporting entity
disclose separately the amounts of significantsfiens in and out of Level 1 and Level 2 fair vatneasurements and describe the reasons for
the transfers; and in the reconciliation for faatue measurements using significant unobservaplésna reporting entity should present
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separately information about purchases, salesane®s, and settlements. In addition, this updaitdfiels the requirements of existing
disclosures. For purposes of reporting fair valmasurement for each class of assets and liabiliiesporting entity needs to use judgmer
determining the appropriate classes of assetsialititles; and a reporting entity should providedalosures about the valuation techniques
and inputs used to measure fair value for bothrreand nonrecurring fair value measurementss Tpidate was adopted on January 1,
2010, except for the disclosures about purchaséss,9ssuances, and settlements in the roll fahwéactivity in Level 3 fair value
measurements. The adoption of this guidance dithae¢ a material impact on the Company's conselitifibancial statements. Those
disclosures are effective for fiscal years begigrafter December 15, 2010, and for interim periedbin those fiscal years. Early application
is permitted. The Company does not believe thatghidance will have a material impact on its cdidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition: In October 2009, the FASB issued amended guilaglated to multiple-element arrangements wiecfuires
an entity to allocate arrangement consideratidheatnception of an arrangement to all of its deflables based on their relative selling prices.
This update eliminates the use of the residual atkdf allocation and requires the relative-sellprgee method in all circumstances. All
entities must adopt the guidance no later tham#gnning of their first fiscal year beginning onadter June 15, 2010. Entities may elect to
adopt the guidance through either prospective egiitin for revenue arrangements entered into oemadly modified, after the effective date
or through retrospective application to all reveam@ngements for all periods presented. The Coyngaes not believe that this guidance
will have a material impact on its consolidatedhfinial statements.

In October 2009, the FASB issued amendédbgee that is expected to significantly affect hentities account for revenue
arrangements that contain both hardware and saftelaments. As a result, many tangible productsréiaon software will be accounted |
under the revised multiple-element arrangementsma® recognition guidance, rather than the softwearenue recognition guidance. The
revised guidance must be adopted by all entitielaiteo than fiscal years beginning on or after JU5e2010. An entity must select the same
transition method and same period for the adopifdyoth this guidance and the revisions to the iplekelement arrangements guidance
noted above. The Company does not believe thagthdance will have a material impact on its coiusded financial statements.
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2. Income (Loss) Per Common Share Attributabléo Veeco

The following table sets forth basic anlditgid net income (loss) per common share and thghtesl average shares outstanding and
diluted weighted average shares outstandingl{ousands, except per share data

Year ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008

Net income (loss $ 361,76( $ (15,637 $ (75,42)
Net loss attributable t

noncontrolling interes — (65) (230

Net income (loss
attributable to Veec $ 361,76( $ (15,567 $ (75,19

Income (loss) per commc
share attributable to

Veeco:
Basic $ 9.1€¢ $ (0.4¢ $ (2.40
Diluted $ 851 $ (048 $ (2.40
Basic weighted average

shares outstandir 39,49¢ 32,62¢ 31,34%

Dilutive effect of stock
options, restricted stocl
awards and units and

convertible deb 3,01¢ — —
Diluted weighted average
shares outstandir 42,51« 32,62¢ 31,34’

Basic income (loss) per common share isprded using the weighted average number of comrhares outstanding during the period.
Diluted income (loss) per common share is compus#dg the weighted average number of common ska@sommon equivalent shares
outstanding during the period. The effect of apprately 761,000 and 170,000 common equivalent shfarethe years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008, respectively, were excluded frondtheed weighted average shares outstanding dthestoet losses sustained for these
periods. No shares were excluded from the compuurtati diluted weighted average shares outstandinthe year ended December 31, 2010.

At January 1, 2008 we had unsecured coilWegubordinated notes of $25.2 million havingoawersion price of $38.51 per share (the
"Old Notes") which was due and subsequently paidenember 2008. For the year ended December 38, B®assumed conversion of the
Old Notes was 0.5 million common equivalent shalbege to the net loss reported for the period, threvertible shares are anti-dilutive and,
therefore, are not included in the diluted weighdedrage shares outstanding for the year endechiere31, 2008.

At January 1, 2008 we had new unsecuredeartible subordinated notes of $117.8 million havanconversion price of $27.23 per share
(the "New Notes") of which $12.2 million was repliased in the fourth quarter of 2008. The New Natest the criteria for determining the
effect of the assumed conversion using the treastogk method of accounting, as long as we havabhigy and the intent to settle the
principal amount of the New Notes in cash. Undertdrms of the New Notes, we may pay the prin@pabunt of converted New Notes in
cash or in shares of common stock. We have indidht we intend to pay such amounts in cash. Usiegreasury stock method, the impact
of the assumed conversion of the New Notes hatliiwvéi affect of 1.2 million shares for the yeaded December 31, 2010 and was anti-
dilutive for the years ended December 31, 20092048, as the
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average stock price was below the conversion @fi&27.23 for the period. The effect of the assucmtverted shares is dependent on the
stock price at the time of the conversion. The mmaxn number of shares that can be issued upon akesf the New Notes were
5.4 million common equivalent shares for the yearded December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 (see Note 7)

3. Discontinued Operations

On August 15, 2010, we signed a definitigeeement to sell our Metrology business to Brikamporation ("Bruker") comprising our
entire Metrology reporting segment for $229.4 roilli Accordingly, Metrology's operating results aceounted for as discontinued operat
in determining the consolidated results of operegiand the related assets and liabilities areifilsbsis held for sale on our Consolidated
Balance Sheet for all periods presented. The s@psaction closed on October 7, 2010, exceptdseta located in China due to local
restrictions. Total proceeds, which included a viroglcapital adjustment of $1 million, totaled $28@illion of which $7.2 million relates to
the assets in China. As part of our agreement Riittker, $22.9 million of proceeds is held in escrand is restricted from use for one year
from the closing date of the transaction to seceréain specified losses arising out of breachasmfesentations, warranties and covenants
we made in the stock purchase agreement and relateanents. As part of the sale we incurred traiwacosts, which consisted of
investment bank fees and legal fees, totaling #8llibn. The Company recognized a pre-tax gain mpakal of $156.3 million and a pre-tax
deferred gain of $5.4 million related to the asgetShina.

The following is a summary of the net asselld as of the closing date on October 7, Z01thousands)

Qctober 7, 201(

Assets

Accounts receivable, n $ 21,86¢
Inventories 26,43:
Property, plant and equipment at cost, 13,40¢
Goodwill 7,41¢
Other asset 5,48¢
Assets of discontinued segment held for $ 74,60¢
Liabilities

Accounts payabl $ 7,61¢€
Accrued expenses and other current liabili 5,28¢

Liabilities of discontinued segment held for s $ 12,90(
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Summary information related to discontineg@érations is as followsif thousand9:

Year ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Net sales $ 92,01 $ 97,737 $ 127,87:
Cost of sale: 47,82 57,41( 74,55
Gross profit 44,18¢ 40,32: 53,32:
Total operating expens 45,02« 43,03( 77,74:
Operating los: $ (835 $ (2,709 $ (24,419
Net income (loss) fror

discontinued operations

net of tax $ 101,22¢ $ (1,407) $ 24,58¢

December 31,

2010 2009
Assets
Cash $ — 9 89
Accounts receivable, n — 16,81:
Inventories — 21,75%
Property, plant and

equipment at cost, n — 14,68:
Goodwill — 7,41¢
Other asset — 9,321
Assets of discontinued

segment held for sa $ — $ 70,08¢
Liabilities
Accounts payabl $ — $ 4,20
Accrued expenses and otl

current liabilities 5,35¢ 6,622

Liabilities of discontinued
segment held for sa $ 535¢ $ 10,82

4. Fair Value Measurements

We have categorized our assets and liegsiliecorded at fair value based upon the fairevhlararchy. The levels of fair value hierarchy
are as follows:

. Level 1 inputs utilize quoted prices (unadjustedactive markets for identical assets or liab#itibat we have the ability to
access.
. Level 2 inputs utilize other-than-quoted prices i@ observable, either directly or indirectlyvee2 inputs include quoted

prices for similar assets and liabilities in actmarkets, and inputs such as interest rates aidi gueves that are observable at
commonly quoted intervals.

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable and are typicallgebl on our own assumptions, including situatiolnere/ there is little, if an
market activity.

In certain cases, the inputs used to medsirrvalue may fall into different levels of tFer value hierarchy. In such cases, we categt
such assets or liabilities based on the lowest lapeit that is significant to the fair value meesment in its entirety. Our assessment of the
significance of ¢
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particular input to the fair value measurementsrentirety requires judgment and considers facpegific to the asset.

Both observable and unobservable inputs Ineaysed to determine the fair value of posititwasg &re classified within the Level 3
category. As a result, the unrealized gains ansel$or assets within the Level 3 category presdogéow may include changes in fair value
that were attributable to both observable (e.canges in market interest rates) and unobservalge ¢hanges in historical company data)
inputs.

The major categories of assets and ligslineasured on a recurring basis, at fair vakief ®ecember 31, 2010 and 2009 are as fol
(in millions):

December 31, 2010

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Treasury bills $ 1362 $ 798 $ — $ 2157
FDIC insured corporate bon 129.¢ — — 129.¢
Commercial pape 128.¢ 62.¢ — 191.4
Money market instrumen — 0.€ — 0.€
Derivative instrumen — 0.3 — =
Total $ 3947 $ 1432 $ — $ 537«

December 31, 2009

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
CDAR's $ — §$ 180.C $ — $ 180.C
Derivative instrumen — 0.2 — 0.2
Total $ — $ 180.z $ — $ 180.2

CDARS, commercial paper and treasury bl are classified as cash equivalents are caatiedst, which approximates market value.
Accordingly, no gains or losses (realized/unredljzeave been incurred for cash equivalents. Aleégtnents classified as available-for-sale
contain quoted prices in active markets.

Derivative instruments include foreign @y forward contracts to hedge certain foreigmenay transactions. Derivative instruments
are valued using standard calculations/modelsatteaprimarily based on observable inputs, includargign currency exchange rates,
volatilities and interest rates.

The major categories of assets and ligslineasured on a nonrecurring basis, at fair yasief December 31, 2010 and 2009 are as
follows (iin millions):

December 31, 2010

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Property, plant and equipment, | $ — $ — $ 42 § 42:
Goodwill — — 52.C 52.C
Intangible assets, n — — 16.€ 16.€
Restructuring liability — — (2.0 (2.0
Total $ — $ — $ 110z $ 110z
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December 31, 2009

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Property, plant and equipment, | $ — $ — $ 449 $ 444
Goodwill — — 52.C 52.C
Intangible assets, n — — 21.¢ 21.¢
Asset retirement obligatic — — (0.2 (0.2
Restructuring liability — — (2.9 (2.9
Total $ — $ — $ 115¢ $ 115¢

5. Business Combinations
Mill Lane Engineering Co., Inc

On May 22, 2008, we acquired Mill Lane Bregring Co., Inc. ("Mill Lane"), a privately heldamufacturer of web coating systems for
flexible solar panels, for a purchase price of §Iillion, net of cash acquired, plus potentialifietearn-out payments of up to $19.0 million
(representing additional purchase price) continggoin the future achievement of certain operatiggpmance criteria. Fees related to the
acquisition were $0.7 million. Mill Lane is basedliowell, Massachusetts and at the time of acqarshiad approximately 20 employees.
financial results of Mill Lane are included in duUED & Solar segment (see Note 11) as of the aciisdate. We have determined that this
acquisition does not constitute a material busigessbination and therefore are not including prorfa financial statements in this report.

As of December 31, 2008, we had accrue@ $8llion for our earn-out obligation due to therfeer owners of Mill Lane resulting from
the achievement of certain operating performaniteri@ earned through the end of the fourth quant&008. Payment of this earn-out
obligation was made in the first quarter of 2009.0% December 31, 2010, no earn-out obligationsaremander this purchase arrangement.

6. Balance Sheet Information
Short-term Investments
Available-for-sale securities consist o fbllowing (in thousandg:

December 31, 2010

Gains in Accumulated Losses in Accumulated
Amortized Other Comprehensive Other Comprehensive Estimated
Cost Income Income Fair Value
Commercial pape $ 128,52 $ 61 $ — $ 128,58t
FDIC insured corporate
bonds 129,35: 24 — 129,37°
Treasury bills 136,20: 12 — 136,21!
Total available-for-sale
securities $ 394,08. $ 97 $ — $ 394,18(

During the year ended December 31, 201#ijabhle-for-sale securities were sold for totalqaeds of $246.6 million. The gross realized
gains on these sales were minimal for the yearc&eBeeember 31, 2010. For purpose of determininggrealized gains, the cost of secur
sold is based on specific identification. The natealized holding gain on available-for-sale sdmgiamounted to
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$0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2@Hh@, has been included in accumulated other compséeleeincome.

Contractual maturities of available-foresdkebt securities at December 31, 2010, are asw®l{in thousand3:

Estimated

Fair Value
Due in one year or le: $ 216,24
Due in 1-2 years 177,93t
Total investments in debt securit| $ 394,18

Actual maturities may differ from contraatumaturities because some borrowers have the tagtdll or prepay obligations with or
without call or prepayment penalties.

Restricted Cas

As of December 31, 2010, restricted castsists of $22.9 million that relates to the proceegteived from the sale of our Metrology
segment. This cash is held in escrow and is réstriitom use for one year from the closing dattheftransaction (see Note 3). Additionally,
restricted cash also consists of $53.2 million \whserves as collateral for bank guarantees thaidedinancial assurance that the Company
will fulfill certain customer obligations. This dass held in custody by the issuing bank, and s¢ricted as to withdrawal or use while the
related bank guarantees are outstanding.

Inventories
December 31,
2010 2009
Raw materials $ 49,95 $ 34,21
Work in proces: 33,18: 17,90¢
Finished good 25,35: 3,68¢

$ 108,48 $ 55,80:

Property, Plant and Equipme

December 31, Estimated
2010 2009 Useful Lives
Land $ 727« $ 7,27
Buildings and improvemen 30,73: 30,707 1C-40 year:
Machinery and equipme! 73,17: 71,35¢ 3-10 years
Leasehold improvemen 2,27¢ 3,54¢ 3-7 years
Gross property, plant, and equipment at 113,45: 112,88
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize 71,13¢ 68,18(
Net property, plant, and equipment at ¢ $ 42,32( $ 44,707
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For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2082008, depreciation expense was $8.0 milli8ry, #illion and $8.8 million,
respectively.

Gooduwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

In accordance with the relevant accounguglance related to goodwill and other intangilsseds, we conducted our annual impairment
test of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangiblesass during the fourth quarters of 2010 and 208@\guOctober £ as our measurement date,
and utilizing a discounted future cash flow apploas described in Note 1. This was consistent thizhapproach used in previous years.
Based upon the results of such assessments, wendetd that no goodwill and indefinite-lived intabig asset impairment existed in any of
its reporting units, as of October 1, 2010 and 2088pectively.

Changes in our goodwill are as follows thousandg:

Year ended December 31,

2010 2009
Balance as of January $ 52,00 $ 51,74:
Acquisition — 262
Balance as of December $ 52,00¢ $ 52,00

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, we ha#él 8@llion of indefinite-lived intangible assetsnsisting of trademarks and tradenames,
which are included in the accompanying Consolid&aldince Sheets in the caption intangible assets, n

Intangible Asset

December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Other Total Other Total
Purchased intangible intangible Purchased intangible intangible
technology assets assets technology assets assets
Gross intangible
asset: $ 9847 $ 22,73¢ $ 121,200 $ 98,47 $ 22,73¢ $ 121,20°
Less accumulated
amortization (86,37¢) (17,939 (104,31 (83,357 (16,085 (99,437
Intangible assets,
net $ 12,097 $ 4,79 $ 16,89: $ 15121 $ 6,64¢ $ 21,77(

The estimated aggregate amortization exp@arsntangible assets with definite useful lifeseach of the next five fiscal years is as
follows (in thousandg:

2011 $ 4,05¢
2012 3,15¢
2013 1,79¢
2014 1,43:
2015 1,33¢

In accordance with the relevant accounguglance related to the impairment or disposabogtlived assets, we performed an analysis
as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 of our definitedlintangible and long-lived assets. No impairmexisted in any of our reporting units.
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Accrued Expense

December 31,

2010 2009
Payroll and related benefi $ 27,37: $ 20,24
Sales, use, income and other ta 4,91« 3,281
Customer deposits and advanced billi 129,22! 59,75¢
Warranty 9,23¢ 6,67¢
Restructuring liability 714 2,451
Other 11,54¢ 7,407

$ 183,01( $ 99,82:

Accrued Warrant

We estimate the costs that may be incwnetbr the warranty we provide for our products mmbgnize a liability in the amount of such
costs at the time the related revenue is recognizactors that affect our warranty liability inckigroduct failure rates, material usage and
labor costs incurred in correcting product failudesing the warranty period. Changes in our wagréiability during the year are as follows:

Year ended December 3

2010 2009
Balance as of the beginning of y¢ $ 6,67 $ 5,53
Warranties issued during the ye 9,69: 4,77
Settlements made during the y: (7,137) (3,63%)
Balance as of the end of ye $ 9,23t $ 6,67¢
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7. Debt
Long-term Debt
Long-term debt is summarized as follovirs thousand$:

December 31,

2010 2009
Convertible subordinated de $ 101,13t $ 98,08:
Mortgage notes payab 2,88: 3,09t

104,02: 101,17¢
Less current portio 101,36 212

$ 2,65¢ $ 100,96

Convertible Subordinated Debt

At January 1, 2008 we had new unsecuredeartible subordinated notes of $117.8 million havanconversion price of $27.23 per share
(the "Notes") of which $12.2 million was repurché$e the fourth quarter of 2008. The Notes meefttiiteria for determining the effect of
the assumed conversion using the treasury stodkauetf accounting, as long as we have the abititythe intent to settle the principal
amount of the Notes in cash. Under the terms ofibies, we may pay the principal amount of coneeNetes in cash or in shares of
common stock. We have indicated that we intendagpquch amounts in cash. Using the treasury statkad, the impact of the assumed
conversion of the Notes had a dilutive affect & rillion shares for the year ended December 3102hd was anti-dilutive for the years
ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, as the averagemsice was below the conversion price of $27d23he period. The effect of the
assumed converted shares is dependent on thepsioelat the time of the conversion. The maximummber of shares that can be issued
upon conversion of the Notes were 5.4 million commquivalent shares for the years ended Decemh&030, 2009 and 2008.

The Notes are initially convertible into.3877 shares of common stock per $1,000 principalat of Notes (equivalent to a conversion
price of $27.23 per share or a premium of 38% ¢iverclosing market price for our common stock omil&k6, 2007). On or after April 20,
2011, we may redeem the Notes, in whole or in pargash at 100% of the principal amount of theesdo be redeemed plus accrued and
unpaid interest to, but not including, the redemptiate. Holders may convert the Notes at any tiorang the period beginning on
January 15, 2012 through the close of businesk@grédcond day prior to April 15, 2012 and earl@oruthe occurrence of certain events
including our common stock trading at prices edoalr above 130% of the conversion price for asi@8 trading days during the final
30 trading days of the immediately preceding figsparter. At the end of the fourth quarter of 20dil, common stock was trading at prices
equal to or above 130% of the conversion pricetferspecified period and, as a result, the Notesanvertible during the first quarter
of 2011. If the Notes are converted, we have tliiyabnd intent to pay the principal balance otemtendered for conversion in cash. We
re-perform this test each quarter up to and inalgdhe fourth quarter of 2011. Accordingly, thedwale of the convertible notes at
December 31, 2010 has been classified as currentri€onsolidated Balance Sheet. On February 141,24 the option of the holder,
$7.5 million of notes were tendered for conversaba price of $45.95 per share
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in a net share settlement. As a result, we paigtimeipal amount of $7.5 million in cash and is$dd 1,318 shares of our common stock.
Accordingly, in the first quarter of 2011 we wilikte a charge for the related unamortized debt digdotaling $0.3 million. We pay interest
on these notes on April 15 and October 15 of eaeln.yThe Notes are unsecured and are effectivelgrdinated to all of our senior and
secured indebtedness and to all indebtedness bhadl@tbilities of our subsidiaries.

During the fourth quarter of 2008, we reghased $12.2 million aggregate of the Notes fo? $Tillion in cash, of which $7.1 million
related to principal and $0.1 million related t@mamed interest, reducing the amount outstanding 4 17.8 million to $105.6 million.
A gross gain of approximately $5.1 million was netadl on these repurchases offset by the writefaipproximately $0.1 million of
unamortized deferred financing costs associateldl tivé Notes, for a net gain of approximately $5illion. Such net gain was reduced to
$3.8 million upon the application of accountingdgrice (see below), which required that the gaicdb®ulated based on the fair value of the
portion repurchased as of the repurchase datefalthealue approximated the carrying value nethef tnamortized discount on the portion
repurchased. The difference of approximately $lilRom between the fair value and the amount pa#swecorded as a reduction in the gain
originally reported, which increased the accumulateficit as of December 31, 2008 by that amount.

As of January 1, 2009, we implemented ating guidance related to our convertible debt laade applied it retrospectively to all
periods presented, as required. This guidancenesjisisuers of convertible debt that can be seitiledsh to separately account faore(,
bifurcate) a portion of the debt associated withabnversion feature and reclassify this portioaguoity. The liability portion, which
represents the fair value of the debt without thieversion feature, is accreted to its face valuar tive life of the debt using the effective
interest method by amortizing the discount betwtberface amount and the fair value. The amortinasaecorded as interest expense. The
notes are subject to such accounting guidance tiegemay be settled in cash upon conversion. Tdmug, result of the adoption of this
accounting guidance, we reclassified approxim&b&.3 million from long-term debt to additional dan capital effective as of the date of
issuance of the Notes. This reclassification ckat®16.3 million discount on the debt that willdmortized over the remaining life of the
Notes, which will be through April 15, 2012. Thelassification generated a $6.7 million deferredli@bility, which we offset with ¢
corresponding decrease of the valuation allowagdfido same amount. Prior periods are presentddtas mew guidance was in effect as of
the date of issuance. Thus, we have presentematidial data for prior periods in this report fiwé had reclassified the $16.3 million and
began amortizing the resultant debt discount inl&M07. The retrospective application of the navidgnce described above to the results
the year ended December 31, 2008 increased tHesseattributable to Veeco from ($71.1) million(®¥5.2) million and increased the loss
per share attributable to Veeco from ($2.27) ta482

The total effect on equity as of the ddtadoption on January 1, 2009 was a net increa$& @M million, comprised of an increase in
additional paid-in capital of $16.3 million and imcrease in the accumulated deficit of $6.0 millidhe $6.0 million is comprised of
$2.9 million and $1.9 million in amortization ofetdebt discount for 2008 and 2007, respectivelyalbas the $1.2 million reduction in the
gain that was recorded on the November 2008 repassh

For the years ended December 31, 2010, 20682008, we recorded approximately $3.1 mill&hg8 million and $2.9 million,
respectively, additional interest expense in easfod resulting from the amortization of the deisicdunt. This additional interest expense
not require the use of cash.
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The components of interest expense recasddtie Notes for the years ended December 31,, 2008 and 2008 were as follows (
thousandy:

Year ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Contractual interes $ 4355 $ 4,35¢ $ 4,801
Amortization of the discount on

the Notes 3,057 2,84¢ 2,917
Total interest expense on the

Notes $ 7412 $ 7,202 $ 7,71¢
Effective interest rat 7.C% 6.8% 6.7%

The carrying amounts of the liability arguigy components of the Notes as of December 310 2B/d 2009 were as followsn(
thousandy:

Year ended December 31,

2010 2009
Carrying amount of the equity

componen $ 16,31¢ $ 16,31¢
Principal balance of the liability

componen $ 105,57: $ 105,57-
Less: unamortized discou 4,43¢ 7,49:
Net carrying value of the liabilit

componen $ 101,13t $ 98,08:

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, $105.6 onilbf the Notes were outstanding with fair valueagproximately $164.1 million and
$144.6 million, respectively.

Mortgage Notes Payab

Long-term debt as of December 31, 201® alsludes a mortgage note payable, which is sedoyecertain land and buildings with
carrying amounts aggregating approximately $5.lioniland $5.2 million as of December 31, 2010 ard¢d@nber 31, 2009, respectively. T
mortgage note payable ($2.9 million as of Decen¥ie2010 and $3.1 million as of December 31, 2@@2)s interest at an annual rate of

7.91%, with the final payment due on January 10202e fair market value of this note as of Decem3ige 2010 and 2009 was
approximately $3.1 million and $3.3 million, respeely.
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Maturity of Lon¢term Debt

Long-term debt matures as followia (housand$:

2011 $ 105,80:
2012 24¢
2013 26¢
2014 29C
2015 314
Thereafte 1,53¢
108,45
Less current portio 105,80*
$ 2,65/

* Difference of $4,436 from $101,367 in the ConsdkdieBalance Sheet is due to the unamortized debt

discount.

8. Equity Compensation Plans and Equity
Stock Option and Restricted Stock Plans

We have several stock option and restristedk plans. On April 1, 2010, the Board of Dimrstof the Company, and on May 14, 2010,
our shareholders, approved the 2010 Stock IncePiiare (the "2010 Plan"). The 2010 Plan replace®@@® Stock Incentive Plan, as
amended (the "2000 Plan"), as the Company's astiek plan. The Company's employees, directorcandultants are eligible to receive
awards under the 2010 Plan. The 2010 Plan perhgtgranting of a variety of awards, including botm-qualified and incentive stock
options, share appreciation rights, restrictedeshaestricted share units and dividend equivalghts. The Company is authorized to issu
to 3,500,000 shares under the 2010 Plan. Optiomdsveae generally granted with an exercise prieskimp the closing price of the
Company's stock on the trading day prior to the ddigrant; those option awards generally vest avgear period and have a 7 or 10-year
term. Restricted share awards generally vest oveydars. Certain option and share awards providadcelerated vesting if there is a cha
in control, as defined in the 2010 Plan. As of Deber 31, 2010, there are 625,531 options outstgndider this plan.

The 2000 Plan was approved by the Boaiiigctors and shareholders in May 2000. The 20@@ Ptovides for the grant to officers
and key employees of stock awards, either in tha fof options to purchase shares of our commorksiocestricted stock awards. Stock
awards granted pursuant to the 2000 Plan expiee sétven years and generally vest over a two-pefard-year period following the grant
date. In addition, the 2000 Plan provides for awtticrannual grants of restricted stock to each negrabour Board of Directors who is not
employee. As of December 31, 2010, there are 16233yptions outstanding under this plan.

The Veeco Instruments Inc. Amended and®edt1992 Employees' Stock Option Plan (the "1988"Pprovided for the grant to
officers and key employees of stock options to pase shares of our common stock. Stock optiongeggrursuant to the 1992 Plan became
exercisable over a three-year period followingdhent date and expire after ten years. As of Deeer8b, 2010, there are 1,200 stock options
outstanding under this plan.
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In addition to the plans described above assumed certain stock option plans and agreemeatmg to the merger in September 2001
with Applied Epi, Inc. ("Applied Epi"). These stodption plans do not have options available foufeitgrants. Options granted under these
plans expire after ten years from the date of gr@ptions granted under two of these plans vestedthree years and options granted under
one of these plans vested immediately. As of Deeer8l, 2010, there are 9,272 options outstandinigiuthe various Applied Epi plans.

Equity-Based Compensation, Stock Option and Restrictezk $ctivity

Equity-based compensation cost is measafréte grant date, based on the fair value of ter@ and is recognized as expense over the
employee requisite service period. The followinghpensation expense was included as part of contimperations in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations for the years ended Deme@ih 2010, 2009 and 200&(thousandy:

Year ended December 31,
2010 2009 2008

Equity-based compensation
expense $ 9,64¢ $ 7,541 $ 9,66¢

As a result of the sale of our Metrologgeent to Bruker, equity-based compensation expesiated to Metrology employees has been
classified as discontinued operations in deterngitiire consolidated results of operations for theryended December 31, 2010, 2009
and 2008. For the year ended December 31, 201frdisued operations included compensation expeh$€.7 million that related to the
acceleration of equity awards from employees thtegewerminated as a result of the sale of our NEgsosegment to Bruker. For the year
ended December 31, 2009, total equity-based comafiensexpense included a charge of $0.7 milliortfieracceleration of equity awards
associated with the retirement of our former CF@.the year ended December 31, 2008, total eqaiseth compensation expense included a
charge of $3.0 million for the acceleration of ég@wards associated with a mutually agreed-uponitation of the employment agreement
with our former CEO (who currently remains as Cimain of the Board of Directors) following the suafescompletion of the CEO
transition.

As of December 31, 2010, the total unrecteghcompensation cost related to nonvested stwekds and option awards expected to*
is $9.0 million and $14.9 million, respectively,dathe related weighted average period over whichekpected that such unrecognized
compensation costs will be recognized is approxigat.6 years and 2.1 years for the nonvested staeikds and for option awards,
respectively.

The fair value of each option granted dytime years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2@88stimated on the date of grant using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with thedaling assumptions:

Year ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Weighted-average expected stock-

price volatility 62% 65% 49%
Weighted-average expected option

life 5year 4year 3year
Average ris-free interest rat 1.92% 1.79% 3.14%
Average dividend yieli 0% 0% 0%
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A summary of our restricted stock awaraduding restricted stock units as of December 3102 is presented below:

Weighted-

Average

Grant-Date

Shares (000's) Fair Value
Nonvested at December 31, 2( 89z % 12.97
Granted 18€ 34.97
Vested(1) (365) 12.7¢

Forfeited (including cancelled

awards)(2 (97 17.1¢
Nonvested at December 31, 2( 61€ $ 19.0¢

@ Includes the effect of approximately 43,383 sharksse vesting was accelerated as a result of taeba
our Metrology business.

2 Includes the effect of approximately 73,282 shéoefgited as a result of the sale of our Metrology
business

During the year ended December 31, 201(gnapted 130,665 shares of restricted common stndkd0,200 restricted stock units to key
employees, which vest over three or four year pistitncluded in this grant were 14,518 sharesgificded common stock granted to the non-
employee members of the Board of Directors througkime year in May, June and December 2010, whish over the lesser of one year (
the time of the next annual meeting. The vestedeshaclude the impact of 121,230 shares of rasttistock which were cancelled in 2010
due to employees electing to receive fewer sharbisu of paying withholding taxes. The total grdate fair value of shares that vested
during 2010 was $13.6 million.

A summary of our stock option plans asraf éor the year ended December 31, 2010, is predédrgiow:

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining
Average Aggregate Contractual
Exercise Intrinsic Life
Shares (000s) Price Value (000s) (in years)
Outstanding
at
December
2009 4506 $ 16.3¢
Granted 721 35.1¢
Exercisec (2,500 18.0%
Forfeited
(including
cancelled
options) (15§¢) 20.47%
Outstanding
at
December
2010 256¢ $ 19.71 $ 59,807 5.¢
Options
exercisabl
at
December

2010 77¢ $ 16.3¢ $ 20,79 3.¢

The weighted-average grant date fair vafugtock options granted for the years ended Deee®b, 2010, 2009 and 2008 was $18.41,
$5.35, and $5.26, respectively, per option. Thal
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intrinsic value of stock options exercised durihg years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008582k million, $7.3 million and
$0.4 million, respectively.

The following table summarizes informatamout stock options outstanding at December 310:201

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-
Number Average Number

Outstanding at Remaining Weighted- Exercisable at Weighted-

December 31, 2010 Contractual Life Average December 31, 2010 Average
Range of Exercise Prices (000s) (in years) Exercise Price (000s) Exercise Price
$0.27-8.82 491 54 $ 8.7¢ 12z $ 8.6¢
9.6¢-15.08 65€ 5.3 12.51] 17¢ 12.72
15.2¢-23.55 713 3.8 18.4¢ 457 18.8:
23.81-36.00 594 9.C 33.71 18 24.97
39.8:-54.35 11¢ 9.3 42.91 8 54.3¢
2,56¢ 5¢ %  19.71 77¢ $  16.3¢

Shares Reserved for Future Issuance
As of December 31, 2010, we have resetveddllowing shares for future issuance related to:

Issuance upon exercise of stock options and gr

of restricted stoc! 5,280,84.
Issuance upon conversion of subordinated 5,350,93.
Total shares reserve 10,631,77

Issuance of Common Stc

On October 28, 2009 the Company entereddntUnderwriting Agreement (the "Underwriting Agneent") with Citigroup Global
Markets Inc. and J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. (ttiaderwriters"), for the sale of 5,000,000 shareswfcommon stock. In addition, the
Underwriters had an option, which they exercisefiliiij to purchase up to an additional 750,000 shaf our common stock on the same
terms for 30 days from the date of the Underwrifggeement, solely to cover over-allotments. On &ber 3, 2009, we completed this
offering selling 5,750,000 shares for net proceetiing $130.1 million, net of transaction cositating $0.3 million.

Preferred Stocl

Our Board of Directors has authority under Certificate of Incorporation to issue sharepreferred stock with voting and economic
rights to be determined by the Board of Directors.
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On August 24, 2010, our Board of Directanshorized the repurchase of up to $200 millioowfcommon stock until August 26, 2011.
Repurchases are expected to be made from timenéodn the open market in accordance with applicleral securities laws. The timing
repurchases and the exact number of shares of caoratook to be purchased will depend upon markediitions, SEC regulations, and other
factors. The repurchases will be funded using the@any's available cash balances and cash genénatedperations. The program does
not obligate the Company to acquire any particataount of common stock and may be modified or sudpe at any time at the Company's
discretion. During 2010, we purchased 1,118,600eshf@r $38.1 million (including transaction costsider the program at an average cost of
$34.06 per share. This stock repurchase is incladedeasury stock in the Consolidated BalancetShee

9. Income Taxes

Our income (loss) from continuing operasidrefore income taxes in the accompanying Condelid&tatements of Operations consists
of (in thousands:

Year ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Domestic $ 242,30 $ (15,789 $ (59,77)
Foreign 28,69¢ 4,207 10,66¢

$ 271,000 $ (11,58 $ (49,11)

Significant components of the provision iftcome taxes from continuing operations are presebelow (n thousandg:

Year ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Current:
Federal $ 34,090 $ (349 $ (360
Foreign 7,72( 1,87¢ 1,01¢
State and loce 4,72( 79¢ 192
Total current provision for

income taxe: 46,531 2,33¢ 851
Deferred:
Federal (32,039 1,01t 437
Foreign 23¢ (273 35¢
State and loce (4,277 (429 75
Total deferred (benefit)

provision for income taxe (36,06%) 313 871
Total provision for income

taxes $ 10,47: $ 2,647 $ 1,72
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The following is a reconciliation of thecmme tax provision (benefit) computed using thedfaldstatutory rate to our actual income tax
provision (in thousands:

Year ended December 31,
2010 2009 2008

Income tax provision

(benefit) at U.S. statutor

rates $ 94,85. $ (4,059 $ (17,189
State income tax expense

(benefit) (net of federal

impact) 5,74¢ 18¢ (1,13
Goodwill impairment — — 7,98¢
Nondeductible expens: 33: 14¢& 15¢
Noncontrolling interes — 28 49t
Equity compensatio — 1,67¢ 2,51¢
Domestic production

activities deductiot (5,779 — —
Nondeductible

compensatiol 2,84( 82¢€ 1,47:
Research and developmer

tax credit (1,829 (1,85%) (2,03))
Net change in valuatic

allowance (83,079 5,19¢ 10,95t
Change in accrual for

unrecognized tax benefi (2,076 (4,114 —
Foreign tax rate differenti (5,280 5,45( (1,419
Other 3,73¢ (844 (2,089

$ 1047: $ 2647 $ 1,72

Deferred income taxes reflect the net féeces of temporary differences between the cag@mounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts ugeth€ome tax purposes.
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Significant components of our deferreddagets and liabilities are as followis thousands:

December 31,

2010 2009
Deferred tax asset
Inventory valuatior $ 8,99¢ $ 13,26:
Domestic net operating loss carry
forwards 1,21¢ 39,31
Tax credit carry forward 9,961 24,21¢
Foreign net operating loss carry
forwards 147 834
Purchased intangible ass — 6,662
Warranty and installation accrus 2,742 2,43
Equity compensatio 3,65¢ 4,65¢
Other accrual 2,068 1,654
Depreciatior 1,32t 1,81¢
Other 1,89( 3,23t
Total deferred tax asse 32,00: 98,08(
Valuation allowanct (1,649  (84,72)
Net deferred tax asse 30,351 13,357
Deferred tax liabilities
Purchased intangible ass 4,85¢ 8,43¢
DISC terminatior — 201
Convertible debt discoul 1,665 3,07z
Undistributed earning 37C 3,292
Other 264 287
Total deferred tax liabilitie 7,151 15,29:
Net deferred taxe $ 23,206 $ (1,939

A provision has not been made at Decembge@10 for U.S. or additional foreign withholditaxes on approximately $39.0 million of
undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidialiesause it is the present intention of managenogmetmanently reinvest the undistributed
earnings of our foreign subsidiaries in China, KQr#apan, Malaysia, Singapore, and Taiwan. Asotiisntention to reinvest those earnings
permanently, it is not practicable to estimateahmunt of tax that might be payable if they weriteed. We have provided deferred income
taxes and future withholding taxes on the earnthgswe anticipate will be remitted.

We have approximately $9.2 million of fapeitax credit carry forwards which expire at vagdiimes between 2016 and 2019.

Based on current operating results, wersadeapproximately $83.1 million of the valuatidlowance as our net deferred tax assets
became realizable on a more-likely-than-not b&3is. remaining valuation allowance of approximatgly6 million relates primarily to state
and local tax attributes for which we could notcdade were realizable on a more-likely-than-notisaas
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A reconciliation of the beginning and erglamount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follgmsthousands:

December 31,

2010 2009
Beginning balance as of December $ 1,351 $§ 694
Additions for tax positions related to curre

year 1,227 72k
Reductions for tax positions relating to

current yea — —
Additions for tax positions relating to prio

years 1,73¢ —
Reductions for tax positions relating to pr

years (47¢) (62
Reductions due to the lapse of the applic

statute of limitation: a7 —
Settlement: (16%) —
Ending balance as of December $ 3,66( $ 1,357

Of the amounts reflected in the table aktatv@ecember 31, 2010, the entire amount if recaghivould reduce our effective tax rate.
our policy to recognize interest and penaltiesteeldo income tax matters in income tax expense.tdtal accrual for interest and penalties
related to unrecognized tax benefits was approxim&0.3 million and $0.5 million as of December, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

We or one of our subsidiaries file incorae teturns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction andimas state, local and foreign jurisdictions. All
material federal income tax matters have been aded for years through 2006 subject to subsequgiattion of net operating losses
generated in such years. All material state andlimcome tax matters have been concluded for ythawsigh 2006. The majority of our
foreign jurisdictions have been reviewed through®®ith only a few jurisdictions having open taxaye between 2005 and 2008. None of
our federal tax returns are currently under exatigna

10. Commitments and Contingencies and Other Matters
Restructuring and Other Charg

During 2008 and 2009, we continued our irguarter plan to improve profitability and redused contain spending. We made progress
against the initiatives that management set in 260itinued our restructuring plan and executeivities with a focus on creating a more
cost effective organization, with a greater peragatof variable costs. These activities includeariizing and consolidating some locations,
reducing our workforce, consultants and discretiprexpenses and realigning our sales organizatidreagineering groups.

In conjunction with these activities, weagnized restructuring (credits) charges of appnately $(0.2) million, $4.8 million and
$9.4 million during the years ended December 3102@009 and 2008, respectively, and an inventaevoff of $1.5 million, included in
cost of sales in the accompanying ConsolidatecBint of Operations, related to discontinued datage products during the year
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ended December 31, 2009. Restructuring expendbdagrears ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 26G&dollows {n thousands:

Year ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Personnel severance and relate

costs $ — $ 3467 $ 2,61¢
Lease-related and other (credits

costs (179 1,37(C 3,87:
Modification of stock award — — 3,01¢

$ (179 $ 4,837 $ 9,50
Less adjustment of 2007
restructuring liability — — (82)

$ (179 $ 4,831 $ 9,424

Personnel Severance Co

During 2009, we recorded $3.5 million irrg@nel severance and related costs resulting &rbeadcount reduction of 164 employees.
This reduction in workforce included executives nagement, administration, sales and service peet@md manufacturing employees'
companywide.

During 2008, we recorded a $3.7 milliontmesturing charge related to a mutually agre@dn termination of the employment agreen
with our former CEO (who currently remains as Cmain of the Board of Directors) following the sucfascompletion of the CEO
transition, which included a charge of $3.0 millfon the acceleration of stock-based compensatiperese and $0.7 million related to salary
and other related compensation, as specified ien@oyment agreement. The modification of thelstmards was recorded as an increase
to additional paid-in capital. In addition, we elirated approximately 49 employees during 2008 tieguin personnel severance costs of
approximately $1.9 million, primarily in connectiavith increased outsourcing in our LED & Solar dvata Storage segments and
realignment of the sales and service organizalfibis reduction in workforce included executives nagement, administration and
manufacturing employees' companywide.

Leas«related and Other Costs

During 2010, we had a change in estimdtging to one of our leased Data Storage facilithesa result, we incurred a restructuring
credit of $0.2 million, consisting primarily of themaining lease payment obligations and estimateperty taxes for a portion of the facility
we will occupy, offset by a reduction in expectedllease income. We made certain assumptions inndigieg the credit, which included a
reduction in estimated sublease income and terrti'ec$ublease as well as the estimated discountadite used in determining the fair value
of the remaining liability. We developed these aggtions based on our understanding of the curesitastate market as well as current

market interest rates. The assumptions are basathoagement's best estimates, and will be adjpstieddically if new information is
obtained.
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During 2009, we vacated our Data Storagiitias in Camarillo, CA. As a result, we incurradb1.4 million restructuring charge,
consisting primarily of the remaining lease paynmiigations and estimated property taxes for Hudify we vacated, offset by the estime
expected sublease income to be received. We maidéncassumptions in determining the charge, whichuded estimated sublease income
and terms of the sublease as well as the estindé&edunt rate to be used in determining the fdineaf the liability. We developed these
assumptions based on our understanding of thertueal estate market as well as current marketest rates. The assumptions are based or
management's best estimates, and will be adjustéddically if new information is obtained.

During 2008, we recorded a $3.9 milliortmesturing charge for lease-related costs as gaheoconsolidation of our corporate
headquarters into our Plainview, New York manufangufacility during the first quarter of 2008. Bhcharge primarily consisted of the
liability for the remaining lease payments and jertytaxes relating to the facility we vacated seffby expected sublease income. We made
certain assumptions in determining the charge, lwincluded estimated sublease income and ternfeedfublease as well as the estimated
discount rate to be used in determining the fadweraf the net cash flows. We developed these gsoins, based on our understanding of
current real estate market as well as current manterest rates, which are adjusted periodicadlgdnl upon new information, events and
changes in the real estate market.
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The following is a reconciliation of thattility for the 2010, 2009 and 2008 restructurihgrge from inception through December 31,
2010 (in thousandy:

Unallocated
LED & Solar Data Storage Corporate Total

Short-term liability

Leastrelated and other costs 20 $ — ¢ — ¢ 1,18¢ $ 1,18¢
Personnel severance and related costs 732 477 1,40¢ 2,614
Total charged to accrual 200¢ 732 A77 2,59¢ 3,80z
Leaserelated and other costs 20 19C 80¢< — 99¢
Personnel severance and related costs 1,00¢ 1,82¢ 63€ 3,461
Total charged to accrual 200¢ 1,19¢ 2,62¢ 63€ 4,46(
Leastrelated and other (credits) costs 2! — (87) — (87)
Total (credited) charged to accrual 201( — (87) — (87)
Shor-term/lon¢-term reclassification 20C — — 892 892
Shor-term/lon¢-term reclassification 20C — 14¢ 1,08¢ 1,232
Shor-term/lon¢-term reclassification 201 — 12: 53€ 65¢
Cash payments 20( (72 (207) (1,627%) (2,90€)
Cash payments 20( (1,509 (2,567 (1,982 (6,045
Cash payments 20: (359 (3449 (1,597%) (2,299
Balance as of December 31, 20: $ — 3 17¢ $ 53¢ $ 714
Long-term liability

Leastrelated and other costs 20 $ — ¢ — $ 2,68/ $ 2,68/
Leaserelated and other costs 20 — 377 — 377
Leastrelated and other (credits) costs 2! — (48) — (48)
Shor-term/lon¢-term reclassification 20C — — (892) (892)
Shor-term/lon¢-term reclassification 20C — (14€) (1,089 (1,232
Shor-term/lon¢-term reclassification 201 — (129 (53¢) (659)
Other adjustment — — (172 (172
Balance as of December 31, 20: $ — 3 58 $ — 3 58

The long-term liability will be paid ovend remaining life of the leases for the former cogpe headquarters and a former Data Storage
facility, which expire in June 2011 and May 201&spectively. We currently do not anticipate or expe incur additional restructuring
charges during 2011.
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The following is a reconciliation of thattility for the 2007 restructuring charge from iptien through December 31, 201h(
thousandy:

Unallocated
LED & Solar Data Storage Corporate Total

Beginning

balance at

January 1,

2008 $ 17 $ 2,06 $ 1,492 $ 3,572
Reversal of

accrual

during 200 — (81) — (81)
Cash

payments

during 200 () (1,989 (1,247 (3,246
Cash

payments

during 200 — — (24%) (24%)
Balance as ¢

December

2010 $ — 3 — $ — % —

Asset Impairment Charg:

During 2009, we recorded a $0.3 millioneassipairment charge in the second quarter for gngpplant and equipment no longer being
utilized in our Data Storage reporting unit.

During 2008, we recorded a $51.4 millioseismpairment charge, of which $51.1 million wasarded during the fourth quarter and
$0.3 million was recorded during the first quarfne fourth quarter charge consisted of $30.4 amllielated to goodwill, $19.6 million
related to intangible assets ($5.0 million of indié¢-lived trademarks and $14.6 of other defidited intangibles) and $1.1 million in
property, plant and equipment in Data Storage.fifeequarter charge consisted of $0.3 million assed with property and equipment
abandoned as part of the consolidation of our gatpcheadquarters into our Plainview facility.

Minimum Lease Commitmer

Minimum lease commitments as of Decembe2810 for property and equipment under operagagée agreements (exclusive of
renewal options) are payable as follows thousandy:

2011 $ 3,91F
2012 2,36(
2013 1,72¢
2014 83¢
2015 401
Thereafte! 23C

$ 9,46¢

Rent charged to operations amounted to $@l®n, $2.0 million and $2.5 million in 2010, 29 and 2008, respectively. In addition, we
are obligated under such leases for certain otkgreses, including real estate taxes and insurance.

Environmental Remediatic

We may, under certain circumstances, bigiateld to pay up to $250,000 in connection withithplementation of a comprehensive plan
of environmental remediation at our Plainview, Néark facility. We have been indemnified by the f@mowner for any liabilities we may
incur in excess ¢
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$250,000 with respect to any such remediation awe fa liability recorded for this amount as of Daber 31, 2009. No comprehensive plan
has been required to date. Even without considerati such indemnification, we do not believe thay material loss or expense is probable
in connection with any remediation plan that mayhbeposed.

We are aware that petroleum hydrocarbomarnimation has been detected in the soil at tieeo$it facility formerly leased by us in
Santa Barbara, California. We have been indemnfiedny liabilities we may incur which arise fra@nvironmental contamination at the <
Even without consideration of such indemnificatiae, do not believe that any material loss or expamprobable in connection with any
such liabilities.

The former owner of the land and buildingSianta Barbara, California in which our former Mk&igy operations were located, which
business (sold to Bruker on October 7, 2010), iedabed that there are hazardous substances piesika ground under the building.
Management believes that the comprehensive indaatidn clause that was part of the purchase contedating to the purchase of such |
provides adequate protection against any envirotmh&ssues that may arise. We have provided Brirldgmnification as part of the sale.

Litigation

We are involved in various legal proceediagsing in the normal course of our businessd@/aot believe that the ultimate resolution
of these matters will have a material adverse efiamur consolidated financial position, resukt®perations or cash flows.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Our business depends in large part upordp#al expenditures of our top ten customerscivhiccounted for 80% and 88% of total
accounts receivable at December 31, 2010 and 2888ectively. Of such, HB LED and data storagearusts accounted for approximately
62% and 18%, and 65% and 23%, respectively, of émzounts receivable at December 31, 2010 and.2009

Customers who accounted for more than 1Détioaggregate accounts receivable or net sageasafollows:

Net Sales
Accounts Receivable For the Year Ended
December 31, December 31,

2010 2009 2010 2009 2008
Customer A 20% 43% 17% 2% *
Customer E 26% * * * *
Customer C * * 12% * *
Customer C * 14% * 1C0% 21%
* Less than 10% of aggregate accounts receivabletaates.

Both of our operating segments sell to¢h@asjor customers.

We manufacture and sell our products tomames in different geographic locations. In ceriastances, we require deposits for a
portion of the sales price in advance of shipméfe.perform periodic credit evaluations of our custes' financial condition and, where
appropriate, require that
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in the following geographic locationsnthousands:

Suppliers

We currently outsource, and plan to corgtithe outsourcing of, certain functions to thirdties, including the manufacture of all or
substantially all of our new MOCVD systems, dataage systems, solar deposition systems and iaeesu/Ne primarily rely on several
suppliers for the manufacturing of these systemes pldn to maintain internal manufacturing capapflitr these systems at least until such
time as we have qualified one or more alternat@lgns to perform this manufacturing. The failufeoar present suppliers to meet their
contractual obligations under our supply arrangdamand our inability to make alternative arrangetrsen resume the manufacture of these
systems ourselves could have a material adversetefii our revenues, profitability, cash flows agldtionships with our customers.

In addition, certain of the components and-assemblies included in our products are olddimmen a single source or a limited group of
suppliers. Our inability to develop alternative sms, if necessary, could result in a prolongeermption in supply or a significant increase

December 31,

2010 2009
Americas $ 13,60C $ 15,69¢
Europe, Middle East and Africa

("EMEA") 17,32: 10,36
Asia Pacific(1) 119,60° 41,48

$ 150,52( $ 67,54¢

(1)  As of December 31, 2010, accounts receivable im&hnd Singapore amounted to $66.5 million and
$48.3 million, respectively. As of December 31, 208ccounts receivable in Singapore amounted to
$34.0 million. No other country accounted for mtran 10% of our accounts receivable as of

December 31 for the years presen

in the price of one or more components, which caualdersely affect our operating results.
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11. Foreign Operations, Geographic Area, and ProducSegment Information

Net sales which are attributed to the gaplgic location in which the customer facility isdded and long-lived assets related to
operations in the United States and other foremmtries as of and for the years ended Decembe&2(1), 2009 and 2008 are as follows (
thousandg:

Net Sales to Unaffiliated Customers Long-Lived Assets
2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008
United State: $ 94,75¢ $ 60,55:! $ 130,08¢ $ 123,54! $ 117,35( $ 124,48l
Other 23z 177 48t — — —
Total Americas 94,98t 60,73( 130,57: 123,54 117,35( 124,48
EMEA(1) 92,11: 50,08¢ 57,567 274 31t 41%
Asia Pacific(1) 746,13: 171,59 126,79! 974 81t 70€
Total Other Foreign
Countries 838,24t 221,68 184,36: 1,24¢ 1,13( 1,11¢

$ 933,23. $ 282,41 $ 314,93! $ 124,79: $ 118,48( $ 125,59¢

(1)  Forthe year ended December 31, 2010, net satsstomers in South Korea, China and Taiwan werg8228.6%
and 10.8% of total net sales, respectively. Folytrar ended December 31, 2009, net sales to custom8outh Korea
and China were 35.1% and 11.0% of total net sedspectively. For the year ended December 31, 2@§i8ales to
customers in Germany and Taiwan were 10.3% and/d @f4otal net sales, respectively. No other cquimtEMEA anc
Asia Pacific accounted for more than 10% of oursades for the years present

We manage the business, review operatsgteeand assess performance, as well as allcestences, based upon two separate
reporting segments that reflect the market focusagh business. The Light Emitting Diode ("LED")S®lar segment consists of metal
organic chemical vapor deposition ("MOCVD") system®lecular beam epitaxy ("MBE") systems, thernmeggabition sources, and other
types of deposition systems used to deposit m&garaflexible and glass substrates. These sysaeengrimarily sold to customers in the
high-brightness light emitting diode ("HB LED") asdlar industries, as well as to scientific reskamstomers. This segment has product
development and marketing sites in Somerset, NeseyeSt. Paul, Minnesota, Lowell, MassachusettisGliiton Park, New York. The Data
Storage segment consists of the ion beam etclhdgam deposition, diamond-like carbon, physical vajgposition, and dicing and slicing
products sold primarily to customers in the dataesie industry. This segment has product developarehmarketing sites in Plainview,
New York, Ft. Collins, Colorado and Camarillo, Gathia.

We evaluate the performance of our reptetabgments based on income (loss) from operatieftse interest, income taxes,
amortization and certain items ("segment profis¢)d), which is the primary indicator used to péand forecast future periods. The
presentation of this financial measure facilitate=saningful comparison with prior periods, as manag# believes segment profit (loss)
reports baseline performance and thus providesiLisgdrmation. Certain items include restructurexpenses, asset impairment charges,
inventory write-offs, equity-based compensationesqe and other naecurring items. The accounting policies of theorggible segments a
the same as those described in the summary afatréccounting policies.
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The following tables present certain daetgining to our reportable product segments aretanciliation of segment profit (loss) to
income (loss) from continuing operations, befoil@ime taxes for the years ended December 31, 2009, @&nd 2008, and goodwill and total
assets as of December 31, 2010 and 200%housands:

Unallocated
LED & Solar Data Storage Corporate Total

Year ended December 31, 201
Net sales $ 797,90 $ 13532 $ — $ 933,23
Segment profit (loss $ 276,060 $ 3453 $ (18,679 $ 291,92(
Interest expense, n — — 6,572 6,572
Amortization expens 3,121 1,522 23¢ 4,87¢
Equity-based compensation expe! 2,64: 1,14(C 5,86¢ 9,64¢
Restructuring cred — (279 — (279
Income (loss) from continuing operation

before income taxe $ 270,29¢ $ 32,05. $ (31,349 $ 271,00:
Year ended December 31, 2009
Net sales $ 20515 $ 77,25¢ $ — $ 282,41.
Segment profit (loss $ 27,82t $ (2,57¢) $ (10,599 $ 14,65(
Interest expense, n — — 6,85( 6,85(
Amortization expens 3,131 1,59¢ 432 5,16¢
Equity-based compensation expe! 1,35¢ 1,02( 5,16¢ 7,547
Restructuring expen: 1,19¢ 3,00¢ 63¢ 4,831
Asset impairment charg — 304 — 304
Inventory write-offs — 1,52¢ — 1,52¢
Income (loss) from continuing operation

before income taxe $ 22,13t $ (10,03) $ (23,689 $ (11,589
Year ended December 31, 2008
Net sales $ 165,81 $ 149,120 $ — $ 314,93
Segment profit (loss $ 2391 $ 16,98¢ $ (9.22)) $ 31,67¢
Interest expense, n — — 6,72¢ 6,72¢
Amortization expens 4,62 3,79( 44¢ 8,86¢
Equity-based compensation expel 49t 99C 5,16t 6,65(
Restructuring expens 732 39¢ 8,29¢ 9,42¢
Asset impairment chargs — 51,10: 28t 51,38"
Purchase accounting adjustm 1,492 — — 1,492
Gain on extinguishment of de — — (3,759 (3,759
Income (loss) from continuing operation

before income taxe $ 16,567 $ (39,29) $ (26,38¢) $ (49,11)
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Unallocated
LED & Solar Data Storage Corporate Total

As of December 31, 2010

Goodwill $ 52,00 $ — % — 3 52,00:
Total asset $ 323,09¢ $ 61,69 $ 763,24° $ 1,148,03
As of December 31, 2009

Goodwill $ 52,00 $ — 3 — $ 52,00t
Total asset $ 17842( $ 54,10¢ $ 372,84t $ 605,37.

Corporate total assets are comprised gétlyi of cash and cash equivalents, short-termstments and restricted cash as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009.

Other Segment Datan(thousands:

Year ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Depreciation and amortizatis
expense
LED & Solar $ 757 % 7,392 $ 7,85(
Data Storag 3,58: 4,44¢ 7,69(
Unallocated Corporal 1,69¢ 2,02t 2,14t

Total depreciation and
amortization expens $ 12,85 $ 13,86¢ $ 17,68¢

Expenditures for long-lived

assets
LED & Solar $ 8,08t $ 6,65€ $ 5,60¢
Data Storag 572 192 4,25¢
Unallocated Corporal 2,06¢ 612 1,26t
Total expenditures for long

lived asset: $ 10,72 $ 7,46( $ 11,12¢

12. Defined Contribution Benefit Plan

We maintain a defined contribution benpfan under Section 401(k) of the Internal RevenadeC Almost all of our domestic full-time
employees are eligible to participate in this pldnder the plan, we provide matching contributiohfifty cents for every dollar employees
contribute up to a maximum of $3,000. Generallg, ptan calls for vesting of Company contributionsmothe initial five years of a
participant's employment. Beginning in 2007, wentwined a similar type of contribution plan at ai@ur foreign subsidiaries. Our
contributions to these plans in 2010, 2009 and 208&& $1.8 million, $1.0 million and $1.4 milliorespectively.

13. Cost Method Investment

On September 28, 2010, Veeco completedastment in a rapidly developing organic light gimg diode (OLED) equipment
company. Veeco has invested in this company's R&uiuthding extension totaling $3 million, resultimg7.8% ownership of the preferred
shares, and 5.6% ownership of the company. Sincgowet exhibit significant influence on such compgethis investment is treated under
the cost method in accordance with applicable autog guidance. The fair value of this investmemat estimated because there are no
identified events or changes in circumstancesrttat have a significant adverse effect on the falue of the investment, and we are exempt
from estimating interim fair values because thesgtment does not meet the definition of a publidged company. This investment is
recorded in other assets in our Consolidated Bel&heet as of December 31, 2010.
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Schedule ll—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts(in thousands)

COL. A COL.B COL.C COL.D COL.E
Additions
Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance at
Beginning of Costs and Other End of
Description Period Expenses Accounts Deductions Period
Deducted from asset accour
Year ended December 31,
2010:
Allowance for doubtful
accounts $ 43¢ $ 40 $ 34 $ — % 512
Valuation allowance on ne
deferred tax asse 84,72¢ — (2,669) (80,416 1,64
$ 85,16: $ 40 $ (2,629 $ (80,416 $ 2,15¢
Deducted from asset accour
Year ended December 31,
2009:
Allowance for doubtful
accounts $ 582 % (52) $ — 3 (93) $ 43¢
Valuation allowance on ne
deferred tax asse 78,70¢ 6,017 — — 84,72
$ 79,28¢ $ 5,96 $ — % (93) $ 85,16:
Deducted from asset accour
Year ended December 31,
2008:
Allowance for doubtful
accounts $ 641 $ 67 $ 9 % — 3 582
Valuation allowance on ne
deferred tax asse 67,36( 14,15( 317 (3,127 78,70¢
$ 68,00 $ 14,08: $ 326 $ (3,12)) $ 79,28¢
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Company under File No. 0-16244.
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Exhibit 3.8

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF
AMENDED AND RESTATED
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
VEECO INSTRUMENTS INC.

It is hereby certified that:

1. The name of the corporation is Veeco Instrumerts (the "Corporation™).

2. Article 4 of the amended and restated certificdt@@rporation of the Corporation, as amendedat® dthe "Certificate of
Incorporation”), is hereby amended to read iniittirety as follows:

"4. The corporation shall have authority to issue al tof 120,500,000 shares, to be divided into 120,00 shares of
common stock, with a par value of $0.01 per shate590,000 shares of preferred stock with a parevaf $0.01 per
share."

3 The amendment of the Certificate of Incorporatiiective hereby and herein certified has been dalypted in accordance
with the provisions of Section 242 of the Generatfgration Law of the State of Delaware.

May 18, 2010

VEECO INSTRUMENTS INC

By: /sl GREGORY A. ROBBINS

Gregory A. Robbins
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Segyt
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Exhibit 21.1

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Subsidiary Jurisdiction of Organization
U.S. Subsidiaries

Veeco APAC Inc DE
Veeco Process Equipment I DE
Veeco TK LLC DE
Foreign Subsidiaries

Nihon Veeco K.K. Japar
Veeco Asia Pte. Ltc Singapore
Veeco Malaysia Sdn. Bh Malaysia
Veeco Instruments Gmb Germany
Veeco Instruments Limite England
Veeco Instruments S.A. France
Veeco Instruments B.\ Netherland
Veeco Instruments (Shanghai) Co. L China
Veeco Korea Inc Korea

Veeco Taiwan Inc Taiwan
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by refeeeincthe following Registration Statements of Vebatiruments, Inc and Subsidiaries (the
"Company"):

. the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 33-873@4faining to the Veeco Instruments Inc. AmendetiRestated 1992
Employees' Stock Option Plan and the Veeco Instnisniéic. 1994 Stock Option Plan for Outside Diregto

. the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 33-95424faining to the Veeco Instruments Inc. AmendeatiRastated 1992
Employees' Stock Option Plan;

. the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-0888ttrining to the Veeco Instruments Inc. Amendedi Restated 1992
Employees' Stock Option Plan and the Amended astbRE Veeco Instruments Inc. 1994 Stock Option RiaOutside
Directors;

. the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-35@@#rining to the Amended and Restated Veecoumsnts Inc. 1994

Stock Option Plan for Outside Directors;

. the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-36848gining to the CVC, Inc. 1999 Non-Employee Bioes' Stock Option
Plan and the CVC, Inc. Amended and Restated 199k $ption Plan;

. the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-39p8&6aining to the Veeco Instruments Inc. 2000 iS®ption Plan;

. the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-49f4@@rining to the Veeco Instruments Inc. 2000 Sption Plan for Non-
Officer Employees;

. the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-669é4#anining to amendments to the Veeco Instrumets2000 Stock
Option Plan and to the Veeco Instruments Inc. 28@@k Option Plan for Non-Officer Employees;

. the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-69984aining to the Applied Epi, Inc. 1993 Stock i@ptPlan, the Applied
Epi, Inc. 2000 Stock Option Plan and certain Noralified Restricted Stock Option Agreements betwapplied Epi and
Certain Employees and Former Employees of Appliei E

. the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-7946%gining to the Veeco Instruments Inc. Amendedi Restated 1992
Employees' Stock Option Plan and the Veeco Instntisnieic. 1994 Stock Option Plan for Outside Diresto

. the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-88@4@rining to the offer and sale of 2,200,000 eh&f common stock
under the 2000 Stock Option Plan;

. the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-10yf4&aining to the offer and sale of 630,000 shafecommon stock
under the 2000 Stock Option Plan;

. the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-12y@8&aining to the offer and sale of 2,000,000 sk&f common stock
under the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan;

. the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-12ypé6taining to the offer and sale of 1,500,000 eba&f common stock
under the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan; and

. the Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-16pf68taining to automatic shelf registration of Yee€ommon stock

. the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-16pfB®aining to Veeco Instruments, Inc. 2010 Stimdentive Plan




of our reports dated February 23, 2011, with refsfmethe consolidated financial statements andduleeof the Company and the
effectiveness of internal control over financighoeting of the Company included in this Annual RegBorm 10-K) of the Company for the
year ended December 31, 20

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
February 23, 2011
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a—14(a) or RULE 15d—14(a)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
I, John R. Peeler, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Ktfer year ended December 31, 2010 (the "ReportheoCompany;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not com@ajnuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements odimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer and | a@eponsible for establishing and maintaining disete controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

(@ designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh®ubsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in at@oce with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantdalisre controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the regis¢santernal control over financial reporting tleacurred during the registrar
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigital quarter in the case of an annual repo#d tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | kalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataxmmittee of the registrant's board of direcf@nspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

€)) all significant deficiencies and material weaknedsethe design or operation of internal contraérofimancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize apdrt financial information;
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a significéamin the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ JOHN R. PEELER

John R. Peeler

Chief Executive Officer
Veeco Instruments Inc.
February 23, 201
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a—14(a) or RULEd5-14(a) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a—14(a) or RULE 15d—14(a)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
I, David D. Glass, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Ktfer year ended December 31, 2010 (the "ReportheoCompany;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comajnuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

€)) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tlesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh®ubsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahaorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodgiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in at@oce with generally accepted accounting principles

(©) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantdalisre controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the regis¢santernal control over financial reporting tleacurred during the registrar
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigital quarter in the case of an annual repo#d) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | kalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatauminmittee of the registrant's board of direci@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@ all significant deficiencies and material weaknessehe design or operation of internal contradofinancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize apdrt financial information;
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a significéamin the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

/s DAVID D. GLASS

David D. Glass

Executive Vice President a
Chief Financial Officer
Veeco Instruments Inc.
February 23, 201
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of ¥ednstruments Inc. (the "Company") on FormKl.@sr the year ended December 31, 201
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the "Report"), I, John R. Pe&haief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section01 3% adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sask@nley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; and

(2)  The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ JOHN R. PEELER

John R. Peeler

Chief Executive Officer
Veeco Instruments Inc.
February 23, 201

A signed original of this written statemeatjuired by Section 906 has been provided to Véestouments Inc. and will be retained by
Veeco Instruments Inc. and furnished to the Sdaesrdnd Exchange Commission or its staff upon retque
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of ¥ednstruments Inc. (the "Company") on FormKl.@sr the year ended December 31, 201
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the "Report"), |, David D. Gldssecutive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuémil8 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuadédstion 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; and

(2)  The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of the
Company.

/s DAVID D. GLASS

David D. Glass

Executive Vice President a
Chief Financial Officer
Veeco Instruments Inc.
February 23, 201

A signed original of this written statemeadjuired by Section 906 has been provided to Véestouments Inc. and will be retained by
Veeco Instruments Inc. and furnished to the Sdaesrdnd Exchange Commission or its staff upon retque
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OXLEY ACT OF 2002



